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Cover Story

Equally valid for small enterprises and large corporations, staying
ahead of the game is fine art for any organization out there.

Risk too much and you're running at loss, remain comfortable in
your position and competition will steal your most valued customers.
Defining an effective business strategy that can scale and evolve with
time is paramount for a profitable venture eager to stay ahead.
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The story of Servis' begins in late 1930s when
a group of three young graduates from college,
started exploring the possibility of doing business
together instead of aspirting for secured jobs.
These determined young men, Chaudhry Nazar
Muhammad, Chaudhry Mohammad Husain,
both hailing from villages in Gujrat and Chaudhry
Muhammad Saeed from the neighboring district
of Gujranwala, had scarce capital as they came from
families with modest means. They pooled their
personal savings, and started small businesses
of making Mosquito nets, minor steel products,
leather chappals and eventually travel bags, hand
bags and holdalls, made of canvas and leather
largely for supply to the army. Their promising
business, operating out of an apartment with four
small rooms in Gawalmandi, Lahore, received a
serious setback at the end of World War Il when
the army stopped purchases and again in 1947
when subcontinent was partitioned into Pakistan
and India. Most of their market was lost as it was
based in Indian Cities of Delhi, Bombay, Calcutta,
Madras and Cawnpur. The money thus lost was
never recovered. They were using a neutral name
of Service Limited for their products, not revealing

any particular religious identity under intense
competition from people of other faiths.

After independence, they started their business
afresh and this time with production of slippers,
commonly called chappals in Pakistan. The
limitation of financial resources did not deter
them. They had experience of handling leather
and canvas as well as handmade chappals. They
established Service industries in 1953, converted
to a Public Limited Company in 1959 and
ultimately listed on the stock exchange in 1970.

In 1954, they installed a shoe manufacturing plant
at industrial area in Gulberg, Lahore, and started
production in the same year. The industry started
manufacturing various types of shoes. A few years
earlier retail outlet had been started at the Mall
Road under banner of Hilal Store, later converted
into a Servis store.

At Gujrat, they acquired large piece of land
and established one of the biggest industrial
complexes in Punjab, manufacturing leather and
canvas footwear, canvas fabric, textile spinning
and eventually also bicycle tires and tubes.

Ch. Nazar Muhammad

Ch. Muhammad Hussain
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“._ . Humility, faimess and diligence were the core
i values held by our founders and these led to the
“phenomenal success of the group over the years.
They were hugely focused on the impact of their
enterprise on society as a whole. They remained
extremely particular about payment of taxes to
the national exchequer, and in looking after the
— interests of shareholder and workforce alike. The
importance to society of creating employment
opportunities, improve employees’ qualifications,
develop backward areas and establish an export
market stemmed from their vision and directed
their growth.

In the public sphere, they were the pioneers and
founders of the Lahore Chamber of Commerce
and Industry, the Federation of Chambers of
Commerce and Industry and the Lahore Stock
Exchange.

Ch Nazar Muhammad and Ch Muhammad Saeed
were both Presidents of the Lahore Chamber, and
~ Ch Nazar Muhammad also served as the President
of the Federation of Chambers of Commerce
and Industry as well as Chairman of the newly

Ch. Muhamnk
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established Lahore Stock Exchange. He founded
the Businessmen Hospital Trust and through it
became the founding Chairman of the Shalamar
Hospital.

Ch Mohammad Husain was a great promoter of
cricket and became President for the Board of
Control for Cricket in Pakistan.

Today, the production side of the company has
developed into the Service Industries Limited
(SIL) which has world class shoes, tyres and tubes
and specialized rubber production facilities in
Gujrat, Muridke and in Negombo, Sri Lanka. SIL
is the leading exporter of footwear from Pakistan
as well as tyres and tubes. Our manufacturing
facilities are spread over three locations, with two
new locations, in Manga Otar, Tehsil Raiwind and
in Nooriabad, Sindh have recently been acquired
for new projects, for footwear and truck and bus
radial tyres respectively.

A humble venture of three friends has grown into
a group that employs almost thirteen thousand
people and makes a difference in the lives of
millions of people every day.
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Our Vision

To become a Global, World class and Diversified Company
Wwhich leverages its brands and its people.

“Vlision is the art
of seeing what is

invisible to others.”
- Jonathan Swift
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Our Mission

To be a result oriented and profitable Company by consistently
improving market share quality, diversity, availability,
presentation, reliability, and customer acceptance.

To emerge as a growth oriented ensuring optimum return and
value addition to its shareholders.

Toensure cost consciousnessin decision making and operations
without compromising the commitment to quality.

To create an efficient resource management and conductive
business environment. Evolving an effective leadership by
creating a highly professional and motivated management
team fully equipped to meet any challenge.

Tokeepabreastwithmoderntechnologyanddesignstooptimize
production and enhance brand image to attain international
recognition for the Company's product.

To set up highly ethical business standards and be a good
cooperate citizen, contributing towards the development of the
national economy and assisting charitable causes.

To adopt appropriate safety rules and environment friendly
policies.
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Strength and Growth
come only through
Continuous Effort and




Our products are available in more than thirty countries.
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The only strategy that
is guaranteed to fail is

not taking risks.
- Mark Zuckerberg
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Corporate Social
ibility

s cannot be
ssful when the society
them fails."”
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INTRODUCTION

Service Industries Limited (SIL) is a socially conscious business enti tradition of ch
giving is as old as the company itself. Over the past five decades, SIL has been involved in si
philanthropic undertakings in health and education.

In late 2018, SIL decided to consolidate the delivery of this work by establishi
corporate foundation by the name of Servis Foundation (SF). During 20
set out into becoming the custodian and implementer of all institutio
company. SF, as SIL's philanthropic arm, will deliver SIL's CSR goals throu
targeted mechanism.

utions of the
rogrammatic and

SIL's ultimate aim is to strive to serve its employees, custo shareholders, communities and the
environment. The intention is simple - to give back, share rity and help people build and grow
in a sustainable way.

SF inherits the same values: giving back, community, trust, excellence, collaboration, partnership,
and sustained progress. It will foster SIL's legacy through work of larger scale and impact. SF's vision
is to become a meaningful contributor to a P nainwhich all people have access to excellent
education, healthcare and opportunity. SF's m idle and promote lifelong access to
best quality education and healthcare to low-i mmunities and beyond. The
Foundation will deliver on these goals by partne e partners with the right
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Internal Company Initiatives

SIL has taken certain initiatives to provide a safe, healthy and ethical
environment for all internal stakeholders like employees, customers

and shareholders associated with the company.

a)

Asia’s First Solar Powered Footwear Factory

In September 2017, SIL Muridke completed the installation
of a TMW Solar Power Park, spread over four acres of land,
consisting of 3,125 solar panels with an annual power
generation of 1,500 MWh, becoming the first solar powered
footwear factory in Asia. The initiative is equivalent to planting
100 trees daily, reducing carbon dioxide emissions by 730
tons annually. This initial step on the road to go green gives
SIL's customers the benefit to market their products as eco-
friendly in an increasingly environmentally conscious global
population.

Industrial Relations

SIL is Business Social Compliance Initiative (BSCI) certified,
promoting workplace conditions in accordance with human
rights, ILO conventions and national labor law. Additionally, SIL
has been a member of SEDEX Global since 2015, ensuring our
dedication to driving improvements in responsible and ethical
business practices in the global supply chain, providing our
family of over 10,000 employees the best working conditions
forincreased productivity.

Employment of femalesand persons with disability
SIL is proud to be an equal opportunity employer and
encourages the participation of females and persons with
special needs in the workforce. SIL has taken steps to create a
work environment conducive to females by dedicating separate
production lines in both Gujratand Muridke Footwear factories,
employing 410+ females currently.

Occupational Safety and Health

Our procedures have been gauged to provide a safe, clean,
injury and illness-free environment to our employees. SIL
has obtained OHSAS 1800:2007 Occupational Health and
Safety Management Certification, an international standard
providing a framework to identify, control and decrease the
risks associated with health and safety within the workplace.

Consumer Protection Measures

SILis1SO 9001:2008 certified, ensuring a Quality Management
System focused on consistently providing products that
meet customers and applicable statutory and regulatory
requirements. SIL is also a member of SATRA Technologies
since 2010 who conduct research and tests on footwear and
leather products to ensure the product is comfortable, safe,
performs well and is durable.

f)

Business Ethics and Anti-Corruption Measures

We have a commitment of conducting our business with
honesty and integrity and in full compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. Our Statement of Ethics & Business
Practices states that "It is the Company's policy to conduct its
operations in accordance with the highest business ethical
considerations, to comply with all statutory regulations and
to conform to the best accepted standards of good corporate
citizenship."

Contribution to National Exchequer

SIL has a Significant annual contribution to the national jg.»

exchequer on account of taxes, duties and levies. In 2019, SIL
contributed PKR 1,155 million.

A

)
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Directly Owned Community Welfare Projects

a) Chaudhry Nazar Muhammad, Muhammad
Hussain Memorial Society Hospital

Located in Gandhra, Gujrat, the hospital is a primary

care facility for the community, providing subsidized
consultation by a General Physician, free medicines,
subsidized basic lab tests and ultrasound facility.
Approximately 24,000+ patient interactions are recorded at
the facility annually. SIL contributed PKR 9.56 million towards
the running of this set-up in 2019.

b) Shirin Javed Memorial Clinic

Located in Guijrat, the Clinic offers subsidized
consultation by a General Physician, free medicines,
subsidized basic lab tests and x-ray facility. 35,000+
patient interactions are recorded annually for free
medication and consultation. SIL contributed PKR
2.774 million towards the running of this clinic in
2019.

¢) Servis-TCF High School for Boys

l
Located in Gujrat and located on main GT Road, this @ / o ot ¥ r
school serves as an educational institute for the ol A
underprivileged students in the area. Operational and
management control was handed over to The Citizens
Foundation (TCF) in 2018; they look after the school on
behalf of SF. 120+ high school students are currently enrolled
here.

d) Servis-Sunbeams School, Muridke,
Sheikhupura

This school is located in a village 5km from the
SIL Muridke factory and enrolls more than 215
students. Operations and management are looked
after by Sunbeams School System on behalf of SF
since August 2019.
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Institutional contributions through Servis Foundation

SIL contributed PKR 7.1 million to Servis Foundation (SF) during 2019 for the delivery of development programmes
through charitable institutions. These institutional contributions included health and education spendmg through the
following institutions: -

a) Shalamar Institute of Health Sciences

SF continues SILs tradition of annual donation to SIHS.
In 2019, SF contributed PKR 5 million to SIHS chiefly for
medical students' scholarships.

b) Kidney Center Gujrat

SF is the foremost donor at this facility providing
free heamodialysis and subsidised kidney stone
management services to almost 850 registered
kidney disease patients from Gujratand surrounding
districts. SF managed the donation of a state-of-the-
art lithotripter on behalf of SILto the centerin 2019.
In 2019, SF contributed PKR 2 million to Kidney
Center Guijrat.

¢) The Pakistan Society for the
Rehabilitation of the Disabled (PSRD)

In December 2019, SF began its contributions to
the Orthotics & Prosthetics Center at PSRD which
provides subsidised services to low-income patients.
SFis also currently spearheading capacity building and
institutional strengthening efforts at the center.

The Citizens Foundation e) Other

SF sponsors a TCF school, namely the YPO Pakistan
Campus is a primary school with a student body
strength of 180 located in Mansehra District, Khyber
Pakhtunkhwa. In addition, TCF has been engaged by
SF to manage its own school in Gujrat as mentioned
above. In 2019, SF contributed PKR 0.15 million to The
Citizens Foundation.

In 2019, SF also contributed to Lahore Biennale
Foundation, to scholarships through Society for
Promotion of Education, Environment and Community
Health (SPEECH) for students receiving free
Intermediate-level education and skills training at
WISE Education Society alongside separate operational
support for WISE, and Bagh-e-Rehmat High School for
Girls, Lahore.

SIL seeks to strengthen SF's organisational planning, performance evaluation and governance frameworks so that
meaningful programmes with promise of long-term impact may be delivered.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 63rd Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of Service Industries Limited (the Company) will be held
on Friday, the July 17,2020 at 11:00 a.m. through video link facility from the registered office of the Company situated at Servis
House, 2-Main Gulberg, Lahore, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the separate and consolidated audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31,2019, together with the Directors’ and Auditors' Reports thereon and Chairman’s Review Report.

To approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 7.50 per share i.e. 75% as recommended by the Board of Directors in addition to
the interim cash dividend of Rs. 12.50 per share i.e. 125% already paid to the shareholders of the Company making a total
cash dividend of Rs. 20 per share i.e. 200% for the year ended December 31,2019.

To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration. The members are hereby given notice that the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors have recommended the name of retiring auditors M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants
for re-appointment as auditors of the Company.

Special Business:

4.

5.

To approve, as recommended by the Directors, issue of bonus shares in proportion of 25 Ordinary Shares for every 100
Ordinary Shares held by the Members (i.e. @ 25%).

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution, with or without modification, addition(s)
or deletion(s):

Resolved that pursuant to the requirements of Section 199 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2017,
Service Industries Limited (the Company) be and is hereby authorized to issue Cross Corporate Guarantees up to PKR 8
Billion (Rupees Eight Billion Only) in favor of financial institutions / lenders of Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited
(SLM), a subsidiary company, to secure financial assistance to be extended to SLM, for a period up to one (1) year starting
from the date of issuance of the guarantees subject to terms and conditions mentioned in the statement under Section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Further resolved that the commission to be charged by the Company to Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited on any
outstanding amount of issued Guarantee shall be 0.1% per quarter (exclusive of all applicable taxes) on the outstanding
amount of Guarantee.

Further resolved that the Chief Executive or any Director of the Company be and is hereby singly authorized to take any and
[ orall actions to implement and give effect to the above resolution and to complete any or all necessary required corporate
and legal formalities including signing and execution of agreement(s) for the purpose of implementation of the above
resolution.

Attached to this Notice circulated to the members, is a statement of material facts under Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017 pertaining to the Special Businesses to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Lahore WAHEED ASHRAF
June 26,2020 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from July 10, 2020 to July 17, 2020 (both days inclusive).
Transfers received in order by our Shares Registrar, M/s. Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model
Town, Lahore by the close of business on July 09,2020 will be considered in time for the purpose of entitlement of final cash
dividend and bonus shares to the transferees and to attend and vote at the AGM.

2. Amember of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another member as his
| her proxy to attend and vote in place of him / her at the meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the
Registered Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the time of meeting. A proxy must
be a member of the Company.

3. Inview of the recent spike in number of Covid-19 cases, gravity of the Coronavirus Pandemic on public health, increased
number of causalities and instructions of the Government / institutions to consider the provision of video link facility for
conducting meetings, the Annual General Meeting will be held virtually via video-link for the safety and well being of our
valued shareholders and general public.

To attend the AGM through video link, members are requested to register their following particulars by sending an e-mail at
shareholders@servis.com.

Folio / CDC No. of

Account No. shares held Name CNIC No. Cell No. Email address

The video link and login credentials will be shared with the shareholders whose e-mails, containing all the requested
particulars, are received at the given e-mail address by or before the close of business hours (5:00 p.m.) on July 10, 2020.
The shareholders are also encouraged to send their comments / suggestions, related to the agenda items of the AGM on the
above mentioned e-mail address or WhatsApp Number 0309 1560943 by the close of business hours (5:00 p.m.) July 10,
2020. For any query, the members may please contact at aforesaid email or WhatsApp Number.

4. In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to
pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled
shareholders. In order to receive dividends directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in Electronic
Credit Mandate Form available on Company's website www.servisgroup.com and send it duly signed along with a copy of
CNIC to the Shares Registrar of the Company M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town,
Lahore in case of physical shares. In case shares are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted
directly to shareholder's Broker/Participant/CDC Account Services.

The Government of Pakistan has made certain amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are
prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These rates are as follows:

For filers of income tax returns 15%
For non-filers of income tax returns 30%

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @15% instead of 30% all the shareholders
whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR, despite the fact that they
are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL before the date of payment of the cash dividend,
otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @30% instead of 15%.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

In the case of shares registered in the name of two or more shareholders, each joint-holder is to be treated individually as
either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted by the Company on the basis of shareholding of each joint-holder as may
be notified to the Company in writing. If the share is not ascertainable then each account holder will be assumed to hold
equal proportion of shares and the deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a
higher rate, the joint account holders are requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the Share Registrar
of the Company latest by the AGM date.

Folio/ CDC Name of . Total Principal/Joint
Account No. Shareholder CNIC Shareholding Shares Shareholder

The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) updated with their
respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the Company
or the Shares Registrar. The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote company
name and their respective folio numbers.

5. Avalid tax exemption certificate is necessary for exemption from the deduction of withholding tax under Section 150 of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Members who qualify under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and wish to seek an exemption
must provide a copy of their valid tax exemption certificate to the Shares Registrar prior to the date of book closure otherwise
tax will be deducted according to applicable law.

6. The Company has placed the Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 along with
Auditors and Directors Reports thereon and Chairman'’s Review Report on its website: www.servisgroup.com.

7. Members having physical shares are requested to immediately notify the change in their addresses, if any to our Shares
Registrar, whereas CDC account holders are requested to contact their CDC Participant / CDC Account Services.

8. For any query / problem / information, the investors may contact the Shares Registrar: Mr. Muhammad Akbar Moghal,
Phone No. 042-35839182, 35916714, 35916719, e-mail address: corplink786@gmail.com and / or the Company: Mr.
Tahir Magsood, Phone No. 042-35751990, email address: shareholders@servis.com.

STATEMENTUNDER SECTION 134(3) OFTHE COMPANIESACT, 2017 CONCERNINGTHE SPECIALBUSINESSESTO BETRANSACTED
ATTHE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Businesses to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held on July 17, 2020.

Item No. 4 of the Agenda - Issue of Bonus Shares to Members

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on June 25, 2020 have recommended issue of bonus shares in proportion of 25
Ordinary Shares for every 100 Ordinary Shares held by the Members (i.e. 25%) and decided that a sum of Rs. 46,987,450 be
appropriated from the free reserves for issue of 4,698,745 Bonus Shares. After the issue of bonus shares, the paid-up capital of
the Company will increase to Rs. 234,937,270. The Directors are of the opinion that the reserves of the Company are adequate
for capitalization of Rs. 46,987,450 for issue of proposed bonus shares.

The following resolution is proposed to be passed as Ordinary Resolution, with or without modification.
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"Resolved that

(i) Asum of Rs. 46,987,450 (Rupees forty six million nine hundred eighty seven thousand four hundred fifty) out of the
free reserves of the Company be capitalized and applied towards issue of 4,698,745 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each as
bonus shares in the proportion of 25 Ordinary Shares for every 100 Ordinary shares (i.e., @25%) held by every Member
whose name appears on the Members' Register at the close of business on July 09, 2020.

(ii) These bonus shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares but shall not be eligible for the final
cash dividend declared for the year ended December 31, 2019.

(iii) Members entitled to fractions of shares shall be given the sale proceeds of their fractional entitlements for which
purpose the fractions shall be consolidated into whole shares and sold on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

(iv) The Chief Executive Officer or any Director be and is hereby authorized to give effect to this resolution and to do or cause
to be done all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary or required for issue, allotment and distribution of the said
bonus shares, sale of fractions and payment of the sale proceeds of the fractional shares."

The Directors of the Company are not directly or indirectly interested in this special business except to the extent of entitlements
of bonus shares on their shareholdings.

Item No. 5 of the Agenda - Issuance of Cross Corporate Guarantees

Service Industries Limited ("SIL") entered into a Joint Venture Agreement with, Chaoyang Long March Tyre Co. Ltd, ("LM"), a
Chinese Company and Myco Corporation, Pakistan for setting up a Joint Venture Company in Pakistan for the manufacturing
of Truck and Bus radial category of tyres (“TBR Tyres"). Accordingly, a Joint Venture Company under the name of Service Long
March Tyres (Private) Limited (“SLM") was incorporated in Pakistan on January 07, 2020 with an authorized share capital of Rs.
10,000,000,000 (Rupees ten billion only) divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each. The Current paid-up capital
of the SLM is PKR 1,500,000,000 which is held by its following shareholders:

Service Industries Limited 51%
Chaoyang Long March Tyre Co., Ltd. 44%
Mr. Shabir Ahmad of Myco Corporation, Pakistan 5%

The project cost of the Joint Venture Company in Phase 1 is estimated to be US$ 100,000,000 i.e., equivalent to PKR 16 Billion,
which will be financed through equity and debt contributions equally. Hence the debt contribution in the Joint Venture Company
will be up to PKR 8 Billion.

To meet the collateral requirements of the Banks, SIL is required to provide Cross Corporate Guarantees of up to PKR 8 Billion
(Rupees Eight Billion Only) in favor of financial institutions / lenders of Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited for securing
financial assistance to be extended to SLM for a tenure up to 1 year.

The Directors have certified that they have carried out their due diligence for the proposed issuance of guarantees before
recommending it for members approval and financial health of subsidiary will be such that it will honor its commitments with
the financial institutions.

The signed recommendation of due diligence shall be made available to the members at the meeting. The subsidiary was
incorporated only on 07 January, 2020 hence no financial statements are available.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

The information required to be disclosed to the members under S.R.0 No. 1240(1)/2017 dated 06 December 2017 Companies
(Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations 2017, is as follows:

Ref. No. Requirement Information
(a) | Disclosure for all types of investments:
(A) Disclosure regarding associated company
() |Name of associated company or associated | Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited
undertaking
(ii) | Basis of relationship - Common Directorship
- Subsidiary company with 51% shareholding
(iii) | Earnings per share for the last three years Not applicable, Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited

was incorporated on 07 January 2020.

Break-up value per share, based on latest audited
financial statements

The subsidiary company was incorporated on 07 January 2020.

Financial position, including main items of statement
of financial position and profit and loss account on
the basis of its latest financial statements

The subsidiary company was incorporated on 07 January 2020.

In case of investment in relation to a project of
associated company or associated undertaking that
has not commenced operations, following further
information, namely

() Description of the project and its history
since conceptualization

SIL entered into a joint venture agreement with Chaoyang
Long March Tyre Co., Ltd., a Chinese Company and Myco
Corporation of Pakistan for setting up a production facility
in Pakistan ("Project") for the manufacturing and sale of
truck and bus radial category of tyres ("TBR Tyres"), to serve
the progressive demand of local as well as exports to other
countries. Pursuant to the Agreement, a Joint Venture
Company under the name and style of Service Long March
Tyres (Private) Limited was incorporated on January 07,
2020.

The total cost of the Project is estimated to be around
US$ 250,000,000 and the targeted production capacity is
2.4 million tyres per annum.

The Project will be set up in three phases.

In Phase 1, the production capacity of the Project will be 0.6
million tyres per annum which will be doubled to 1.2 million
tyres in Phase 2 and in Phase 3, the production capacity
would be further enhanced to 2.4 million tyres per annum.
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Starting date and expected date of
completion of work

The work on the project has been started in 1st quarter of
2020. The project work is expected to be completed in the
2nd Quarter of 2021.

Time by which such project shall become
commercially operational

Estimated by 2nd Quarter of 2021 approximately.

(IV) | Expected time by which the project shall | In financial year 2022/2023.
start paying return on investment
(V) | Funds invested or to be invested by the | The following funds have been invested by the promotors,

promoters, sponsors, associated company
orassociated undertaking distinguishing
between cash and non-cash amounts

sponsors and associated companies to date:

Service Industries Limited PKR 765,000,000
Chaoyang Long March Tyre Co., Ltd. PKR 660,000,000
Mr. Shabir Ahmad of Myco Corporation  PKR 75,000,000

(B) General Disclosures

Maximum amount of investment to be made

Cross Corporate Guarantee foran amount up to PKR 8 Billion
(Rupees Eight Billion Only).

(ii)

Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the investing
company and its members from such investment
and period of investment

To support the subsidiary for its joint venture project.

The completion of the Project of SLM will be beneficial for
SIL, the holding company, inter alia, in terms of dividend
which will enhance the profitability of SIL and add to its
shareholders value. SIL will also earn commission income
over the duration of guarantee.

(iii)

Sources of funds to be utilized for investment and
where the investment is intended to be made using
borrowed funds

Not applicable

(1) Justification for investment through
borrowings

Not applicable.

(In

Detail of Collateral, guarantees provided
and assets pledged for obtaining such funds

Not applicable.

(1)

Cost of benefit analysis

Not applicable.

(iv)

Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, with
associated company or associated undertaking with
regards to the proposed investment

Agreement will be executed before issuing the guarantee
with the terms and conditions as approved by the
shareholders.

The salient features of the agreement are as under:
1. SIL will issue Cross Corporate Guarantees up to PKR

8 Billion in favor of financial institutions / lenders on
behalf of SLM for a period upto one year.




Service Industries Limited

Notice of Annual General Meeting

2. Commission will be charged to SLM @ 0.1% per
quarter (exclusive of all applicable taxes) on the
outstanding amount of Guarantee.

3. The commission will be paid quarterly by SLM to SIL
within 30 days of the end of each quarter.

4. In case of delay in commission payment, SIL will
charge a penalty to SLM @ 8.50% per annum on the
unpaid commission amount for the period for which
the payment is delayed.

Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, majority
shareholders and their relatives, if any, in the associated
company or associated undertaking or the transaction
under consideration

The Directors, Chief Executive, Sponsors, majority
shareholders of SIL and their relatives have no interest,
directly or indirectly, in Service Long March Tyres (Private)
Limited or transactions under consideration, except in
their capacities as being Directors, Chief Executive and the
sponsors of Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited.

The Company is currently holding 51% shareholding in SLM.
Moreover, none of the Director of SIL hold any share in his
individual capacity in Service Long March Tyres (Private)

Limited.

Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited does not hold any
share in SIL.

Following are the present shareholdings of Directors in SIL:

Name of Director Shareholding
Chaudhry Ahmed Javed 824,906
Mr. Arif Saeed and his spouse 2,006,910
Mr. Omar Saeed 1,954,087
Mr. Hassan Javed 3,625,810
Mr. Osman Saifullah Khan 156
Mr. Rehman Naseem 1,250
Mr. Riaz Ahmed 4,000
Mr. Muhammad Amin 62

Out of above Directors of SIL, four Directors Chaudhry Ahmed
Javed, Mr. Arif Saeed, Mr. Omar Saeed and Mr. Hassan Javed
are also the Directors of Service Long March Tyres (Private)
Limited and they hold shares in SIL as stated above.
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(vi)

In case any investment in associated company or
associated undertaking has already been made,
the performance review of such investment
including complete information/justification for any
impairment or write offs

Service Industries Limited has already made an equity
investmentof US$ 4,954,021 equivalenttoRs. 765,000,000
in the subsidiary Company. Since the subsidiary company is
establishing a green field project, no performance review
is applicable and possible at this stage. Further, there is no
impairment or write off relating to the equity investment
made so far.

(vii)

Any other important details necessary for the
members to understand the transaction

None

(b)

Additional disclosure in case of Investments in the form Guarantees

(i)

Category-wise amount of investment

PKR 8 Billion (Rupees Eight Billion Only) as Cross Corporate
Guarantee.

Average borrowing cost of the investing company,
the Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) for the
relevant period, rate of return for Shariah compliant
products and rate of return for unfunded facilities, as
the case may be, for the relevant period

The current average borrowing cost of SIL for the 1st Quarter
ended March 31,2020 is 6.15% per annum.

3 Months KIBOR as on 17-06-2020 is 8.12% per annum.

SILis paying a commission in the range of 0.04% to 0.1%
per quarter to the Guarantee issuing financial institution.

(iii)

Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or commission
etc. to be charged by investing company

SIL shall charge SLM a commission of 0.1% per quarter
(exclusive of all applicable taxes) on the outstanding
amount of Guarantee to be paid within 30 days of the end
of each quarter.

(iv)

Particulars of collateral or security to be obtained in
relation to the proposed investment

Demand Promissory Note of the subsidiary company.

If the investment carries conversion feature i.e. it
is convertible into securities, this fact along with
terms and conditions including conversion formula,
circumstances in which the conversion may take
place and the time when the conversion may be
exercisable

Not Applicable

Repayment schedule and terms and conditions
of loans or advances to be given to the associated
company or associated undertaking

SIL shall recover the commission from SLM on quarterly
basis.
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Statement under Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings)

Regulations, 2017

Name of Investee Company

Service Long March Tyres (Private)
Limited

S2 Power Limited

Total Investment Approved

Long term equity investment up to
US$ 30,600,000 that is
equivalent to Rs. 4,738,410,000 for
purchase of 473,841,000 shares
was approved by the members in
EOGM held on February 03,2020 forthe
period of three (3) years.

Long term equity investment up to Rs.
25 million for purchase of 2,500,000
shares was approved by the members
in EOGM held on July 24, 2014 for the
period of three (3) years. The validity of
resolution for investment in S2 Power
Limited was extended, in the EOGM of
the Company held on July 28,2017, for
further three (3) years i.e., up to July 27,
2020.

Amount of Investment made to date

An investment of US$ 4,954,021 that is
equivalent to Rs. 765,000,000 has been
made so far by the Company.

An investment of Rs. 240,000 has been
made so far by the Company.

Reasons for deviations from the
approved timeline of . investment,
where investment decision was to be
implemented in a specified time

No deviation. The investment will be
made as and when funds are required
by the subsidiary Company.

The investment will be made as
and when funds are required by the
associated Company.

Material change in financial statements
of associated company or associated
undertaking since the date of the
resolution passed for approval of
investment in such company

There is no material change in the
financial statement of the company since
the date of passing of special resolution.

As per audited financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2018 the
balance sheet size was Rs. 3, loss after tax
was Rs. 125,522 and loss per share was
Rs. 2.51. As per latest audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30,
2019 the balance sheet size is Rs. 2,447,
loss after tax is Rs. 166,306 and loss per
shareis Rs. 3.33.

Information under Regulation 3(4) of the Regulations.

The documents relating to special business can be inspected by the shareholders in the general meeting as provided
under Regulation 3(4) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings)

Regulations, 2017.
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" Without
continual
growth and
progress,
such words as
iImprovement,
achievement,
and success have
no meaning.”

- Benjamin Franklin
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Board of Directors

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Mr. Arif Saeed

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Hassan Javed Mr. Muhammad Amin
Director Director

Mr. Osman Saifullah Khan Mr. Rehman Naseem
Director Director

Mr. Omar Saeed

Director

Mr. Riaz Ahmed
Director

Mr. Shahid Hussain Jatoi
Director
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Group Executive Committee

Mr. Arif Saeed

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Arif Saeed graduated from Oxford
University. He has served as the CEO of
Dar Es Salaam Textile Mills Limited from
1992 to 2006. He has also been Chairman
of the All Pakistan Textile Mills Association
(APTMA) and the Lahore Stock Exchange,
and served on the Board of Sui Northemn
Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL). Mr. Saeed
has been the founder Chairman of Quaid
e Azam Solar Power Company, Punjab
Thermal Power Company and National
Power Parks Management Company
(Private) Limited which altogether
successfully set up four leading power

plants in the public sector.

Mr. Omar Saeed

Director

Mr. Omar Saeed graduated with high
honors from Brown University and did his
Master's in Business Administration from
Harvard Business School.

Omar has recently been appointed Chief
Executive Officer of Service Long March
Tyres (Private) Limited, a Joint Venture
between Service Industries Limited and
Chaoyang Long March Tyre Co., Ltd.
Additionally, Omar serves as the Chief
Executive Officer of Servis Foundation.

Omar has served as the Chief Executive
Officer of Service Industries Limited (SIL)
from 20110 2018. Under his stewardship,
SIL won the highly prestigious Pakistan
Stock Exchange Top 25 Companies Award
forthe years 2011,2013,2014 and 2015.
Prior to that, Omar was responsible for
building Servis into Pakistan's largest
footwear retailer, with 500 stores and
more than PKR 12 Billion in annual
revenues. He founded Ovex Technologies
(Private) Limited in 2004, which went on
to become one of Pakistan’s leading call
center companies before the business was
soldin2011.

He has served on the Boards of various
private and public companies in the past.
Omar has also been an adjunct faculty
member of LUMS where he taught
entrepreneurship.

Mr. Hassan Javed

Director

Mr. Hassan Javed is a leather technologist
from Nene College United Kingdom and
Shoe Technologist from ISMS School
Czech Republic. He is a Director of Service
Industries Limited. Mr. Javed also served
Service Industries Limited in various
capacities most notably as the Resident
Director of Guijrat for more than fifteen
years. He served as the Chairman, Board of
Directors of Gujranwala Electricity Supply
Company. He serves as a Director of
Standard Spinning Mills (Private) Limited.
He has also served as the chairman
of Pakistan Footwear Manufacturers
Association for a year.
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Value Added and its Distribution

2019 2018
(Rsin'000) %

Wealth Generated
Sales 26,156,201 24,080,265
Otherincome 332,450 262,420
Bought-in-material & services (19,711,097) (17,993,127)

6,777,554 100 6,349,558 100
Wealth Distributed
To Employees
Remuneration, benefits, and facilities 3,847,946 57 3,897,236 61
To Government
Taxation 186,661 3 143,978 2
Workers welfare fund 21,899 0 8,302
To Society
Donation 49,705 1 48,605 1
To Lenders
Dividend 616,474 9 264,634 4
Mark up &finance cost 1,123,589 17 588,940 9
Retained for Reinvestment & Future Growth
Depreciation 660,075 10 600,011 9
Amortization 1,315 0 1,179 0
Retained profit 269,890 4 796,673 13
Unappropriated profit, depreciation & amortization 931,280 14 1,397,863 22

6,777,554 100 6,349,558 100

The 2019 figures excludes financials of Muridke Footwear Undertaking for the six months, July 2019 to December 2019, in accordance with the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangements and Reconstruction entered between Service Industries Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary, Service Global Footwear Limited, sanctioned by Lahore High
Court, Lahore on 15 January 2020.
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Wealth Generated and Distributed

2019 ”

@ Bought-in-material & services 19,711,097 74.41
@ To Employees 3,847,946 14.53
@ To Government 208,560 0.79
@ To Society 49,705 0.19
© To Llenders 1,740,063 6.57
Retained for Reinvestment

& Future Growth 931,280 3.52
Total 26,488,651 100

2018 oo |

@ Bought-in-material & services 17,993,127 73.88

To Employees 3,897,236 17.18

To Government 152,280 0.71

To Society 48,605 0.22

To Lenders 853,574 3.59
Retained for Reinvestment

& Future Growth 1,397,863 4.42

Total 24,342,685 100

The 2019 figures excludes financials of Muridke Footwear Undertaking for the six months, July 2019 to December 2019, in accordance with the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangements and Reconstruction entered between Service Industries Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary, Service Global Footwear Limited, sanctioned by Lahore High
Court, Lahore on 15 January 2020.
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Balance Sheet Composition

Fixed and Current Assets
2019

@ Property, Plantand equipment 31%
@ Right-of-use assets 7%
@ long term investments 14%
@ Long term loans and deposits 1%
Stores and spares 1%
Stock in trade 22%
Trade debts - net 15%
Advances and prepayments 3%
Other receivables 6%
Cash and bank balances 0%

Property, Plant and equipment 38%
Right-of-use assets 0%
Long term investments 3%
Long term loans and deposits 1%
@ Stores and spares 1%
@ Stockin trade 23%
@ Trade debts - net 18%
@ Advances and prepayments 3%
@ Other receivables 13%
@ Cash and bank balances 0%

Equities and Liabilities

@ Equity &reserves 30%
@ Long term financing 14%
Non current liabilities 8%
Current liabilities 48%

Equity & reserves 31%
Long term financing 14%
@ Non cunrent liabilities 3%
@ Cunent liabilities 52%

The 2019 figures excludes financials of Muridke Footwear Undertaking for the six months, July 2019 to December 2019, in accordance with the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangements and Reconstruction entered between Service Industries Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary, Service Global Footwear Limited, sanctioned by Lahore High
Court, Lahore on 15 January 2020.
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Analytical Review

Current Assets Fixed Assets and Right-of-use Asset Current Liabilities
Rupees in million Rupees in million Rupees in million

o 0000 o0 O 0O 0O O

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Long Term Liabilites Reserve Contribution to Exchequer
Rupees in million Rupees in million Rupees in million
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The 2019 figures excludes financials of Muridke Footwear Undertaking for the six months, July 2019 to December 2019, in accordance with the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangements and Reconstruction entered between Service Industries Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary, Service Global Footwear Limited, sanctioned by Lahore High
Court, Lahore on 15 January 2020.



EBITDA Margins to Sales

in percentage

10% 1%

Earning per share
Rupees

66.27

50. 3/\47]2

56 47

47.16
(]

Annual Report 2019

Breakup Value

Rupees
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The 2019 figures excludes financials of Muridke Footwear Undertaking for the six months, July 2019 to December 2019, in accordance with the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangements and Reconstruction entered between Service Industries Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary, Service Global Footwear Limited, sanctioned by Lahore High
Court, Lahore on 15 January 2020.
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Six Years at a Glance
Description EECTIE ST T T

Rupees in million

Sales 26,156 24,080 20,898 18,984 17,545 16,495
Gross profit 4,884 4,333 3,563 3,776 3,016 2,712
Profit before tax 1,073 1,205 1,042 1,469 1,267 944
Profit after tax 886 1,061 897 1,245 946 773
Share capital 188 120 120 120 120 120
Share holder's equity 5,741 5516 4,747 4,384 3,603 2,964
Property, plant & equipment 6,117 6,946 5,957 4,746 3,383 2,985
Total assets 19,519 18,121 15,885 12,697 10,243 8,866
Net current assets (160) 1,044 1,123 562 1,061 998
Market Value Per Share (Rs.) 771 725 750 1,497 850 975
Dividend (%)

Cash - Interim 125 - 85 150 125 100
Cash - Final 75 300 220 265 250 150
Bonus Shares 50 25

Profitability (%)
Gross Profit 18.67 17.99 17.05 19.89 17.19 16.44
ofit Before Tax 410 5.01 498 7.74 1.22 5.72

ax 6.56 5.39 4.69
holders

33.52 35.16 31.86

28.41 26.25 26.09

66.27 50.32 41.14

22.59 16.90 23.70

1.50 1.7 1.86

4.00 5.19 5.53

5.58 5.24 5.35

7.20 5.00 3.85

1.08 1.20 1.22

364.45 299.54 246.40

790 1.84 1.99
23:77 27:13

eme of Compromises,
ed by Lahore High
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Horizontal Analysis
il

Rs'000 GOLY%  Rs'000 GOLY%  Rs'000 GOLY%  Rs'000 GOLY% — Rs'000 GOLY%

Balance Sheet
Equity & Reserve 5,741,208 41 5,516,165 162 4,746,761 8.3 4,383,940 N7 3,603,069 146
Long term financing 2,770,768 59 2,617,155 76 2431930 1437 998,021 13.2 881,850 (8.0)
Non Current Liabilities 1639506 2124 524871 (3.1) 541,668 368 396,060 14.1 346,996 5.1
Current Liabilities 9,367,141 1.0 9,462,932 159 8,164,511 180 6,918,703 219 5,411,403 173
19,518,623 77 18121,123 141 15884870 251 12696724 240 10243318 155
Non Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment 6117464 119 6,946,303 166 5957312 255 4,745,935 403 3,382,700 133
Right-of-use assets 1,403,090 100% - - - -
Intangible Assets 2,688 49 2,562 1758 929 (65.8) 2,720 (51.8) 5,640 (303)
Long term investments 2,668,005 3852 49917 34 521,603 39.5 313,855 19.6 323,520 584
Long term loans & deposits 120,664 45 115,460 (14) 117,155 255 93,387 517 59,235 23
Current Assets
Stores, Spares and Loose Tools 252,240 58.2 159415 302 122467 2.2 100,205 (125) 114570 6.0
Stock in-trade 4,247,068 50 4044171 32 3907187 435 2,729,738 04 2,719,856 44
Trade Debts 301121 85 3,300,338 180 2797402 12.7 2,483 211 62.6 1,527,479 (7.0)
Loans, Advances & Receivables 390886 -15.7 463,549 56.9 295,456 08 293,228 255 233,611 510
Tradle Deposits and Prepayments 131,628 408 93,469 (29.1) 131,883 538 85,769 18 76,719 3427
Other Receivables 1,125,266 -530 2392179 230 1,944,231 332 1,460,044 9.0 1,340,082 258
(Cash and Cash Equivalents 38503 284 53,761 (32.1) 79,184 (64.8) 224,887 (511) 459847 23935
19,518,623 7.7 18121123 14.1 15,884,870 25.1 12,696,724 24,0 10,243,318 15.5
s
Rs'000 GOLY%  Rs'000 GOLY%  Rs'000 GOLY%  Rs'000 GOLY%  Rs'000 GOLY %
Profit & Loss
Net Sales 26,156,201 8.0 24,080,265 152 20,898,174 10.1 18,984,428 8.2 17,544,736 04
Cost of Sales 21,271,958 11 19,747,583 139 17,335,541 140 15,208,729 4.7 14,528,670 54
(Gross Profit 4,884,243 9.1 4,332,682 N6 3562633 (5.6) 3775699 25.2 3,016,066 1.2
Administration and selling expenses 3,020,079 78 2,800,877 104 2,536,846 169 2,169,555 292 1,678,801 8.1
Otherincome 312202 4568 198,491 (44.5) 357,867 2579 99,996 (59.4) 246,158 1096
Operating profit 2,176,366 258 1,730,296 687 1,025,787 (36.1) 1,606,144 20.1% 1,337,265 154
Financial charges 1,123,589 908 588,940 723 341,885 43 236,845 (25.1) 316,416 (4.6)
Share of profit 20248 (68.3) 63929 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - -
Profit before taxation 1073025 (11.0) 1,205,285 15.7% 1,041,769 29) 1,469,295 16.0 1,267,007 342
Provision for taxation 186,001 29.6 143,978 (0.7) 144,954 (35.2) 223,808 (30.3) 321,160 81.6
Profit after taxation 886,364 (16.5) 1,061,307 183 896,815 (28.0) 1,245,487 N7 945,847 223

The 2019 figures excludes financials of Muridke Footwear Undertaking for the six months, July 2019 to December 2019, in accordance with the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangements and Reconstruction entered between Service Industries Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary, Service Global Footwear Limited, sanctioned by Lahore High
Court, Lahore on 15 January 2020.
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Vertical Analysis
s

Rs'000  CONTR.‘% Rs'000  CONTR.%  Rs'000  CONTR.%  Rs'000  CONTR.%  Rs'000  CONTR.%

Balance Sheet
Equity & Reserve 5,741,208 294 5,516,165 304 4746761 299 4,383,940 345 3,603,069 352
Long term financing 2,770,768 14.2 2,617,155 144 2431930 15.3 998,021 79 881,850 8.6
Non Current Liabilities 1,639,506 84 524,871 29 541,668 34 396,060 31 346,996 34
Currgnt Liabilities 9,367,141 480 9,462,932 52 816451 514 6,918,703 54.5 5411403 528
19,518,623  100.0 18,121,123 1000 15,884,870 100.0 12,696,724  100.0 10,243,318  100.0
Non Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment 6,117,464 N3 6,946,303 383 5957312 315 4,745,935 374 3,382,700 330
Right-of-use assets 1,403,090 12 ° 0.0% : 0.0% ° 0.0% ° 0.0%
Intangible Assets 2,688 0.0 2,562 0.0 929 0.0 2720 0.0 5,640 0.1
Long term investments 2,008,005 137 549917 30 521,663 33 373,855 29 323,520 32
Long term loans & deposits 120,664 0.6 115,460 0.6 117,155 0.7 93,387 0.7 59,235 0.6
Current Assets
Stores, Spares and Loose Tools 252,240 13 159415 09 122,467 08 100,205 08 114,570 1.1
Stock in-trade 4,247,068 N8 4,044171 23 3917187 17 2,729,738 N5 2,719,856 26.6
Trade Debts 3021121 155 3,300,338 182 2797402 17.6 2,483 211 19.6 1,521,419 149
Loans, Advances & Receivables 390,886 20 463,549 26 295,456 19 293,228 23 233,671 23
Trade Deposits and Prepayments 131,628 0.7 93,469 0.5 131,883 08 85,769 0.7 76,719 0.7
Other receivables 1,125,266 58 2,392,178 133 1944231 12.2 1,460,044 15 1,340,082 131
Short term Investments - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 103,745 08 - 0.0
(Cash and Cash Equivalents 38503 0.2 53,761 03 79,185 0.5 224,887 18 459,847 45
19,518,623  100.0 18,121,123 100.0 15,884,870 100.0 12,696,724  100.0 10,243,318  100.0
i
Rs'000  CONTR.% Rs'000  CONTR.% Rs ‘000 CONTR. % Rs 000 CONTR.%  Rs'000 CONTR. %
Profit & Loss
Net Sales 26156201 1000 24,080,265 1000 20,898,174 1000 18,984,428 1000 17544736 1000
Cost of Sales 21,271,958 813 19747583 815 17335541 830 15,208,729 801 14528670 828
(Gross Profit 4,884,243 18.7 4,332,682 185  3562,633 17.0 3,775,699 19.9 3,016,066 17.2
Administration and selling expenses 3020079 115 2800877 116 2536846 121 2,169,9%5 114 1,678,801 9.6
Otherincome 312,202 12 198,491 08 357,867 17 99,996 0.5 246,158 14
Operating profit 2,176,366 83 1,730,296 12 1,025,781 49 1,606,144 8.5 1,337,265 16
Finandial charges 1,123,589 43 588,940 24 341,885 16 236,845 12 316,416 18
Share of profit 20,248 0.1 63929 03 : 0.0 . 0.0 . 0.0
Profit before taxation 1,073,025 41 1,205,285 50 1,041,769 50 1,469,295 1. 1,267,007 1.
Provision for taxation 186,661 0.7 143978 0.6 144,954 0.7 223,808 12 321,160 18
Profit after taxation 886,364 34 1,061,307 44 896,815 43 1,245,487 6.6 945,847 5.4

The 2019 figures excludes financials of Muridke Footwear Undertaking for the six months, July 2019 to December 2019, in accordance with the Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangements and Reconstruction entered between Service Industries Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary, Service Global Footwear Limited, sanctioned by Lahore High
Court, Lahore on 15 January 2020.
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Chairman’s Review

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present to you the
Annual Report of Service Industries Limited ("the Company”) showing
overall performance of the Company and effectiveness of the leadership
in attaining the Company's aims and objectives for the year ended
December 31,2019.

| am pleased to report that the performance of the Board remained
par excellence throughout the year and their contributions effectively
steered the Company towards achievement of its objectives and
creation of new benchmarks, while maintaining its reputation for good
governance and providing steady returns to our shareholders.

The Company has a nine (9) member Board of Directors (“the Board")
which comprises of individuals with diverse background having core
competencies, knowledge and experience relevant to the business of
the Company. The Composition of the Board and its Committees is in
accordance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

The Board has developed a mechanism for annual evaluation of
Board's own performance, members of the Board and its Committees
in compliance with the provisions of Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019. The performance evaluation
mechanism also ensures that all statutory and legal requirements are
fulfilled with regard to procedures, meetings and oversight role of the
Board.

During the financial year 2019, the Board successfully achieved targets
and objectives set for the growth of the Company by performing the
following functions:

 Ensured effective and robust oversight.

e Supervised overall corporate strategy, key financial
performance indicators and other budgetary targets.

o Ensured the quality and appropriateness of financial reporting and
the transparency of disclosures.

e (Carried out risk assessment especially relating to regulatory and
legal requirements, market trends, materials' supply and price,
energy availability and cost, foreign exchange fluctuations, interest
rate and liquidity.

* Reviewed effectiveness of internal control system.

e Evaluated the significant investments.

* Reviewed details of financing facilities availed by the Company.

e Ensured timely dissemination of price sensitive and inside
information to relevant regulatory authorities.

The Board of the company is fully committed to add value to the
shareholders' wealth. Consistent with our commitment to provide
steady returns to our shareholders, the Board is pleased to propose a
final cash dividend of Rs. 7.50 per share and bonus shares of @ 25%.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed
Chairman

June 25,2020
Lahore
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

The Board of Directors of Service Industries Limited (SIL) is pleased
to present to you its Annual Report along with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,2019 ("FY
2019").

The Directors' Report has been prepared in accordance with section
227 of the Companies Act, 2017. This report is to be submitted to the
members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
on 17 July 2020.

We are pleased to report that the core manufacturing operations of
the Company have shown significantly improved performance in a
challenging and competitive environment. We continue to believe that
both Pakistan's Footwear and Tyre Industries have great potential for
growth.

In 2019, the Company continued to operate in challenging
circumstances amid trade disputes between the largest trading
countries in the world, uncertainly surrounding Brexit and Pakistan's
own current account deficit problems. After a 26% devaluation in 2018,
the Pakistan Rupee lost its value against the US Dollar by a further 12%
in 2019. However, the overall effect of the devaluation was a gradual
but certain improvement in the current account, largely on the back of
import suppression. Your Company is reasonably diversified, and has
significant export business in the footwear division, and increasingly
also in tyres and tubes.

Economic growth was subdued which affected our local businesses in
the shape of lower motorcycle and tractor sales (down 22% and 38%
respectively in 2019 compared with 2018). Footwear retail sales, both
for our Company and for our customers showed hardly any growth over
the previous year. Against this backdrop your Company was able to
achieve a 24% growth in sales from Rs 24.230 billion in 2018 to Rs
30.058 billion in 2019 in its consolidated financial statements.

The company performed well by delivering revenue growth in spite of
the challenging environment and managed a healthy profitability in
both Footwear and Tyre Divisions against last year.

Scheme of Compromises, Arrangements and
Reconstruction

In accordance with the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and
Reconstruction (under section 279 to 283 and 285 of the Companies
Act, 2017 entered between SIL and its wholly owned subsidiary, Service
Global Footwear Limited (SGFL), approved by the shareholders of SIL
and shareholders of SGFL on 14 December 2019 and sanctioned by the
Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore vide its order dated 15 January 2020,
the undertaking comprising the assets, liabilities, rights, entitlements and
obligations of SIL has been splitinto two (2) separate segments i.e. Muridke
Footwear Undertaking and Retained Undertaking. The segment comprising
all the assets, liabilities, rights, entitlements and obligations of Muridke

Footwear Plant has been carved out/ bifurcated from SILand stand merged
| amalgamated with, transferred to, vested in, and be assumed by SGFL
with effect from 01 July 2019 against issuance of shares by SGFL to SILin
accordance with the Scheme.

This bifurcation / merger / amalgamation will allow SIL to act as a Holding
Company in respect of SGFL and to oversee, supervise and control the
same (to the extent applicable). The managements of SIL and SGFL shall
independently operate the businesses on a regular basis. This structure will
result in the businesses being managed and carried out in a more effective
and efficient manner, thus benefitting the shareholders.

The Financial Statements of SIL for the year ended December 31, 2019
have been prepared in accordance with the sanctioned scheme. Hence,
the financial results of Muridke Footwear Plant for the six months (July to
December 2019) are not included in the financial statements of SIL. These
financial results have been included in the separate financial statements
of SGFL. Since SGFL is a wholly owned subsidiary of SIL, the consolidated
financials of SILand its subsidiaries will reflect these results.

Below you will find a comparison between "SILfinancial results of 2018" and
"SIL financial results of 2019 minus financial results of Muridke Footwear
Plant for July to December 2019". The comparison of consolidated financial
results of SILand its subsidiaries of 2018 with consolidated financial results
of SlLand its subsidiaries of 2019 is also given below.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for FY 2019 v/s FY 2018

Please find below key performance indicators of separate financials of
Service Industries Limited (including financials of Muridke Footwear
Undertaking for six months only i.e. January 2019 to June 2019) for the
year ended December 31, 2019.

Particulars FY2019 FY2018 Percentage
Rs'000 Rs'000 Change
Restated
Net Sales 26,156,201 24,080,265 9%
Operating profit 2,176,366 1,730,296 26%
Profit before tax 1,073,025 1,205,285 11%
Net profit after tax 886,364 1,061,307 -16%

Please find below key performance indicators of consolidated financials of
Semvice Industries Limited and its Subsidiaries (including SGFL) for the year
ended December 31,2019.



Particulars FY2019 FY2018 Percentage
Rs'000 Rs'000 Change
Restated
Net Sales 30,058,321 24,229,643 24%
Operating profit 2,615,818 1,668,450 57%
Profit before tax 1,586,621 1,176,802 35%
Net profit after tax 1,359,009 1,029,697 32%

Export Footwear

Footwear Export Business of SIL showed impressive growth in revenue
and profitability as compared to last year, as a result of our strategy of
investing in diversification of our export customer base and in business
development.

The combined export revenue of SILand SGFLincreased by 35% in the
year ended December 31,2019 as compared to the previous year. We
also enhanced production capacity by 14% in 2019 to 3.2 million pairs.
Our Muridke plant also earned the status of an Export Oriented Unit
(EOU), taking advantage of the government's export facilitation scheme
of duty and import tax exemption. This will result in significant savings
and improve our cash flows.

The benefits of investment in diversifying our customer base resulted
in adding a renowned US men's footwear brand to our customer list.
The scale of the opportunity in the US market has led us to invest in
additional production capacity and manpower in 2019.

Our core strength is in-house product development to cater the demand
of new markets and the fast-changing retail landscape of the world.
This facility helps us participate prominently in international fairs, and
in developing new markets. This is an essential part of our strategy to
develop new customers and continue to grow our export sales.

Domestic Footwear

Our domestic footwear sales showed a slight increase as compared to
last year. We are looking towards broadening our domestic customer
base. Product development and innovation will be our main focus for
reviving growth in domestic manufacturing. Management is focused
on increasing corporate sales emphasizing mainly on sales to law
enforcing agencies of Pakistan which have become an increasingly
important customer of SILin recent years.

In our retail business, we faced a slight decline in the top line which can
be associated with the eroding purchasing power of the consumer and
price escalation driven by rising inflation. Some of the measures taken
for enhancing retail business helped us in achieving cash break even at
shop level. These include increase in intake margin by price increases
and product localization, staff rationalization to enhance sales force
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productivity and rental re-negotiations wherever possible.

The wholesale business was able to sustain its profitability through a
strong product portfolio. Gross margin improvement through product
localization was one of the key areas of focus in year 2019 for this
business. Due to the slowdown in the economy, debt collection
remained a challenge in 2019.

Tyre Division

Tyre Division, as the major revenue contributor, has shown a top line
growth of almost 27% in 2019 with a better profitability compared
to 2018. In the aftermath of an election year, 2019 witnessed its own
set of economic challenges including current account deficit, an IMF
bailout package with conditions leading to massive inflation, balance
of payment crisis and continued rupee devaluation. Another challenge
faced by the Tyre division was inclusion of tyres and tubes in the Third
Schedule of Sales Tax Act 1990 by the Federal Board of Revenue. There
was also widespread uncertainty due to the condition of mentioning
CNIC number on all sales above Rs 50,000. Despite these challenges,
our Tyre Division strategically managed its market position and
capitalized on the brand image of Servis Tyres.

The agricultural tyre production facility went online in 2019, and at
the time of writing, our products have been very well received in the
market. This new product line will help us continue to grow our topline
and also improve our profitability. The addition of Ultra-Light Truck (ULT)
and AGRI Tyre segments will also help us to capitalize on the more
profitable segments of the market.

Earning Per Share (EPS)

The earnings per share of the Company stood at PKR 47.16 during the
year ended 31st December as compared to PKR 56.47 during last year
reflecting a decrease of 16.49%. This decrease in EPS is primarily due to
the presentation of financial statements of SIL in accordance with the
approved Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction
entered between SILand SGFL, wherein the financial results of Muridke
Footwear Plant for the six months from July 2019 to December 2019
are not included in the separate Financial Statements of SIL but are
included in the separate financial statements of SGFL(and subsequently
reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements of SIL).
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

Price Earning Ratio & Earning per Share

hares in

Evaluation of Company’s Performance

The Board has developed a mechanism of regular performance
evaluation. Every member of the Board ensures his active participation
in all the meetings of the Board. Detailed discussions are held on
strategic matters and clear directions are provided to the management,
which are regularly monitored by the Board and its Committees.

For the purpose of evaluating the performance of the Company, the
management uses various indicators that include industry growth,
position of peer companies in the business segment where the
company operates, prior years' performance, macroeconomic indicators
and business environment impacting the Company.

Budgets are formulated and actual performance is measured against
the budget at regular intervals during the year so that remedial action
could be taken on a timely basis. This exercise is carried out for both the
business segments of the Company.

The Board ensures that the Company adopts the best practices of
Corporate Governance. The Board also reviews performance of business
segments at each quarter with an aim to improve the low performing
segments and at the same time further opportunities of growth are
emphasized in all profitable segments.

ash Flows & Capital Expenditure

pmpany's cash requirements for working capital are managed
gh internal cash generation with some reliance on external
pital Expenditure, financing is done through banks

ons. The cash flow and funding requirements

he company continuously re-invests its

d levels of investments in business

ash outflows from operations

n.in the year ended 2019

in the last year. The
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“ All change is not growth,
as all movement is not
~ forward."”

% - Ellen Glasgow
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

Risks, Uncertainties and Mitigations.

The Company's overall risk management program focuses on minimizing
potential adverse effects on the Company's performance. Company's
senior management team carries out the overall risk management for
the Company and the results are shared with the Board of Directors.
This entails identifying, evaluating and addressing strategic, financial,
commercial and operational risks to which our company is exposed.

A senior management team also carries out intensive budgeting and
planning exercise including SWOT analysis of the Company and its
business segments. On the basis of the same, key challenges are
addressed and opportunities identified, action plans developed and
executed to achieve the long term strategic objectives of the Company.

Environment, Health and Safety (Ehs)

SIL has taken certain initiatives to provide a safe, healthy and ethical
environment for all internal stakeholders like employees, customers
and shareholders associated with the company.

a) Asia’s First Solar Powered Footwear Factory

In September 2017, SIL Muridke completed the installation of a
1MW Solar Power Park, spread over four acres of land, consisting
of 3,125 solar panels with an annual power generation of 1,500
MWh, becoming the first solar powered footwear factory in Asia. The
initiative is equivalent to planting 100 trees daily, reducing carbon
dioxide emissions by 730 tons annually. This initial step on the road
to go green gives SIL's customers the benefit to market their products
as eco-friendly in an increasingly environmentally conscious global
population.

b) Industrial Relations

SIL is Business Social Compliance Initiative (BSCI) certified,
promoting workplace conditions in accordance with human rights,
ILO conventions and national labor law. Additionally, SIL has been
a member of SEDEX Global since 2015, ensuring our dedication to
driving improvements in responsible and ethical business practices
inthe global supply chain and providing over 10,000 employees the
best working conditions for increased productivity.

¢) Employment of females and persons with disability
SILis proud to be an equal opportunity employer and encourages
the participation of females and persons with special needs in
the workforce. SIL has taken steps to create a work environment
conducive to females by dedicating separate production lines in
both Gujrat and Muridke Footwear factories, employing 410+
females currently.

d) Occupational Safety and Health
Our procedures have been gauged to provide a safe, clean, injury
and illness-free environment to our employees. SIL has obtained

OHSAS 1800:2007 Occupational Health and Safety Management
Certification, an international standard providing a framework to
identify, control and decrease the risks associated with health and
safety within the workplace.

e) Consumer Protection Measures
SIL is 1SO 9001:2008 certified, ensuring a Quality Management
System focused on consistently providing products that meet
customers and applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.
SlLis also a member of SATRA Technologies since 2010 who conduct
research and tests on footwear and leather products to ensure that
the product is comfortable, safe, performs well and is durable.

f) Business Ethics and Anti-Corruption Measures

We have a commitment of conducting our business with honesty
and integrity and in full compliance with applicable laws and
requlations. Our Statement of Ethics & Business Practices states that
"It is the Company's policy to conduct its operations in accordance
with the highest business ethical considerations, to comply with all
statutory regulations and to conform to the best accepted standards
of good corporate citizenship.”

g) Contribution to National Exchequer
SIL has a significant annual contribution to the national exchequer
on account of taxes, duties and levies. In 2019, SIL contributed PKR
1,155 million on this account.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

SILis a socially conscious business entity. Its tradition of charity giving
is as old as the company itself. Over the past five decades, SIL has
been involved in significant philanthropic undertakings in health and
education.

In late 2018, SIL decided to consolidate the delivery of this work by
establishing its own independent corporate foundation by the name of
Servis Foundation (SF). During 2019, as SF operationalized, it set out
into becoming the custodian and implementer of all institutional CSR
contributions of the Company. SF, as SIL's philanthropic arm, will deliver
SIL's CSR goals through a programmatic and targeted mechanism.

During the year, the Company contributed PKR 49.7 million on account
of CSR activities in various sectors.
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Growth is a spiral

process, doubling back

on itself, reassessing
and regrouping.

- Julia Margaret Cameron
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Contribution to CSR
0.2%

37.0%

m Medical Education Others

COMPANY'S FUTURE OUTLOOK

We are hopeful that the Company's ability to deliver strong, profitable
growth by driving a robust investment strategy, supported by conducive
customer-oriented needs will help the Company to accelerate growth.
Management at SILis truly committed to delivering strong shareholder
value in tough economic environment in Pakistan. The strength of our
Brands coupled with the unique mix of talent and capability that we add
to the market makes us well positioned to continue as a leader in both
Footwear and Tyre business.

COVID-19

The COVID-19 outbreak has developed rapidly in 2020. The pandemic
has not only resulted in significant number of infections but has also
adversely impacted the global economy. The Punjab Government
through Notification NO. SO (IS-Il) dated March 23, 2020 ordered
lockdown in entire province giving exemptions to specific institutes
and industries. The management of your Company has established
crisis management team. This team is analyzing the situation on daily
basis and taking prompt actions to implement all possible preventive
measures and to ensure continuity of business operations. During this
time, your Company has endeavored to maintain business performance
despite slowed down economic activity.

In current COVID 19 pandemic and rising competition in segments of
Service Industries limited, the Company would continue its efforts to
ensure business continuity while continuing to focus on employee well-
being and following all public health guidelines.

EQUITY INVESTMENT IN SERVICE LONG MARCH
TYRES (PRIVATE) LIMITED.

SIL entered into a Joint Venture Agreement with, Chaoyang Long
March Tyre Co. Ltd, (“LM"), a Chinese Company and Myco Corporation,
Pakistan for setting up a Joint Venture Company in Pakistan for the

manufacturing and sale of Truck and Bus radial category of all steel
tyres (“TBR Tyres") on November 18, 2019. Accordingly, a Joint Venture
Company under the name of Service Long March Tyres (Private) Limited
("SLM") was incorporated in Pakistan on January 07, 2020 with an
authorized share capital of Rs. 10,000,000,000 (Rupees ten billion only)
divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each. The current
paid-up capital of the SLM is PKR 1,500,000,000 which is held by the
shareholders in the following proportion:

Service Industries Limited 51%
Chaoyang Long March Tyre Co., Ltd. 44%
Mr. Shabir Ahmad (Myco Corporation) 5%

The total cost of the Project is estimated to be USD 250 million and the
targeted production capacity is 2.4 million tyres per annum.

The project is expected to be installed in following Phases:

o Phase I: The Project will commence with a production capacity of
0.6 million tyres per annum with an investment of around USD
100 million.

J Phase 2: The Project capacity will be doubled to 1.2 million tyres
perannum with a further investment of around USD 50 million.

. Phase 3: Production capacity would be gradually increased to
2.4 million tyres per annum with further investment of around
USD 100 million. This is the size of the plant which is mandatory
to achieve sustainable economic viability & to go deep in the
global market and also to compete with big giants from China
as well as around the globe.

SLM is the first TBR tyres manufacturing and research-based Project of
its kind in Pakistan with complete transfer of technology right from the
commencement of the Project.

The Project will be set up on land measuring 50 acres in Sindh Industrial
Trading Estate (“S.I.T.E"), Nooriabad, Sindh. Commercial production of
the Project is tentatively expected to commence in the second quarter
of 2021. The Project is expected to export around 85 % of the total
production capacity to other countries all over the world.

The shareholders of the Company in their Extraordinary General Meeting
(EOGM) held on February 03, 2020 authorized the company to make an
equity investment of USD 30.60 million in equivalent Pakistan rupees
in SLM.To date, the Company has made an equity investment of Rs. 765
million in SLM.



ADHERENCE TO BEST PRACTICES OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Company is determined to meet and wherever possible, exceed
in all legal and ethical requirements and to conduct all businesses
according to the highest professional and ethical standards and
practices. The Board defines a path of continuous improvement
constantly challenging existing processes. It also requires the Company
to embrace change so that the Company is in the right place when new
opportunities open. This also means attracting the best talent in the
marketplace and giving them the skills and opportunities, they need to
become high achievers. The Company constantly reviews its portfolio to
provide answers to society's most vital challenges, enabling it to create
sustainable value for its shareholders.

The company continues to utilize the services of independent firms
to evaluate internal controls and operations to ensure fair financial
reporting processes, compliance with applicable laws and adherence
with internal control systems. This also results in achieving our objective
of adding value to our operations.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Company strictly adheres to the principles of Corporate Governance
mandated by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and
has implemented all the prescribed stipulations. The same have been
summarized in the following statement of compliance with Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 duly
reviewed by the external auditors.

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND
FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK.

Following is the Directors' statement on Corporate and Financial
Reporting framework:

a)  The financial statements, prepared by the management of
the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b)  Properbooks of account have been maintained by the Company.

o] Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied
in the preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d)  International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable
in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of financial
statements.

e)  The Company maintains a sound internal control system which
gives reasonable assurance against any material misstatement
or loss. The internal control system is regularly reviewed. This has
been formalized by the Board's Audit Committee and is updated
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as and when needed.

f) There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

g)  There has been no material departure from the best practices of
Corporate Governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.

h)  The Key operating and financial data for the last six years is
annexed to the annual report.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has established an effective and efficient system of
internal and financial controls to safeguard the assets of the Company,
prevent and detect fraud and ensure compliance with all statutory and
legal requirements. The internal control structure is regularly reviewed
and monitored by the Internal Audit function duly established by the
Board. Audit Committee reviews the internal control system on quarterly
basis in accordance with the term of its reference.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Board of Directors has approved Directors' Remuneration Policy. The
main features of the policy are as follows:

o The Company shall not pay remuneration to its non-executive
directors including independent directors except for meeting
fee for attending Board and its Committees meetings.

o The Company will reimburse or incur expenses of travelling and
accommodation of Directors in relation to attending of Board
and its Committees meetings.

o The Directors' Remuneration Policy will be reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors from time to time.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the following amounts
were charged in the financial statements for remuneration including
benefits to Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors:

a) Rs. 63.723 million (2018: 57.970) was paid to the Chief
Executive Officer.

b) Rs. 62.746 million (2018: 55.106) was paid to one Executive
Director and Rs. 27.219 million (2018: 55.106 million) was
paid to the other Executive Director.

Composition of Board and Committees

As per requirements of Clause 34 (2) (i, ii & iii) of Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 the composition
of the Board and its Committees is given in serial No. 1, 2 and 12 of
"Statement of Compliance” annexed to the Annual Report.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, two of whom are
Independent Directors and one is Non-Executive Director. The Chairman
of the Committee is an Independent Director. The terms of reference
of the Committee have been determined in accordance with the
guidelines provided in the Code of Corporate Governance and advised
to the Committee for compliance.

The Committee held four (4) meetings during the year. Attendance by
each member was as follows:

Name of Member Attendance
Mr. Muhammad Amin - Chairman 4
Mr. Riaz Ahmed - Member 4
Mr. Rehman Naseem - Member 0

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee comprises of three
members one of whom is Independent Director, one is Non-Executive
Director and one is Executive Director. The Chairman of the Committee
is an Independent Director. The Committee is involved in making
recommendations to the Board regarding executives' remuneration,
performance evaluation and succession planning etc. The Committee
held one (1) meeting during the year. Attendance by each member was
as follows:

Name of Member Attendance
Mr. Osman Saifullah Khan - Chairman 1
Mr. Arif Saeed - Member 0
Mr. Riaz Ahmed - Member 1

Meetings of the Board of Directors

During the year under review, seven (7) meetings of the Board of
Directors of the Company were held and the attendance position is as
follows:

Name of Director Attendance

Mr. Ahmed Javed 0

Mr. Arif Saeed

Mr. Omar Saeed

Mr. Hassan Javed

Mr. Osman Saifullah Khan

Mr. Rehman Naseem

Mr. Riaz Ahmed

Mr. Muhammad Amin

~N YN N w0 NN

Mr. Shahid Hussain Jatoi

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the
Board and Committee meetings.

Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises senior members of the
Company who meet and discuss significant business plans, issues and
progress updates of their respective functions. Significant matters to be
put forth before the Board as per the Code of Corporate Governance
are also discussed in the Management Committee meetings for onward

approval of the Board.

External Auditors

The present Auditors M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered
Accountants, retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. The Board of Directors endorses the recommendation
of the Audit Committee for their re-appointment as auditors of the

Company for the financial year ending December 31, 2020.

Investments in Retirement Benefits

The Company maintains retirement benefits plans for its employees
which are regulated through the respective Board of trustees. The value
of investments of these funds as per their respective audited financial
statements, are as follows

December  December31,
31,2019 2018
(Rupees in million)
Provident Fund 1,523 1,013
Gratuity Fund 64 82

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as at December 31, 2019 along with
disclosure as required under the Code of Corporate Governance is
included in this Annual Report. All trades in the shares of the Company,
if any, carried out by the Directors, CEQ, CFO, Company Secretary, Head
of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children are also annexed.

Value of Investment

96%

4%

m Provident Fund Gratuity Fund



Post Balance Sheet Event

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position
of the Company occurred between 31 December 2019 and 25 June
2020 except for the declaration of final cash dividend of Rupees 7.50
per share (i.e. 75%) along with issuance of bonus shares in proportion of
25 ordinary shares for every 100 ordinary shares held by the members
(i.e. 25%) which is subject to approval of members in the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and as disclosed in the accompanying audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019 more specifically in Note 46.2 which shed light on the challenges
and risks emanating from the outbreak of the COVID-19 and specific
measures undertaken by the Company.
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We look forward to continuing to deliver results in the coming years.

For and on behalf of the board

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed
Chairman Chief Executive

June 25,2020
Lahore
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company:
Year ended:

Service Industries Limited
December 31,2019

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations
in the following manner:

1.

The total number of Directors are nine (9) as per the following:

a.  Male: 9
b.  Female: 0

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Names
Independent Mr. Osman Saifullah Khan
Directors Mr. Rehman Naseem

Mr. Muhammad Amin
Mr. Shahid Hussain Jatoi

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed
Mr. Riaz Ahmed

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Omar Saeed
Mr. Arif Saeed

Executive Directors

Mr. Hassan Javed

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a
Director on more than seven listed companies, including this
company;

The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured
that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it
throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall
corporate strategy and significant policies of the company.
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of
the significant policies along with their date of approval or
updating is maintained by the company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and
decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board /
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the
Act and these Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman
and, in his absence, by a Director elected by the Board for this
purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act
and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8.

10.

1.

12.

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for
remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and these
Regulations;

The Board has arranged Directors' Training program for the
following:

Names of Directors

Mr. Omar Saeed

Mr. Hassan Javed

Mr. Riaz Ahmed

Mr. Muhammad Amin
Mr. Shahid Hussain Jatoi

Following Directors meet the exemption criteria of minimum of
14 years of education and 15 years of experience on the Boards
of listed companies, hence are exempt from Directors' training
program:

Names of Directors

Mr. Arif Saeed

Mr. Osman Saifullah Khan
Mr. Rehman Naseem

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed
the financial statements before approval of the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of members
given below:

a) Audit Committee

Names Designation held
Mr. Muhammad Amin Chairman
Mr. Riaz Ahmed Member
Mr. Rehman Naseem Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Names Designation held
Mr.Osman Saifullah Khan Chairman

Mr. Arif Saeed Member

Mr. Riaz Ahmed Member




13.  The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have
been formed, documented and advised to the committee for
compliance;

14.  Thefrequency of meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) of the
committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee:
Four quarterly meetings were held during the financial year
ended December 31, 2019.

b) HRand Remuneration Committee:
One meeting of HR and Remuneration Committee was held
during the financial year ended December 31,2019.

15.  TheBoard has set up an effective internal audit function who are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose
and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
company;

16.  The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they
have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control
Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines
on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse,
parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit,
Company Secretary or Director of the company;

17.  The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them
have not been appointed to provide other services except
in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18.  We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6,7, 8, 27,
32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed
Chairman Chief Executive

June 25,2020
Lahore

Annual Report 2019
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Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the
Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Service Industries Limited (the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2019 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and interal control systems
sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement
on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before
the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect
the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Place: Lahore.
Date: June 25, 2020
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Auditors’ Report to The Members

To the members of Service Industries Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Service Industries Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, the statement
of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at
31 December 2019 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:
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As at 31 December 2019, stock-in-trade is stated at Rupees
4,247.068 million.

Stock-in-trade is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable
value.

We identified existence and valuation of stock-in-trade as a key
audit matter due to its size, representing 21.76% of total assets
of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and the judgment
involved in valuation.

For further information on stock-in-trade, refer to the following:
Summary of significant accounting policies,
Stock-in-trade note 2.16 to the financial

statements.

Stock-in-trade note 22 to the financial
statements.

Sr.No | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit
1 Revenue recognition Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue,
amongst others, included the following:
The Company recognized net sales of Rupees 26,156.201 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. e Obtaining an understanding of the process relating
to recognition of revenue and testing the design,
We identified recognition of revenue as a key audit matter implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the controls over recording of revenue;
Companyand giVQS rise to an inherent risk that revenue could be | o Compar]ng a samp|e of revenue transactions recorded
subject to misstatement to meet expectations or targets. during the year with sales orders, sales invoices, delivery
documents and other relevant underlying documents;
For further information on revenue, refer to the following: ° Compar]ng a 5amp|e of revenue transactions recorded
around the year end with the sales orders, sales invoices,
Summary of significant accounting policies, delivery documents and other relevant underlying
Revenue from contracts with customers note documentation to assess if the related revenue was recorded
2.19 to the financial statements. in the appropriate accounting year;
e Assessing whether the accounting policies for revenue
Sales - net note 28 to the financial statements. recognition complies with the requirements of IFRS 15
'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'; and
e Comparing the details of a sample of journal entries posted
to revenue accounts during the year, which met certain
specific risk-based criteria, with the relevant underlying
documentation.
We also considered the appropriateness of disclosures in the
financial statements.
2 Stock-in-trade Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of stock-in-trade,

amongst others, included the following:

e Assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over valuation of stock-
in-trade including determination of net realizable values;

¢ Attending inventory counts and reconciling the count results
to the inventory listings to test the completeness of data;

e Assessing the net realizable value of stock-in-trade by
comparing, on a sample basis, management's estimation
of future selling prices for the products with selling prices
achieved subsequent to the end of the reporting year;

o Comparing the net realizable value to the cost of a sample of
stock-in-trade and comparison to the associated provision to
assess whether stock-in-trade provisions are complete; and

e Assessing accuracy of inventory ageing reports and adequacy
of provisions.
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Sr.No | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

3 Application of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ Our audit procedures included the following:

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ with effect from | ® obtaining an understanding of the management's process
01 January 2019. IFRS 16 introduces a single on statement of | for identification of agreements which contain leasing
financial position lease accounting model for leases entered into arrangements;

by lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing
its right of using the underlying asset and a corresponding lease | ® evaluating the selection of accounting policies and

liability representing its obligations to make lease payments. On methodology  followed by the management for
adoption of IFRS 16, the Company has changed its accounting determination and measurement of right-of-use assets,
policy for operating leases which are now recognized on the corresponding lease liabilities and other related impacts;

statement of financial position. The Company has accordingly
recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities amounting | ® on a sample basis, testing the underlying data used by the

to Rupees 1,358.761 million and Rupees 1,350.879 million management from the lease contracts for determination of
respectively as at 01 January 2019. The comparative figures for the right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities.
the 2018 reporting period have not been restated, as permitted Further, performed re-computations on a test basis to
under the specific transitional provisions of the standard. assess the accuracy of computations performed by the

management; and

The adoption of IFRS 16 involves estimation and judgement.
Because of the significance of the impact of these judgements / | ®  assessing whether the presentation and disclosures relating

estimates, we considered this a key audit matter. to the adoption of IFRS 16 in the financial statements are
in compliance with the applicable financial reporting
For further information on leases, refer to the following: framework.

Summary of significant accounting policies,
Leases note 2.9 to the financial statements.

Lease liabilities and Right-of-use assets note
8 and note 17 to the financial statements
respectively.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
Managementis responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management s responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);
b)  thestatement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,

2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

o] investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's business;
and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and deposited
in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Other Matter

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants whose auditor's report dated
03 April 2019 expressed unqualified opinion.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mubashar Mehmood.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Lahore.
Date: June 25,2020
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Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31,2019
2019 2018
Amount Amount
Note Rupees in thousand
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital
100,000,000 (2018: 100,000,000)
Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital 4 187,950 120,288
Reserves 5 5,553,258 5,395,877
5,741,208 5,516,165
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing 6 2,770,768 2,617,155
Long term deposits 7 2,406 3,243
Lease liabilities 8 1,302,055 -
Employees' retirement benefit 9 148,408 180,446
Deferred income tax liability - net 10 186,637 341,182
4,410,274 3,142,026
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 1 2,707,757 2,739,985
Accrued mark-up 12 256,471 146,917
Short term borrowings 13 5,078,215 5,633,361
Current portion of non-current liabilities 14 918,111 699,725
Unclaimed dividend 37,784 32,002
Provision for taxation 368,803 210,942
9,367,141 9,462,932
Total liabilities 13,777,415 12,604,958
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 15
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 19,518,623 18,121,123

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed
(Chairman)
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Note Rupees in thousand

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets 16 6,117,464 6,946,303
Right-of-use assets 17 1,403,090 -
Intangible assets 18 2,688 2,562
Long term investments 19 2,668,005 549,917
Long term loans to employees 20 14,770 20,450
Long term security deposits 105,894 95,010

10,311,911 7,614,242
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools 21 252,240 159,415
Stock-in-trade 22 4,247,068 4,044171
Trade debts 23 3,021,121 3,300,338
Loans and advances 24 390,886 463,549
Trade deposits and prepayments 25 131,628 93,469
Other receivables 26 1,125,266 2,392,178
Cash and bank balances 27 38,503 53,761

9,206,712 10,506,881
TOTALASSETS 19,518,623 18,121,123
Arif Saeed Badar Ul Hassan

(Chief Executive)

(Chief Financial Officer)
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended December 31,2019

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Note Rupees in thousand

Restated
Sales - net 28 26,156,201 24,080,265
Cost of sales 29 (21,271,958) (19,747,583)
Gross profit 4,884,243 4,332,682
Distribution cost 30 (1,697,756) (1,523,334)
Administrative expenses 31 (1,117,181) (1,129,694)
Other expenses 32 (205,142) (147,849)
(3,020,079) (2,800,877)

1,864,164 1,931,805

Otherincome 33 312,202 198,491
Profit from operations 2,176,366 1,730,296
Finance cost 34 (1,123,589) (588,940)
1,052,777 1,141,356

Share of profit in equity accounted investee - net of taxation 20,248 63,929
Profit before taxation 1,073,025 1,205,285
Taxation 35 (186,661) (143,978)
Profit after taxation 886,364 1,061,307
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 36 47.16 56.47

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed Badar Ul Hassan
(Chairman) (Chief Executive) (Chief Financial Officer)
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31,2019

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Note Rupees in thousand
Restated
Profit after taxation 886,364 1,061,307
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
[tems that will not be reclassify to profit or loss:
Surplus arising on remeasurements of investment at fair value through other comprehensive income - net of tax 2,500 -
Remeasurements of employees' retirement benefit obligation - net of tax 6,961 (27,269)
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - net of tax 9,461 (27,269)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 895,825 1,034,038
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed Badar Ul Hassan

(Chairman) (Chief Executive) (Chief Financial Officer)
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31,2019

Annual Report 2019

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Note Rupees in thousand
Restated
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash (used in) / generated from operations 37 (274,499) 1,091,980
Finance cost paid (996,679) (550,088)
Income tax paid (258,374) (276,074)
Employees’ retirement benefits paid (15,186) (10,735)
Long term loans - net (7,698) (2,688)
Long term deposits - net (18,251) 4,383
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (1,570,687) 256,778
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on operating fixed assets (722,930) (1,600,636)
Intangible asset acquired (1,441) (2,812)
Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets 14,355 2,057
Long term investments - net (131,819) 7,550
Dividend received from associated company - 28,124
Net cash used in investing activities (841,835) (1,565,717)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term financing 1,311,774 609,100
Repayment of long term financing (846,800) (175,792)
Repayment of lease liabilities (74,459) -
Long term deposits - net (837) (2,015)
Short term borrowings - net 2,551,507 1,112,629
Dividend paid (543,030) (260,406)
Net cash from financing activities 2,398,155 1,283,516
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (14,367) (25,423)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 53,761 79,184
Cash transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary
Company pursuant to the Scheme (891)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 38,503 53,761

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed
(Chairman) (Chief Executive)

Badar Ul Hassan

(Chief Financial Officer)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31,2019

1.2

The company and its operations

Service Industries Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a private limited Company on 20 March 1957 in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913
(now the Companies Act, 2017), converted into a public limited company on 23 September 1959 and got listed on 27 June 1970. The shares of the
Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activities of the Company are purchase, manufacture and sale of footwear, tyres and
tubes and technical rubber products. These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company. Consolidated financial statements
of the Company are prepared separately. Details of the Company's investment in subsidiaries and associates are stated in note 19 to these financial

statements.

Geographical location

Geographical location and addresses of all business units are as follows:

Offices, Manufacturing units,
Retail outlets and Warehouses Address

Registered and Head Office
Karachi office
Factory site

Retail outlets

Shoe Box M.M. Alam Road
Shoe Box Mall Road
Shoe Box Baghban Pura
Shoe Box Allama Igbal Town
Shoe Box Wapda Town
Shoe Box Link Road
Shoe Box Karim Block
Shoe Box DHAY Block
Shoe Box Gujranwala 1
Shoe Box Gujranwala 2
Shoe Box Gujrat

Shoe Box Kharian

Shoe Box Faisalabad
Shoe Box Burewala

Shoe Box Bahawalpur 1
Shoe Box Bahawalpur 2
Shoe Box Mandi Baha-ud-Din
Shoe Box Multan

Shoe Box Rahim Yar Khan
Shoe Box Rawalpindi
Shoe Box Sargodha

Shoe Box Sargodha 2
Shoe Box Sialkot

Shoe Box Sahiwal

Shoe Box Peshawar

Shoe Box Peshawar 2
Shoe Box Multan Cantt.
Shoe Box Chakwal
Budget Box Sheikhupura
Factory Outlet Vehari

Servis House, 2 - Main Gulberg, Lahore
Adamijee House, 10th Floor, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.
G.T.Road, Gujrat.

R-2, M.M. Alam Road, Gulberg Il, Lahore.

Near Urban Sole, Mall Road, Lahore.

17-A, Main G.T Road, Lahore.

Gulshan Block-1, Main Boulevard, Allama Igbal Town, Lahore.

8, PIA Society, Wapda Town, Lahore.

Opposite Raja Sh, Link Road, Model Town, Lahore.

23-Karim Block, Allama Igbal Town, Lahore.

133Y Block, Phase 3, DHA, Lahore.

College Chowk, Main Market, Satellite Town, Gujranwala.

751-B, Rex Cinema Road, Main Market, Satellite Town, Gujranwala.
Hassan Chowk, Kacheri Road, Gujrat.

Main G.T. Road, Near Stylo Shoes, Kharian.

D-Ground, Faisalabad.

Al-Rehman Center, Opposite Stylo Shoes, G.I. Road, Vehari Road, Burewala.
Circular Road, Opposite Quaid-e-Azam Medical College, Bahawalpur.
Railway Road, Bahawalpur.

Kacheri Road, Mandi Baha-ud-Din.

Zain Tower, 10-A Gulgshat Colony, Multan.

Shahi Road, Rahim Yar Khan.

Nadir Plaza, Near Shan Mall, Commercial Market, Satellite Town, Rawalpindi.
City Tower, City Road, Sargodha.

03 Jinnah Park, University Road, Sargodha.

Shoe Box Daruma Wala Chowk, Trunk Bazar, Opposite Bata Shoes, Sialkot.
Near Metro Shoes, Girls College Road, Sahiwal.

University Road, Peshawar.

Saddar Road, Peshawar.

Property No. 115-1A, Aziz Bhatti Shaheed Road, Multan Cantt.

Al-Fateh Plaza, Talagang Road, Near GPO, Chakwal

Bhatti Chowk, Near Virk Travels, Gujranwala Chowk, Sheikhupura.

Klara, 143-C, Club Road, Vehari.
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Offices, Manufacturing units,

1.3

Retail outlets and Warehouses Address

Factory Outlet Muridke 10-KM Sheikhupura Road, Muridke.

Factory Outlet Gujrat Servis Factory, Main G.T. Road, Gujrat.

Factory Outlet Township Shop No. 5-A-1, Al-Madina Road, Township, Lahore.

Factory Outlet Kharian Main G.T. Road, Near Stylo Shoes, Kharian.

Shoe Box Franchise Al-Hafeez Center, 26-A, Model Town, Lahore.

KLARA Warehouses

Lahore 26-KM, Multan Road, Opposite Maraka Telephone Exchange, Lahore.
Lahore 19-A, Main Ravi Road, Near Kasur Pura Stop, Yadgar, Lahore.
Rawalpindi Near Bagar Dhair, Tippu Sultan Masjid I-J-P Road, Rawalpindi.
Faisalabad Jhang Road, Opposite Nayab Energy Gate, Faisalabad.
Bahawalpur 6-A, Adil Town, Dubai Mehal Road, Near City School, Bahawalpur.

Scheme of Compromises, Arrangements and Reconstruction

In accordance with the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (under section 279 to 283 and 285 of the Companies Act, 2017 between
Service Industries Limited and its members and Service Global Footwear Limited and its members (“the Scheme”) approved by the shareholders of Service
Industries Limited and shareholders of Service Global Footwear Limited on 14 December 2019 and sanctioned by the Lahore High Court, Lahore vied its
order dated 15 January 2020 and filed with the Registrar of Companies on 3 February 2020, the Muridke Footwear Undertaking of Service Industries
Limited has been demerged with effect from 01 July 2019 (“Effective Date") and transferred to and vested in Service Global Footwear Limited. Completion
Date for the Purposes of the Scheme was 25 June 2020.

As per sanctioned order dated 15 January 2020 of the Lahore High Court, Lahore, the Scheme has become effective from 01 July 2019. In accordance with
the Scheme, the net assets of Muridke Footwear Undertaking have been transferred to and vested in Service Global Footwear Limited. However, the scheme
shallfinally take effect upon and from the date in which the last of the orders or approvals or transfers in respect of matters provided for in Article 18.1 of the
Scheme are obtained and such date shall be the completion date. Hence, cost of investmentin Service Global Footwear Limited shall be finally determined
on the basis of the net assets, including surplus on revaluation of land, building and plant and machinery of the Muridke Footwear Undertaking on the
completion date. Net assets, including surplus on revaluation of land, building and plant and machinery, of the Muridke Footwear Undertaking on the
completion date shall be determined by Service Industries Limited - Holding Company in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. In return, Service Global Footwear Limited shall issue 150,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each to the Company.

The separation of Muridke Footwear Undertaking and the transfer to and vesting in the Service Global Footwear Limited in accordance with the Scheme
shall be treated as having taken effect from the Effective Date (i.e. 01 July 2019) and from that time until the Completion Date (i.e. 25 June 2020), the
Muridke Footwear Undertaking was deemed to have been carried on for and on account and for the benefit of Service Global Footwear Limited by Service
Industries Limited.

Main features of the Scheme
Under the Scheme, the undertaking comprising the assets, liabilities, rights, entitlements and obligations of Service Industries Limited has been splitted
into two (2) separate segments i.e. Muridke Footwear Undertaking and Retained Undertaking.

The segment comprised all the assets, liabilities, rights, entitlements and obligations of Muridke Footwear Undertaking has been carved out / bifurcated
and stand merged / amalgamated with, transferred to, vested in, and be assumed by Service Global Footwear Limited as on the completion date against
issuance of shares by Service Global Footwear Limited to Service Industries Limited in accordance with the Scheme.

The bifurcation / merger/ amalgamation allowed the Service Industries Limited to act as a Holding Company in respect of Service Global Footwear Limited
and to oversee, supervise and control the same (to the extent applicable). The managements of Service Industries Limited and Service Global Footwear
Limited shallindependently operate the businesses on a regular basis. This structure will result in the businesses being managed and carried outina more
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effective and efficient manner, thus benefiting the shareholders.

Net assets transferred as at 01 July 2019

The demerger of Muridke Footwear Undertaking has resulted in the transfer of Service Industries Limited's assets and liabilities to Service Global Footwear
Limited on the basis of audited special purpose financial statements as at 30 June 2019. The details of the assets and liabilities transferred to Service Global
Footwear Limited are disclosed below:

Muridke Footwear
Undertaking

Rupees in thousand

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Fixed assets 872,288
Long term loans to employees 11,233
Long term security deposits 7,367
890,888
Current Assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 26,891
Stock-in-trade 1,479,283
Trade debts 603,469
Loans and advances 366,139
Trade deposits and prepayments 5336
Other receivables 1,388,110
Receivable from Service Industries Limited 1,888,967
Cash and bank balances 891
5,759,086
Total Assets 6,649,974
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term financing 278,779
Employees’ retirement benefit 61,861
340,640
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,121,796
Accrued mark-up 17,356
Short term borrowings 3,106,653
Current portion of long term financing 25,629
Provision for taxation 74,379
4,345,813
Total Liabilities 4,686,453
Net Assets 1,963,521

2.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Basis of preparation
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a)  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and
reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act,
2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017 have been followed.

b)  Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the respective accounting policies.

c)  Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s financial statements or where judgments
were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

i) Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis of the management of the
Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might
affect the canrying amount of respective item of operating fixed assets, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

ii) Inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling prices less estimated expenditure to make sales.

iii)  Taxation

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the currentincome tax law and the decisions
of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

iv)  Recovery of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the Company considers it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

v)  Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgment. It is based on the lifetime expected credit loss, grouped
based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent sales
experience and historical collection rates.

vi)  Impairment of investment in subsidiary companies and equity method accounted for associated company

In making an estimate of recoverable amount of the Company's investment in subsidiary companies and equity method accounted for associated company,
the management considers future cash flows.
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vii)

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the Company is considered to be the point of
delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits
of unimpeded access.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in
current year and are relevant to the Company

Following standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 January 2019:

e |FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

* |FRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

o |FRS 16 'Lease’

* |FRIC23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

e |AS 28 (Amendments) 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'

* |ASB's Annual Improvements to [FRSs: 2015 - 2017 Cycle, incorporating amendments to IFRSs more specifically in IAS 12 'Income Taxes' and 1AS 23
‘Borrowing Costs'

The Company had to change its accounting policies and make certain adjustments without restating prior year results following the adoption of IFRS 16,
IFRS 9 and IFRS 15.These are disclosed in note 2.9, note 2.14 and note 2.19. Most of the other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to the
Company

There are other amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019 but are considered
notto be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company's financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

Standard and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but relevant to the
Company

Following standard and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods beginning on
or after 01 January 2020 or later periods:

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020). The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand
and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality
judgements when preparing general purpose financial statements in accordance with [FRS.

0n 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual Framework. The new Framework: reintroduces
the terms stewardship and prudence; introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than
the definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction between a liability and an equity instrument; removes from the asset and liability definitions
references to the expected flow of economic benefits-this lowers the hurdle foridentifying the existence of an asset or liability and puts more emphasis on
reflecting uncertainty in measurement; discusses historical costand current value measures, and provides some guidance on how the 1ASB would go about
selecting a measurement basis for a particular asset or liability; states that the primary measure of financial performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances will the 1ASB use other comprehensive income and only for income or expenses that arise from a change in the current value of
an asset or liability; and discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the reporting entity and combined financial statements. The Framework is
notan IFRS standard and does not override any standard, so nothing will change in the short term. The revised Framework will be used in future standard-
setting decisions, but no changes will be made to current IFRS. Preparers might also use the Framework to assist them in developing accounting policies
where anissue is not addressed by an IFRS. It is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for preparers that develop an accounting
policy based on the Framework.
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g)  Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective and not
considered relevant to the Company

There are other standards and amendments to published approved standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January
2020 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company's financial statements and are therefore not detailed in
these financial statements.

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Pak Rupees.

2.3 Foreign currency transactions and translation

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Transactions in
foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are charged or credited to statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical costin a foreign
currency are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency that are stated at fair value are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined.

2.4 Employees' retirement benefits
i) Contributory provident fund

There is an approved contributory provident fund for employees of the Company. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the employees and the
Company to the fund in accordance with the fund rules. The Company's contributions to the fund are charged to statement of profit or loss.

i)  Defined benefit plan

The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme as a defined benefit plan for its permanent employees other than those who participate in the provident
fund scheme. The managerial staff is entitled to participate in both the provident fund trust and gratuity fund scheme.

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eared
in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit obligations
is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company,
the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect
of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest
expense / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation
atthe beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability / (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
 (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plan are
recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

iii)  Compensated absences

The Company provides for liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences in the period in which these are eamed.
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Taxation
Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the period determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge
for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the period, if enacted. The charge for current tax also
includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Borrowings

Financing and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective qualifying assets acquired out of
the proceeds of such long-term finances. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Fixed assets
Owned

Fixed assets except freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction period of qualifying assets and other directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition. Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less any recognized impairment
loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on operating fixed assets except for leasehold improvements is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance
method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in note 16.1. Depreciation on
leasehold improvements is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the straight line method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of
the assets over their estimated useful lives or the shorter lease term at the rates given in note 16.1. Depreciations on additions is charged from the month
in which the assets are available for use up to the month prior to disposal. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each
financial year-end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

De-recognition

An item of operating fixed assets is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognized.
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IFRS 16 “Leases”

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 from 01 January 2019. The standard replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases' and for lessees eliminates the classifications of operating
leases and finance leases. Except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities are recognized
in the statement of financial position. Straight-line operating lease expense recognition is replaced with a depreciation charge for the right-of-use assets
(included in operating costs) and an interest expense on the recognized lease liabilities (included in finance costs). In the earlier periods of the lease, the
expenses associated with the lease under IFRS 16 will be higher when compared to lease expenses under IAS 17, as the operating expense is now replaced
by interest expense and depreciation in the statement of profit or loss. For classification within the statement of cash flows, the interest portion is disclosed
in operating activities and the principal portion of the lease payments are separately disclosed in financing activities. For lessor accounting, the standard
does not substantially change how a lessor accounts for leases.

Impact of adoption

IFRS 16 has been adopted using the modified retrospective approach and as such the comparatives have not been restated. The impacts of adoption as at
01 January 2019 are as follows:
Rupees in thousand

Right-of-use assets increased by 1,358,761
Lease liabilities increased by 1,350,879
Prepaid rent decreased by 7,882

Right-of-use assets

Aright-of-use asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial
direct costs incurred, and, except where included in the cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, and restoring the site or asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset, whichever is
shorter. Where the Company expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is charged over its estimated
useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with terms of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are charged to income as incurred.

Lease liabilities

Alease liability is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognized at the present value of the lease payments to
be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is
reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are re-measured if there is a change in the
following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase option and
termination penalties. When a lease liability is re-measured, an adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of-use asset, or to statement of profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset s fully written down.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets, which are non-monetary assets without physical substance, are recognized at cost, which comprise purchase price, non-refundable
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purchase taxes and other directly attributable expenditures relating to their implementation and customization. After initial recognition, an intangible
assetis carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized from the month, when these assets are
available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of the intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life over which economic
benefits are expected to flow to the Company. The useful life and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Investment in subsidiary companies

Investment in subsidiary companies is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 27 'Separate Financial Statements.

Investment in associate - (with significant influence)

Associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence but not control or joint control. Investment in associate is accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investment is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Company's share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Company's share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associate is recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Company's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Company's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investee have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Company.

Investment in equity method accounted for associate is tested for impairment in accordance with the provision of IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets’

ljarah transactions

Ujrah (lease) payments are recognized as expenses in statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the ljarah term unless another systematic basis
is representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit even if the payments are not on that basis.

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

The Company has adopted IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” from 01 January 2019. The standard introduced new classification and measurement models for
financial assets. Afinancial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates and that are solely principal and interest. A debt investment shall be measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is to both hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which
arise on specified dates that are solely principal and interest as well as selling the asset on the basis of its fair value. All other financial assets are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the Company makes an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on
equity instruments in other comprehensive income. Despite these requirements, a financial asset may be irrevocably designated as measured at fair value
through profit or loss to reduce the effect of, or eliminate, an accounting mismatch. For financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss,
the standard requires the portion of the change in fair value that relates to the Company's own credit risk to be presented in other comprehensive income
(unless itwould create an accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge accounting requirements are intended to more closely align the accounting treatment
with the risk management activities of the Company. New impairment requirements use an ‘expected credit loss' ('ECL') model to recognize an allowance.
Impairment is measured using a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition
in which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. For receivables, a simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss
allowance is available.

The Company has adopted IFRS 9 without restating the prior year results. Key changes in accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are as
follows:

Recognition of financial instruments
The Company initially recognizes financial assets on the date when they are originated. Financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date when
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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Classification and measurement of financial instruments

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities. However, it replaces the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets i.e. loans and receivables, fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), available for sale and held to maturity with the categories such as amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

Investments and other financial assets

a)

Classification

From 01 January 2019, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
o those to be measured at amortized cost

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments
in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

b) Measurement

Atinitial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets caried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other income / (other expenses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairement losses), interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income / (other expenses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
income / (other expenses) and impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently
measured at FVTPLis recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other income / (other expenses) in the period in which it arises.
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Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value for financial instruments quoted in an active market, the fair value corresponds to
amarket price (level 1). For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair value is determined using valuation techniques including
reference to recentarm’s length market transactions or transactions involving financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted
cash flow analysis including, to the greatest possible extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level 3).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Fair value through profit or loss
Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other income / (other expenses) in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Financial liabilities - classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. Afinancial liability is classified as at FVTPLIf itis classified as held-for-trading, it is
a derivative or itis designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also included in
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
From 01 January 2019, the Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
costand FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade debts and other receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition
a) Financial assets
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or
it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any
interest in such derecognized financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

b) Financial liabilities
The Company shall derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a legal enforceable right to set
off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Hedge accounting
IFRS 9 requires that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk management objectives and strategy and to apply a more qualitative and
forward-looking approach to assessing hedge effectiveness.
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There is no impact of the said change on these financial statements as there is no hedge activity carried on by the Company during the year ended 31

December 2019.

Impacts of adoption of IFRS 9 on these financial statements as on 01 January 2019
On 01 January 2019, the Company's management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets held by the Company at the date of
initial application of IFRS 9 (01 January 2019) and has classified its financial instruments into appropriate IFRS 9 categories. The main effects resulting from

this reclassification are as follows:

Financial assets - (01 January 2019)

Available Trade debts ¢ategorized as
for sale FVTOCI Loans and Amortised
(AFS) receivables cost
Opening balance (before reclassification) 22,050 3,300,338
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9 reclassification of
equity investment from available for sale to FVTOCI (22,050) 22,050
Reclassification of trade debts (3,300,338) 3,300,338
Recognition of expected credit losses on trade debts (51,358)
Opening balance (after reclassification) 22,050 . 3,248,980
The impact of these changes on the Company's un-appropriated profit and equity is as follows:
Un-appropriated profit and equity (01 January 2019)
Effect on un- Effect on total
appropriated profit equity

Opening balance 3,689,787 5,516,165
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9 due to recognition of expected credit losses on trade debts (51,358) (51,358)
3,638,429 5,464,807

Equity investment previously classified as available-for-sale

The Company elected to presentin other comprehensive income changes in the fair value of its equity investment previously classified as available-for-sale,
as this investment is not held for trading. As a result, asset with a fair value of Rupees 22.050 million was reclassified from available-for-sale financial asset

to financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) on 01 January 2019.

Reclassifications of financial instruments on adoption of IFRS 9
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On the date of initial application, 01 January 2019, the classification and measurement of financial instruments of the Company were as follows:

Measuremant category Medsurement catedory
Original New Original New Difference
(IAS 39) (IFRS9) Rupees in thousand
Long term investment Available for sale FVTOCI 22,050 22,050
Long term loans to employees Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 20,450 20,450
Long term security deposits Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 95,010 95,010
Current financial assets
Trade debts Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 3,300,338 3,248,980 51,358
Loans and advances Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 33,787 33,787
Trade deposits Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 47,854 47,854
Other receivables Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 74,259 74,259
Cash and bank balances Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 53,761 53,761
Non-current financial liabilities
Long term financing Amortised cost Amortised cost 3,316,880 3,316,880
Long term deposits Amortised cost Amortised cost 3,243 3,243
Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables Amortised cost Amortised cost 2,585,219 2,585,219
Accrued mark-up Amortised cost Amortised cost 146,917 146,917
Short term borrowings Amortised cost Amortised cost 5,633,361 5,633,361
Unclaimed dividend Amortised cost Amortised cost 32,002 32,002

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually forimpairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are
reviewed for impairment at each statement of financial position date or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if impairment losses had not been recognized.
An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories, except for stock-in-transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:

Stores, spares and loose tools
Usable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at cost using first-in-first-out (FIFO) cost formula, while items considered obsolete are carried
at nil value. Items-in-transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock-in-trade

Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

(i) Forraw materials: First-in-first-out (FIFO) cost formula

(i) For work-in-process and finished goods: Direct material, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads
(iii) Finished goods purchased for resale: Moving average
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Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stocks are valued at net realizable value.
Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make a sale.

2.17 Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the transaction cost.

2.18 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance
for expected credit losses. Trade receivables generally do not include amounts over due by 365 days.

The Company has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.
Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

2.19 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 from 01 January 2019. The standard provides a single comprehensive model for revenue recognition. The core principle
of the standard is that an entity shall recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard introduced a new contract-based revenue
recognition model with a measurement approach that is based on an allocation of the transaction price. This is described further in the accounting policies
below. Credit risk is presented separately as an expense rather than adjusted against revenue. Contracts with customers are presented in Company's
statement of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending on the relationship between the Company's performance
and the customer's payment. Customer acquisition costs and costs to fulfil a contract can, subject to certain criteria, be capitalised as an asset and amortised
over the contract period.

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 by applying the modified retrospective approach according to which the Company is not required to restate the prior
year results. Key changes in accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15 are as follows:

i) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the Company: identifies the contract with a customer; identifies the
performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates of variable consideration and the
time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price
of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and recognises revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that
depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised.

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts, rebates and refunds,
any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined using either the ‘expected
value’ or 'most likely amount’ method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a constraining principle whereby revenue will
only be recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Amounts
received that are subject to the constraining principle are initially recognised as deferred revenue in the form of a separate refund liability.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods i recognised at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is generally at the time
of delivery.



m Service Industries Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31,2019

iii)

vi)

vii)

Interest

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rent
Rent revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognised as part of the rental revenue.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the period when eamed.

Dividend
Dividend on equity investments is recognized when right to receive the dividend is established.

Other revenue
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment s established.

Contract assets
Contractassets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration
or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.

Customer acquisition costs
Customer acquisition costs are capitalised as an asset where such costs are incremental to obtaining a contract with a customer and are expected to be
recovered. Customer acquisition costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

Costs to obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained or which are not otherwise recoverable from a
customer are expensed as incurred to profit or loss. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract where the contract term is less than one year is immediately
expensed to profit or loss.

Customer fulfilment costs

Customer fulfilment costs are capitalised as an asset when all the following are met: (i) the costs relate directly to the contract or specifically identifiable
proposed contract; (ii) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Company that will be used to satisfy future performance obligations; and (iii) the costs
are expected to be recovered. Customer fulfilment costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

Right of return assets

Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of customers who may exercise their right to
return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at which the inventory was previously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery
costs and any impairment.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

Refund liabilities

Refund liabilities are recognised where the Company receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund some, or all, of that consideration to the
customer. A refund liability is measured at the amount of consideration received or receivable for which the Company does not expect to be entitled and is
updated at the end of each reporting period for changes in circumstances. Historical data is used across product lines to estimate such returns at the time
of sale based on an expected value methodology.
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viii)  Impacts of adoption of IFRS 15 on these financial statements as on 01 January 2019
The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognized in the financial statements at 01 January 2019:

31Dec2018 | Adjustment | 01 Jan 2019
Reported Restated

Rupees in thousand
Current assets
Stock in trade 4,044,171 227996 4,272,167
Trade debts 3,300,338 (302,324) 2,998,014

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 2,739,985 (3,716) 2,736,269
Equity
Reserves 5,395,877 (70,612) 5,325,265

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term highly liquid instruments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

2.21 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

2.22 Earnings per share
The Company presents eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

2.23 Contingent assets
Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized
until their realization becomes certain.

2.24 Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities are not recognized,
only disclosed, unless the possibility of a future outflow of resources is considered remote. In the event that the outflow of resources associated with a
contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow can be reliably estimated, a provision is recognized in the financial statements.

2.25 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax.
2.26 Government grants

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that entity will comply with the conditions attached to it and grant will be received.

2.27 Segment reporting
Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages
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in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the transactions with any of
the Company's other components. An operating segment's operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief executive officer to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the chief executive officer include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. Those incomes, expenses, assets, liabilities and other balances which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis
are reported as unallocated.

The Company has following reportable business segments. Footwear (Purchase, manufacturing and sale of different qualities of footwear), Tyre
(Manufacturing of different qualities of tyres) and Technical rubber products (Manufacturing of different qualities of rubber products on specifications).

Transaction among the business segments are recorded at cost. Inter segment sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.

Dividend and other appropriations
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

TRG Pakistan Limited

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company purchased 1,000,000 ordinary shares of TRG Pakistan Limited at Rupees 61.824 million.
In accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ which was then applicable,
this investment was classified as available-for-sale. As per IAS 39, gains or losses on available-for-sale investments were recognized directly in other
comprehensive income until the investment was sold, de-recognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive
income was included in statement of profit or loss. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost is an objective evidence of impairment. Previously, significant decline in value of the aforesaid investment during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2018 amounting to Rupees 32.224 million and Rupees 7.550 million respectively was inadvertently recognized through other
comprehensive income which should had been recognized in the statement of profit or loss. This has now been adjusted retrospectively in accordance with
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. This adjustment has following impacts on
these financial statements:

Rupees in thousand
Statement of profit or loss
- For the year ended 31 December 2018

Other operating expenses increased by 7,550
Earnings per share - basic and diluted decreased by (Rupees) 0.45

Statement of comprehensive income
- For the year ended 31 December 2018

Loss on investments decreased by 7,550

Speed (Private) Limited

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company purchased 142,839 ordinary shares of Speed (Private) Limited at Rupees 167.979 million. In
accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 28 ‘Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures' this investment was classified as investment in
associate under equity method. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company purchased further 17,870 ordinary shares of Speed (Private)
Limited at Rupees 28.541 million. At the year end, share of share premium reserve of Speed (Private) Limited amounting to Rupees 23.935 million was
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inadvertently recognized through statement of profit or loss as share of profit from associate instead of recognition as share of reserve held by equity
accounted investee in share premium in the statement of changes in equity. This has now been adjusted retrospectively in accordance with Interational
Accounting Standard (IAS) 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. This adjustment has following impacts on these financial

statements.

Statement of changes in equity
Capital reserves

Rupees in thousand

- Share of reserve held by equity accounted investee increased by 23,935
Revenue reserves
- Unappropriated profit decreased by (23,935)
4.  lIssued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital
2019 2018 2019 2018
Number of shares Rupees in thousand
Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid in cash 3,183,190 3,183,190 31,832 31,832
Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares 15,611,792 8,845,599 156,118 88,456
18,794,982 12,028,789 187,950 120,288
4.1  Movement during the year
2019 2018 2019 2018
Number of shares Rupees in thousand
At01 January 12,028,789 12,028,789 120,288 120,288
Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares 6,766,193 - 67,662 -
18,794,982 12,028,789 187,950 120,288
4.2 Allshares are similar with respect to their rights including on voting, board selection, first refusal and block voting.
2019 2018
Number of shares
4.3 Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated company / associated undertaking:
Shahid Arif Investments (Private) Limited - associated company 15,850 10,144
Service Charitable Trust 18,103 11,587
Service Provident Fund Trust 872,510 558,407
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand
Restated
5 RESERVES
Composition of reserves is as follows:
Capital reserves
Capital gains 102,730 102,730
Fair value reserve FVTOCI investment 2,500 -
Share premium (Note 5.1) 21,217 21,217
Share of reserve held by equity accounted investee 23,935 23,935
150,382 147,882
Revenue reserves
General reserve 1,558,208 1,558,208
Unappropriated profits 3,844,668 3,689,787
5,402,876 5,247,995
5,553,258 5,395,877
5.1 This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purposes specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.
6. LONG TERM FINANCING

From banking companies - secured

Long term loans (Note 6.1) 3,207,446 2,972,111
Long term musharaka (Note 6.2) 270,000 344,769
3,477,446 3,316,880

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (Note 14)
Long term loans 646,678 636,073
Long term musharaka 60,000 63,652
706,678 699,725
2,770,768 2,617,155
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m Service Industries Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31,2019

2019
Amount

2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

8 Lease liabilities
Total lease liabilities 1,513,488
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (Note 14) 211,433
1,302,055
9. Employees’ Retirement Benefit
The latest actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 December 2019 was carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method' Details of the Fund as per the
actuarial valuation are as follows:
9.1 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligations 212,148 262,604
Fair value of plan assets (63,740) (82,158)
Net defined benefit obligation 148,408 180,446
9.2  Movement in the present value of net defined benefit obligation
Net liability as at beginning of the year 180,446 128,449
Current service cost 26,919 25,360
Past service cost 2,358
Net interest on defined benefit obligation 22,693 10,153
Net remeasurements for the year (6,961) 27,269
Contributions made during the year (15,186) (10,785)
Net liability transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme (61,861)
Net liability as at end of the year 148,408 180,446
9.3  Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the year 262,604 213,626
Current service cost 26,919 25,360
Past service cost 2,358
Interest cost 31,943 17,182
Benefits paid during the year (13,913) (10,739)
Remeasurements on obligation:
Actuarial (gains)/ losses from changes in financial assumptions (869) 2,790
Experience adjustments (12,935) 14,381
Liability transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme (83,959)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 212,148 262,604
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

9.4  Movement in the fair value of the plan assets

Fairvalue of plan assets as at beginning of the year 82,158 85,178
Interest income on plan assets 9,250 7,029
Contributions made during the year 15,186 10,785
Benefits paid during the year (13,913) (10,735)
Remeasurements on fair value of plan assets (6,843) (10,099)
Assets transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme (22,098)

Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 63,740 82,158

9.4.1 As per Scheme, employees gratuity fund of Service Industries Limited in the name of Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund Trust shall be
continued for the benefits of the employees of the Company and Service Global Footwear Limited. Hence, total plan assets of Service Industries Limited
Employees Gratuity Fund Trust as shown below have been allocated by the Actuary for actuarial valuation purposes of the Company and Service Global
Footwear Limited - subsidiary company.

Term deposit receipts - 11,608

Mutual funds 88,788 67,603

Bank balances 408 2,947

Total plan assets 89,196 82,158
Allocated to the Company 63,740
Allocated to the Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme 25,456

- 82,158

9.5  Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 26,919 25,360
Past service cost 2,358

Interest cost 31,943 17,182
Interest income on plan assets (9,250) (7,029)
Net expense charged in the statement of profit or loss 51,970 35,513

9.6 Remeasurements charged to statement of other comprehensive income

Experience adjustments 12,935 14,381
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (6,843) 10,099
Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions 869 2,790

Total remeasurements charged to statement of other comprehensive income 6,961 27,270
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9.7  Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets for five years is as follows:
| 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 |
------------------------------- Rupees in thousand-------------------------------
Present value of defined benefit obligation 212,148 262,604 213,626 186,612 161,631
Fairvalue of the plan assets (63,740) (82,158) (85,177) (101,576) (80,080)
Deficit in the plan 148,408 180,446 128,449 85,036 81,551
Remeasurement loss / (gain) on obligation (13,804) 17,171 24,124 7,997 8,326
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on plan assets (6,843) (10,099) (16,202) 15,733 (5,718)
2019 2018
9.8  Principal actuarial assumptions used:
Discount rate used for interest cost % per annum 13.25 8.25
Discount rate used for year end obligation % perannum 11.25 13.25
Expected rate of salary increase % perannum 10.25 12.25
9.9  Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions:

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption at the reporting date:

Defined benefit obligation

Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Bps Rupees in thousand
Discount rate 100 188,723 229,728
Future salary increase 100 230,029 188,131

The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous year.

9.10  Mortality was assumed to be based on SLIC 2001-2005 ultimate mortality rates, set back one year.

9.1

The average duration of the benefit obligation is 9.9 years.

9.12  Expected maturity profile of undiscounted defined benefit obligation:

| lessthanayear ~ Between 1-2 years Between 3-5years  Between 6- 10 years Over 10 years Total |

Rupees in thousand
10,316 27,429 78,696 130,979 2,520,558 2,767,978
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2019

Amount

2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

10  Deferred income tax liability - net
The deferred income tax liability originated due to timing differences relating to:
Taxable temporary differences:
Accelerated tax depreciation 503,473 450,525
Investment in associate 17111 24,889
520,584 475,414
Deductible temporary differences:
Expected credit losses (37,230) (13,936)
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stores (5,871) (4,843)
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock in trade (25,326) (25,813
Minimum tax carry forward (265,520) (89,640)
(333,947) (134,232)
Deferred income tax liability - net 186,637 341,182
11.  Trade and other payables
Trade creditors 1,438,369 1,544,752
Accrued liabilities 856,027 905,545
Letters of credit 180,220 124,482
Advances from customers 160,793 139,361
Provident fund payable 20,761 30,250
Provision for service warranties 23,177 -
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 11.1) (7,574) (23,147)
Workers' welfare fund (Note 11.2) 22,269 8,302
Income tax deducted at source 3,866 2,329
Others 9,849 8,111
2,707,757 2,739,985
11.1  Workers' profit participation fund
Balance as at the beginning of the year (23,147) (1,585)
Less: Impact of adjustment due to adoption of IFRS 15 [Note 2.19 (viii)] (3,716) -
Less: Allocation to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme (6,260) -
Add: Allocation for the year (Note 32) 42,284 41,734
9,161 40,149
Less: Payments made during the year 16,735 63,296
Balance at the end of the year (7,574) (23,147)
11.2  Workers' welfare fund
Balance as at the beginning of the year 8,302 6,492
Less: Allocation to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme (1,308) -
Add: Provision for the year (Note 32) 21,899 8,302
28,893 14,794
Less: Payments during the year 6,624 6,492
Balance at the end of the year 22,269 8,302
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

12.  Accrued mark-up
Long term financing 25,112 58,854
Short term borrowings (Note 12.1) 231,359 88,063

256,471 146,917

12.1  Thisincludes accrued mark-up of Rupees 134.821 million on loan obtained from Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company.

13.  Short term Borrowings
From banking companies - secured
Short term running finances (Notes 13.1and 13.2) 854,992 2,136,006
Export refinance (Notes 13.1and 13.3) 1,774,833 3,497,355
Import loans (Notes 13.1and 13.4) 303,512 -
Loan from Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company (Note 13.5) 2,144,878

5,078,215 5,633,361

13.1  Thesefinances are obtained from banking companies under mark-up arrangements and are secured by hypothecation of present and future current assets
of the Company. These form part of total credit facilities of Rupees 7,180 million (2018: Rupees 9,641 million).

13.2  The rates of mark-up range from 10.75% to 14.86% (2018: 2.10% to 11.15% ) per annum.

13.3  The rates of mark-up range from 2.20% to 3% (2018: 2.20% to 2.25% ) per annum.

13.4  The rates of mark-up range from 2.4% to 3.75% (2018: Nil) per annum.

13.5  This represents unsecured loan from Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company for working capital requirement. This loan amount will be
finally determined as on the completion date pursuant to the Scheme. This carries mark-up at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 0.05 percent perannum. The
maximum aggregate amount payable to subsidiary company at the end of any month during the period was Rupees 2,144.878 million. Effective rate of
mark-up charged on this short term loan is 13.31% per annum.

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

14.  Current portion of non-current liabilities
Long term financing (Note 6) 706,678 699,725
Lease liabilities (Note 8) 211,433 -

918,111 699,725

14.1  The Company has availed the deferment of principal payments of Rupees 631.607 million of long term financing falling between 26 March 2020 to 25

March 2021. The principal payments have been deferred for one year in line with the BPRD Circular Letter No.13 dated 26 March 2020 of State Bank of
Pakistan. It has been treated as non-adjusting subsequent event in these financial statements.
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15.  Contingencies and Commitments

15.1 Contingencies

15.1.1 The Additional Collector (Adjudication) of Pakistan Customs Computerized System, Karachi initiated case against the Company for failure to pay leviable
sales tax and income tax of Rupees 18.630 million and Rupees 4.108 million respectively at import of tyre cord fabrics during the period from August
2007 to July 2008 by wrongly claiming sales tax zero rating in terms of SRO 509 (1)/2007 dated 09 June 2007.The case has been remanded back by the
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), Lahore to the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals [CIR (Appeals)], Lahore, which is still pending. According to
the Company's legal counsel, the Company has a good arguable case and there is likelihood that the same will be decided in its favor.

15.1.2 Deputy Director of Pakistan Employees Social Security Institute (PESSI), Gujrat initiated three cases against the Company. In the first case the alleged
amount recoverable by the PESSI is Rupees 4.804 million covering the period from January 1987 to September 1992 on account of short payment of
contributions. In the second case, Rupees 1.98 million is recoverable by the Company from PESSI on account of wrongly paid contributions covering the
period from July 1992 to September 1993. Both cases have been decided against the Company by the Director General Recovery PESSI, Lahore. In the
third case, Rupees 31.807 million is recoverable by PESSI. This case was decided in the favor of the Company in the year 2013, however, but the case is
re-opened in the year 2014.The Company has filed an appeal before Social Security Court, Lahore against the aforesaid cases. During the pendency of the
matter PESSI sent a recovery notice for the same amount. The Company has filed a writ petition before Lahore High Court, Lahore. As per legal counsel of
the Company, the Company has strong legal grounds for its success.

15.1.3 Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) initiated a case against the Company after post sales tax refund audit in which demand of Rupees 27.92
million was raised. The Company filed an appeal before CIR (Appeals) in which the demand was cancelled except two points having impact of Rupees 2.65
million. The Company had further filed an appeal before ATIR against said points. The management of the Company is confident that decision will be in
favour of the Company. Hence, no provision has been made in these financial statements.

15.1.4 DCRinitiated sales tax audit for the year 2013-2014 in which demand of Rupees 182.70 million was created. The Company filed appeal with CIR (Appeals)
who confirmed the demand of Rupees 10 million and remanded back certain charges to the tune of 172.7 million. The Company filed an appeal with
ATIR against the decision of CIR (Appeals) which is pending for hearing. The management of the Company is confident that decision will be in favor of the
Company, hence, no provision has been made in these financial statements.

15.1.5 DCRinitiated income tax audit for the year 2014 in which a demand of Rupees 123.412 million was created. The Company preferred an appeal before CIR
(Appeals) which is pending for hearing. The management is confident that decision will be in favor of the Company, hence, no provision has been made in
these financial statements.

15.1.6 The Company received show cause notice dated 14 December 2018 for which detailed reply was furnished to Assistant Commissioner Unit-07 Sindh
Revenue Board (SRB). Taxation officer subsequently passed assessment order under section 47 read with section 44 of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services
Act, 2011 demanding sales tax amounting to Rupees 30.572 million. Aggrieved with impugned order, the Company has preferred an appeal to the
Commissioner Appeals SRB, which is pending adjudication. Based on merits of the case and advice of the tax advisor, no provision against this demand
has been recognized in these financial statements.

15.1.7 Honorable Lahore High Court has allowed a petition filed by the Company against show-cause notice issued by DCIR amounting to Rupees 13.076 million.
The show-cause notice was issued on account of post sales tax refunds audit of various tax periods. FBR challenged the decision of Honorable Lahore High
Court in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending for hearing. The management is confident that decision will be in favor of the Company,
hence, no provision has been made in these financial statements.

15.1.8 DCIR conducted income tax audit for the year 2011 in which a demand of Rupees 19.605 million was created. The Company preferred an appeal before CIR
(Appeals) which is pending for hearing. The management is confident that decision will be in favor of the Company, hence, no provision has been made in
these financial statements.
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15.1.9

The Company has challenged, before Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the vires of first proviso to sub-clause (x) of clause (4) of SRO 491(1)/2016
dated 30 June 2016 issued under sections 3 and 4 read with sections 8 and 71 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby through amendment in the earlier
SRO 1125(1)/2011 dated 31 December 2011 adjustment of input sales tax on packing material of all sorts has been disallowed. The Honourable Lahore
High Court has issued stay order in favour of the Company. Consequently, the Company has claimed input sales tax on packing material of Rupees 58.123
million in its monthly sales tax returns. The management, based on advice of the legal counsel, is confident of favorable outcome of its appeal.

15.1.10 The Company has challenged, before Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the vires of clauses (h) and (i) to sub-section (1) of section 8 of the Sales Tax

151.11

Act, 1990 whereby claim of input sales tax in respect of building materials, electrical and gas appliances, pipes, fittings, wires, cables and ordinary electrical
fittings and sanitary fittings have been disallowed. The Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore has passed order against the Company and the Company
being aggrieved with the order has preferred Intra Court Appeal before the Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore. The Company has claimed input sales
tax of Rupees 21.784 million on such goods in its respective monthly sales tax returns. The management, based on advice of the legal counsel, is confident
of favorable outcome of its appeal.

DCIR initiated income tax cases of tax years 2006 and 2008. A demand of Rupees 12.774 million and Rupees 68.406 million respectively were created
by amending returns. Appeals were preferred with CIR(A) which were dismissed against the Company without discussing the merits of the cases. The
Company has filed appeal with ATIR which is pending for hearing. The management is confident that decision will be in favor of the Company, hence, no
provision has been made in these financial statements.

15.1.12 CIR passed an order regarding CREST discrepancies of sales tax for an amount of Rupees 10.324 million. The Company filed an appeal with ATIR which is

pending for hearing. The management is confident that decision will be in favor of the Company, hence, no provision has been made in these financial
statements.

15.2  Commitments
15.2.1 Guarantees issued in ordinary course of business through banks are of Rupees 879.505 million (2018: Rupees 523 million).
15.2.2 Contracts for capital expenditure are approximately of Rupees 82.054 million (2018: Rupees 11.86 million).
15.2.3 Letters of credit other than capital expenditure are of Rupees 483.486 million (2018: Rupees 486.71 million).
15.24 The Company has obtained vehicles under ijarah arrangements from Meezan Bank Limited, Allied Bank Limited and Bank Al Habib Limited for a period of
five years. Future Ujrah payments under ljarah are as follows:
2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand
Not later than one year 63,299 61,109
Later than one year and not later than five years 103,214 87,154
166,513 148,263
16.  FIXED ASSETS
Operating fixed assets (Note 16.1) 5,969,030 5,726,524
Capital work-in-progress (Note 16.2) 148,434 1,219,779

6,117,464 6,946,303
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

16.1.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales (Note 29) 600,678 531,143
Administrative expenses (Note 31) 18,263 18,221
Distribution cost (Note 30) 41,134 50,647
660,075 600,011
16.1.3 Particulars of immovable properties are as follows:
| Head office and manufacturing units Address Area of land |
Sq. Feet
Head office 2 - Main Gulberg, Lahore. 29,842
Manufacturing unit
Gujrat factory and residential colony G.T. Road, Gujrat. 2,038,608
2,068,450
2019 2018
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

16.2  Capital work-in-progress

Building 26,940 360,490
Plantand machinery 109,745 775,906
Furniture and fixtures 380 549
Service equipment 11,369 82,834
148,434 1,219,779
17.  Right-of-use assets
Buildings

Net carrying amount

Rupees in thousand

01 January 2019 1,358,761
31 December 2019 1,403,090
Depreciation expense for the year ended 31 December 2019 (Note 30) 192,739
Addition during the year ended 31 December 2019 237,068

17.1  Lease of buildings

The Company obtained buildings on lease for shops and godowns. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. Lease periods range from two to eleven years.
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

18  Intangible Assets

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,562 929
Add: Addition during the year 1,441 2,812
Less: Amortization during the year (Note 18.2) (1,315) (1,179)
Balance at the end of the year 2,688 2,562
18.1  Costatthe end of the year 44,916 43,475
Less: Accumulated amortization (42,228) (40,913)
Net book value at the end of the year 2,688 2,562

18.2  Amortization on intangible assets has been allocated as follows:
Administrative expenses (Note 31) 462 882
Distribution cost (Note 30) 853 297
1,315 1,179

18.3 Intangible assets have been amortized at the rate 33.33% perannum.

19.  Long term investments

Investment in subsidiary companies - at cost (Note 19.1) 2,314,021 218,681
Investment in associate (with significant influence) - under equity method (Note 19.2) 328,954 308,706
Investment in joint ventures - at cost (Note 19.3) 480 480
Other investment - at FVTOCI (Note 19.4) 24,550 22,050

2,668,005 549,917

19.1 Investment in subsidiary companies - at cost

Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited
29,999,997 (2018: 21,868,097) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each.
Equity held 100% (2018: 100%) 300,000 218,681
Service Global Footwear Limited
5,050,000 (2018: Nil ) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each.

Equity held 100% (2018: Nil) 50,500
150,000,000 shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme 1,963,521
2,014,021
2,314,021 218,681

19.2  Investment in associate (with significant influence) - under equity method

Speed (Private) Limited

160,709 (2018: 160,709) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 100 each 190,949 190,949

Share of post acquisition reserve

As at the beginning of the year 117,757 81,953

Share of post acquisition profit for the year 20,248 63,928

Dividend received during the year - (28,124)
138,005 117,757

328,954 308,706
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19.2.1 Speed (Private) Limited is primarily engaged in the business of distribution of international brands of footwear, apparel, watches, bags, sunglasses etc.
The registered office of Speed (Private) Limited is situated at Office No.1, First Floor, Service Club Extension Building, Merree weather Road, Karachi.

2019
Amount

2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

19.2.2 Summarized financial statements

Current assets 1,373,164 1,179,245
Non-current assets 269,050 252,094
Current liabilities 412,281 293,863
Non-current liabilities 1,970 1,970
Revenue - net for the year 2,298,065 2,336,356
Expenses for the year 2,205,659 2,044,445
Profit for the year 92,406 291,911
Total comprehensive income for the year 92,406 291,91
Net assets of the associate 1,227,963 1,135,506
Percentage of holding 21.90% 21.90%
Share in net assets of associate 268,924 248,676
19.2.3 Breakup value per share (Rupees) 1,674 1,548
19.2.4 Reconciliation to carrying amount:
Share in net assets of associate 268,924 248,676
Add: Goodwill 60,030 60,030
Carrying value of investment in associate 328,954 308,706
19.3  Investmentin joint ventures - at cost
S2 Power Limited
24,000(2018: 24,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 240 240
52 Hydro Limited
24,000 (2018: 24,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 240 240
480 480
Fairvalue
through other Available
comprehensive for Sale
income
19.4  Otherinvestment - at FVTOCI
TRG Pakistan Limited
1,000,000 (2018: 1,000,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 22,050 29,600
Fair value adjustment 2,500 (7,550)
24,550 22,050
20.  Longterm loans to employees
Considered good:
Executives (Notes 20.1,20.2 and 20.3) 25,680 28,877
Other employees (Note 20.3) 1,253 1,591
26,933 30,468
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2019

Amount

2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 24)
Executives 11,620 7,413
Other employees 543 2,605
12,163 10,018
14,770 20,450
20.1 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives:
Balance as at 01 January 28,877 22,013
Add: Dishursements 24,630 15,638
Less: Repayments 14,448 8,774
Less: Transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme 13,379
Balance as at 31 December 25,680 28,877
20.2  Maximum aggregate balance due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 28.805 million (2018: Rupees 28.877 million).
20.3  These represent interest free loans to executives and employees for general purposes and house building, which are recoverable in monthly installments
over a period of 10 years and are secured by a charge on the assets purchased and / or amount due to the employees against retirement benefits.
20.4  The fairvalue adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ arising in respect of staff loans is not considered material
and hence not recognized.
21.  Stores, spares and loose tools
Machinery spares 56,203 32,805
Stores 221,660 146,864
Loose tools 1,013 4141
278,876 183,810
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items (Note 21.1) 26,636 24,395
252,240 159,415
211 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items
Balance at the beginning of the year 24,395 29,230
Less: Transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme 3,744 -
Add: Provision made during the year 6,749 2,986
Less: Reversal of provision made during the year (764) (7,821)
Net charge / (reversal) of provision for the year 5,985 (4,835)
Balance at the end of the year 26,636 24,395
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2019

Amount

2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

22.  Stockdn-Trade
Raw materials 1,182,782 1,500,550
Packing materials 65,780 75,718
Work-in-process 225,852 398,416
Finished goods
- Own production 1,621,623 1,083,533
- Purchased 791,629 875,582
2,413,252 1,959,115
Goods in transit 474,313 240,401
4,361,979 4,174,200
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items (Note 22.1) 114,911 130,029
4,247,068 4,044.171
221 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items
Balance at the beginning of the year 130,029 141,006
Less: Transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme 95,899 -
Add: Provision made during the year 129,921 -
Less: Reversal of provision made during the year (48,951) (10,977)
Less: Stock written off against provision during the year (189) -
80,781 (10,977)
Balance at the end of the year 114,911 130,029
22.2  Finished goods of Rupees 252.393 million (2018: Rupees 233 million) are being carried at net realizable value.
223 Theaggregate amount of Rupees 52.572 million (2018: Rupees 76 million) has been charged to cost of sales, being the cost of inventory written down
during the year.
23.  Trade debts
Considered good:
Secured:
- Againstirrevocable letters of credit 19,605 369,260
Unsecured:
- Related party (Note 23.1,23.2 and 23.3) - 51,936
- Others (Note 23.4) 3,170,434 2,950,071
3,170,434 3,002,007
3,190,039 3,371,267
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 23.5) 168,918 70,929
3,021,121 3,300,338
23.1  This represented amount due from Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary of the subsidiary company.
232 The maximum aggregate amount receivable from Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - subsidiary of the subsidiary company at the end of any month
during the year was Rupees 79.693 million (2018: Rupees 63.154 million).
233 Asat31December 2018, trade debt due from related party was past due but not impaired. The age analysis of this trade debt was as follows:
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Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand
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Upto 1 month - 4,678
110 6 months - 23,284
More than 6 months - 23,974
Balance at the end of the year - 51,936
234 Asat31 December 2019, trade debts due from other than related parties of Rupees 569.353 million (2018: Rupees 1,008.487 million) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of default. The age analysis of these trade
debts is as follows:
Upto 1 month 56,526 69,189
1to 6 months 310,068 716,063
More than 6 months 202,759 223,235
569,353 1,008,487
235 Allowance for expected credit losses
Balance at the beginning of the year 70,929 39,232
Impact of adjustment due to adoption of IFRS 9 [Note 2.14 (vii)] 51,358 .
122,287 39,232
Less: Transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme 1,008 -
Add: Recognition of expected credit losses during the year 86,203 31,697
Less: Trade debts written off 38,564 -
47,639 31,697
Balance at the end of the year 168,918 70,929
23.6  During the year, trade debts of Rupees 38.564 million have been written off against allowance for expected credit losses. The ageing of these trade debts
was more than 3 years. These trade debts do not include amounts due from related parties.
24.  Loansand advances
Considered good:
Advances to staff 4,282 2,933
Current portion of long term loans to employees (Note 20) 12,163 10,018
Advances to suppliers 81,958 60,740
Letters of credit 266,832 369,022
Others (Note 24.1) 25,651 20,836
390,886 463,549
241 These include amount due from following related parties:
S2 Power Limited - joint venture 2,073 1,901

S2 Hydro Limited - joint venture 11,476 11,476
SBLTrading (Private) Limited - associated company - -

13,549 13,377
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

24.1.1 The maximum aggregate of amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was as follows:

S2 Power Limited - joint venture 2,073 1,901
S2 Hydro Limited - joint venture 11,476 11,476
SBLTrading (Private) Limited - associated company 94 -

25  Trade deposits and prepayments

Security deposits 115,372 47,854
Prepayments 16,256 45,615
131,628 93,469
26.  OtherReceivables
Considered good:
Duty draw back 75,468 415,798
Custom duty rebate 80,596 134,083
Advance income tax 773,215 1,129,740
Sales tax 186,548 638,298
Others 9,439 74,259
1,125,266 2,392,178
27.  Cashand bank balances
With banks:
On current accounts
Local currency 16,786 15,428
Foreign currency (Note 27.1) 2,057 688
18,843 16,116
On saving accounts
Local currency (Note 27.2) 5112 26,435
23,955 42,551
Cash in transit 2,178 4,953
Cash in hand 12,370 6,257
38,503 53,761
271 This represents USD 1,395 (2018: USD 1,575) and EURO 10,575.25(2018: EURO 3,406).
27.2  Rate of profit on saving accounts range from 8.25% to 11.25% (2018: 4.5% to 8%) per annum.
28.  SALES-net
Export sales 6,333,807 7,294,532
Discounts, commissions etc. (178,585) (136,454)
6,155,222 7,158,078
Local sales 24,409,749 20,299,768
Sales tax (3,300,119) (2,428,504)
Discounts, commissions etc. (1,306,998) (1,262,828)
19,802,632 16,608,436
Duty draw back 198,347 313,751

26,156,201 24,080,265
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

28.1 Sales of footwear - net

Export sales 4,856,664 6,250,345
Local sales 4,909,417 4,892,011
Duty draw back 198,347 313,751

9,964,428 11,456,107
Sales of tyres - net

Export sales 1,298,558 904,117
Local sales 14,662,034 11,699,282
15,960,592 12,603,399

Sales of technical rubber products - net
Export sales - 3,617
Local sales 231,181 17,142
231,181 20,759
26,156,201 24,080,265

29.  Costofsales

Raw materials consumed (Note 29.1) 13,466,222 11,759,451
Salaries, wages and other benefits (Note 29.2) 2,709,226 2,832,874
Stores and spares consumed 237,064 274,647
Packing materials consumed 626,836 635,158
Fuel and power 997,862 725,126
Insurance 24,129 21,589
Travelling 18,665 18,156
Repairand maintenance 162,547 148,811
Entertainment 3,909 4574
Depreciation (Note 16.1.2) 600,678 531,143
Provision / (reversal of provision) for slow moving and obsolete inventory 86,766 (15,813)
Other manufacturing charges 149,612 151,463

19,083,516 17,087,179
Work-in-process

Opening stock 398,415 294,957
Transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme (205,501) -
Less: Closing stock 225,852 (398,415)
(32,938) (103,458)
Cost of goods manufactured 19,050,578 16,983,721
Finished goods
Opening stock (Note 29.3) 2,187,110 2,208,141
Transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme (446,373) -
Add: Purchases during the year 2,893,895 2,514,835
Less: Closing stock 2,413,252 1,959,114
2,221,380 2,763,862

21,271,958 19,747,583
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2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

29.1 Raw materials consumed
Opening stock 1,500,550 1,315,442
Add: Purchases during the year 13,777,863 11,944,559
Less: Transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme 629,409 -
Less: Closing stock 1,182,782 1,500,550
13,466,222 11,759,451
29.2  Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rupees 98.314 million (2018: Rupees 99.767 million) and Rupees 20.864 million (2018: Rupees 13.715
million) in respect of provident fund contribution and gratuity fund contribution by the Company respectively.
29.3  Opening stock includes an impact of Rupees 227.996 million due to adoption of IFRS 15.
29.4  Custom duty rebate for the year amounting to Rupees 93.186 million (2018: Rupees 114.45 million) has been adjusted against raw materials
consumed.
30.  Distribution Cost
Salaries and other benefits (Note 30.1) 330,499 260,065
Freightand insurance 418,120 393,104
Advertisement and publicity 318,717 206,723
Entertainment 12,009 13,248
Samples 115,495 129,058
Depreciation (Note 16.1.2) 41,134 50,647
Depreciation on right-of-use-asets (Note 17) 192,739 -
Amortization on intangible assets (Note 18.2) 853 297
Rent, rates and taxes 7,288 222,683
Postage and courier 59,553 44,040
Fuel and power 42,031 34,255
Travelling and conveyance 76,542 36,964
Others 82,776 132,250
1,697,756 1,523,334
30.1  Salaries and other benefits include Rupees 9.188 million (2018: Rupees 8.392 million) and Rupees 15.459 million (2018: Rupees 4.973 million) in

respect of provident fund contribution and gratuity fund contribution by the Company respectively.
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2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

31.  Administrative Expenses
Salaries and other benefits (Note 31.1) 765,937 762,563
Communication 22,007 24,395
Printing and stationery 10,269 6,504
Travelling and conveyance 45,110 34,693
Entertainment 26,004 23,728
Vehicles' running 28,892 31,823
Insurance 2,819 3,444
Rent, rates and taxes 18,970 21,759
Fuel and power 22,833 21,112
Repairs and maintenance 12,317 23,197
Auditor's remuneration (Note 31.2) 5,289 3,819
Legal and professional 28,919 30,806
Subscription 1,344 2,432
Depreciation (Note 16.1.2) 18,263 18,221
Amortization on intangible assets (Note 18.2) 462 882
ljarah rentals 57,324 68,700
Computer running 10,307 1,894
Advertisement 307 2,858
General 39,808 46,264
1,117,181 1,129,694
311 Salaries and other benefits include Rupees 19.808 million (2018: Rupees 20.328 million) and Rupees 15.647 million (2018: Rupees 16.824 million) in
respect of provident fund contribution and gratuity fund contribution by the Company respectively.
31.2 Auditor's remuneration:
Audit fee 2,677 2,555
Special audit fee 1,695 -
Half yearly review 670 609
Taxation and other certification services 75 494
Reimbursable expenses 172 161
5,289 3,819
32.  OtherExpenses
Donations (Note 32.1and 32.2) 49,705 48,605
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 11.1) 42,284 41,734
Workers' welfare fund (Note 11.2) 21,899 8,302
Impairment loss on investment - 7,550
Loss on sale of operating fixed assets - net 5,051 9,961
Allowance for expected credit losses 86,203 31,697
205,142 147,849
32.1  These include Rupees 3.344 million (2018: Rupees 5.171 million) given to Service Charitable Trust in which Mr. Arif Saeed, Chief Executive, Mr. Omar Saeed,

Director and Mr. Hassan Javed, Director are trustees, Rupees 7.096 million (2018: Rupees Nil) given to Service Foundation in which Chaudhry Ahmed Javed,
Chairman, Mr. Arif Saeed, Chief Executive, Mr. Omar Saeed, Director and Mr. Hassan Javed, Director are directors and Rupees 11 million (2018: Rupees 12 million)
given to Kidney Centre Gujrat in which Mr. Omar Saeed, Director and Mr. Hassan Javed, Director are members of Board of Governors.
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Rupees in thousand

32.2  The names of donees to whom donation amount exceeds Rupees 4.971 million (2018: Rupees 0.5 million) are as follows:
Shalamar Hospital 12,962 14,882
Sundus Foundation - 5,000
Sindh Institute of Urology & Transplantation - 1,000
The Citizens Foundation 5,600 3,000
Wise Education Society 5,000 5,000
Dost Foundation - 600
23,562 29,482
32.2.1 There is no interest of any director or his spouse in donees' fund.
33.  OtherlIncome
Income from financial assets
Return on bank deposits 381 -
Exchange gain - net 272,320 142,445
Income from non-financial assets
Scrap sales and others 35,595 46,244
Rentalincome 3,906 9,802
312,202 198,491
34.  Finance Cost
Mark-up / interest on:
-long term financing 337,485 204,774
- short term borrowings 449,287 344,898
-loan from Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company 134,821 -
- lease liabilities 160,867 -
Bank charges and commission 41,129 39,268
1,123,589 588,940
35.  Taxation
Current (Note 35.1) 337,856 210,942
Prior year 3,350 (185)
Deferred tax (154,545) (66,779)
186,661 143,978
35.1  Provision for current taxation mainly represents minimum tax and final tax under section 113 and section 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
respectively. Tax charge reconciliation for the period is not presented being impracticable.
36.  Earnings Per Share - Basic And Diluted Restated
Basic
Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees in thousand) 886,364 1,061,307
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers) 18,794,982 18,794,982

Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 47.16 56.47
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36.1  Thereis no dilutive effect on basic eamings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 as the Company has no potential
ordinary shares as on 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019.
2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand
37.  Cash(usedin)/ Generated from Operations
Profit before taxation 1,073,025 1,205,285
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation 660,075 600,011
Depreciation on right-of-use-assets 192,739 -
Amortization on intangible assets 1,315 1,179
Provision for gratuity 51,970 35,513
Finance cost 1,123,589 588,940
Provision for workers' profit participation fund 42,284 41,734
Provision for workers' welfare fund 21,899 8,302
Provision / (reversal of provision) for slow moving and obsolete inventory 86,766 (15,812)
Allowance for expected credit losses 86,203 31,697
Share of profit in equity accounted investee (20,248) (63,928)
Impairment loss on investment - 7,550
Loss on sale of operating fixed assets - net 5,051 9,961
Working capital changes (Note 37.1) (3,599,167) (1,358,452)
(274,499) 1,091,980
37.1  Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools (125,701) (32,113)
Stock-in-trade (1,762,961) (116,007)
Trade debts (532,425) (534,633)
Loans and advances (291,331) (168,093)
Trade deposits and prepayments (51,377) 38,414
Other receivables 28,210 (332,333)
(2,735,585) (1,144,765)
Decrease in trade and other payables (863,582) (213,687)
(3,599,167) (1,358,452)
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37.2  Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

2019
Liabilities from financing activities
L9ng tgrm . Le.a.s.e Short tgrm Un.cl.aimed Total
financing liabilities borrowings dividend
Rupees in thousand
Balance as at 01 January 2019 3,316,880 5,633,361 32,002 8,982,243
Financing obtained 1,311,774 1,311,774
Lease liabilities recognised during the year 1,587,947 1,587,947
Repayment of financing / lease liabilities (846,800) (74,459) (921,259)
Short term borrowings - net 2,551,507 2,551,507
Transferred to Service Global Footwear Limited
- subsidiary company pursuant to the Scheme (304,408) (3,106,653) (3,411,061)
Dividend declared 548,812 548,812
Dividend paid (543,030) (543,030)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 3,477,446 1,513,488 5,078,215 37,784 10,106,933
2018
Liabilities from financing activities
Lgng term ' Leg:sg Short term Un.cl.aimed Total
financing liabilities borrowings dividend
Rupees in thousand

Balance as at 01 January 2018 2,883,572 4,520,732 27,774 7,432,078
Financing obtained 609,100 609,100
Repayment of financing (175,792) (175,792)
Short term borrowings - net 1,112,629 1,112,629
Dividend declared 264,634 264,634
Dividend paid (260,406) (260,406)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 3,316,880 5,633,361 32,002 8,982,243
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38.  Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Executives
The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration including all benefits to Chief Executive Officer, Director and Executives of
the Company is as follows:
Chief Executive Officer Directors Executives
2019 | 2018 2019 [ 2018 2019 | 2018
Rupees in thousand
Managerial remuneration 28,083 24,921 39,584 45,958 181,018 177,998
Bonus 27,900 26,792 39,100 52,407 59,031 53,141
Allowances:
House rent 2,808 2,492 3,959 4,596 45,982 40,894
Conveyance - - - - 19,119 11,784
Medical - - - - 23,475 19,981
Utilities 2,808 2,492 3,959 4,596 17,330 17,215
Special allowance - - - - 20,660 16,140
Retirement and other benefits 2,124 1,273 3,363 2,655 44,842 33,725
Total 63,723 57,970 89,965 110,212 411,456 370,878
Number of persons 1 1 2 2 67 77
38.1  The chief executive, executive directors and some of the executives of the Company are provided with Company maintained vehicles in accordance with
the Company's policy.
38.2  Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for meeting fee to directors was Rupees 1.951 million (2018: Rupees 1.416 million).
38.3  Noremuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.
39.  Transactions with related parties

The related parties comprise subsidiary companies, associated undertakings, employees’ gratuity fund trust, employees’ provident fund trust and key
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with

related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:
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Subsidiary companies
Advances made

Sale of goods

Purchase of goods

Associated companies
Dividend received

Sale of goods

Donations made
Reimbursement of expenses
Bonus shares issued

Key management personnel
Cash dividend paid
Bonus shares issued

Other related parties
Contribution to Service Provident Fund Trust

Contribution to Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund Trust

Bonus shares issued to Service Provident Fund Trust

39,832
28,864

51,282
9,503
171
57

24,700
30,209

127,310

51,970
3,202

152
31,415

28,124
83,743

3,802
100,145

128,487
35,513

39.1  Detail of compensation to key management personnel comprising of chief executive officer, directors and executives is disclosed in Note 38.
39.2  Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangements / agreements in place:
Transactions entered or
agreements and / or Percentage
SrNo. Name of related party Basis of Relationship arrangements in place Shareholding
during the financial year
1 S2 Power Limited Common Directorship Yes 48.00%
2 S2 Hydro Limited Common Directorship No 48.00%
3 Speed (Private) Limited Shareholding Yes 21.90%
4 SBLTrading (Private) Limited Common directorship Yes Nil
5 Service Industries Capital (Pvt) Limited Wholly owned subsidiary company No 100.00%
6 Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Subsidiary of Service Industries Capital
(Private) Limited (subsidiary company) Yes 60.00%
7 Sewvice Provident Fund Trust Post employment benefit plan Yes il
8 Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund Trust - Post employment benefit plan Yes Nil
9 Service Foundation Common directorship Yes Nil
10 Service Charitable Trust Directors of the Company are Trustees Yes Nil
11 Service Global Footwear Limited Wholly owned subsidiary company Yes 100.00%
12 Shahid Arif Investment (Private) Limited Common Directorship Yes Nil
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39.3  Particulars of company incorporated outside Pakistan with whom the Company had entered into transactions or had agreements and / or arrangements

in place is as follows:

Name Country of incorporation Basis of association Percentage
Shareholding
Semvice Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited Sri Lanka Subsidiary of Service Industries Capital 60%

(Private) Limited (subsidiary company)

39.3.1 Ason 31 December 2019, disclosures relating to Subsidiary of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited - subsidiary company, incorporated outside

Pakistan:
Particulars Details
Name of the company Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited
Jurisdiction Sri lanka
Beneficial owner Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited
Investment made during the year ended 31 December 2017
Investment in
Local currency PKR 62,770,000
Foreign currency USD 600,000
Terms and conditions of investment Investment in shares of subsidiary company
Amount of returns received None
Litigation against investee company None
Default / breach related to foreign company None
Gain/(loss) on disposal of investment Not applicable
40.  Plant Capacity
Footwear division
Due to the nature of the Company's business, production capacity is not determinable.
Technical rubber products
Due to the nature of the Company's business, production capacity is not determinable.
Tyre division
Installed capacity Actual production
2019 | 2018 2019 | 2018 |
Number of tyres 19,114,360 18,534,780 10,818,708 10,402,393
Number of tubes 52,515,170 51,628,500 39,468,162 37,861,408
The capacity of the plant was utilized to the extent of orders received.
41.  Financial Risk Management
41.1  Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential

adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.
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Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Company's finance
department evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas
such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and investment of excess liquidity.
(a) Market risk
(i) Currencyrisk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the United States Dollar (USD), Euro and
Great Britain Pound (GBP). Currently, the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to bank balances, and the amounts receivable /
payable from / to the foreign entities. The Company's exposure to currency risk was as follows:

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

Cash at banks - USD 1,395 1,575
Cash at banks - EURO 10,575 3,406
Trade debts - USD 1,305,729 2,243,316
Trade debts - EURO 116,285 2,343,746
Trade debts - GBP 69,855 162,841
Trade and other payables - USD (1,328,567) (642,000)
Trade and other payables - EURO (5,131) (235,000)
Trade and other payables - GBP (9,841) -
Net exposure - USD (21,443) 1,602,891
Net exposure - EURO 121,729 2,112,152
Net exposure - GBP 60,014 162,841

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the period:

Rupees per US Dollar

Average rate 151.31 122.09
Reporting date rate 155.35 138.60
Rupees per EURO

Average rate 168.70 143.76
Reporting date rate 173.48 158.52
Rupees per GBP

Average rate 192.34 162.08
Reporting date rate 203.30 175.88

Sensitivity analysis

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD, Euro and GBP with all other variables held constant,
the impact on profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 1.371 million (2018: Rupees 27.231 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of
exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements
has been calculated on a symmetric basis. In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent currency risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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(ii) Other price risk
Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risks.
Sensitivity analysis
The table below summarizes the impact of increase / decrease in the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) Index on the Company's equity (fair value reserve
FVTOCl investment). The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased / decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant
and the Company's equity instrument moved according to the historical correlation with the index:
Impact on statement of
other comprehensive Impact on profit
Index income after taxation
Fair value reserve
FVTOCI investment)
2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand
PSX 100 (5% increase) 1,228 1,103
PSX 100 (5% decrease) (1,228) (1,103)
(iii)  Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company has no significant long-term interest-bearing asset. The Company's interest rate risk arises mainly from long term financing, short term
borrowings and bank balances in saving accounts. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings
obtained at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments was:

Fixed rate instruments

Financial liabilities

Long term financing 292,446 462,11
Short term borrowings 2,078,345 3,497,355

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets
Bank balances - saving accounts 5112 26,435

Financial liabilities
Long term financing 3,185,000 2,854,769
Short term borrowings 2,999,870 2,136,006
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Ifinterest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees
66.123 million (2018: Rupees 53.118 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings. This analysis is
prepared assuming the amounts of assets and liabilities outstanding at reporting the dates were outstanding for the whole year.

Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The camrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

2019 2018
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand
Long term investment 24,550 22,050
Long term loans to employees 26,933 30,468
Long term security deposits 105,894 95,010
Trade debts 3,021,121 3,300,338
Loans and advances 29,933 23,769
Trade deposits 115,372 47,854
Other receivables 9,439 74,259
Bank balances 23,955 42,551
3,357,197 3,636,299

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due norimpaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (If available) or to
historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating 2019 2018
Short term Long term Agency Amount Amount

Banks Rupees in thousand

Allied Bank Limited A+ AAA PACRA 4,517 27,740
Askari Bank Limited A+ AA+ PACRA 373 20
Bank Alfalah Limited A+ A+ PACRA 85 109
Bank Al-Habib Limited A+ A+ PACRA 457 2,264
Faysal Bank Limited A+ AA PACRA 3,274 4,622
Habib Bank Limited A+ AMA JCRVIS 5229 475
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AMA PACRA 217 224
Meezan Bank Limited A1+ A+ JCRVIS 1,699 364
National Bank of Pakistan A+ AAA PACRA 1,004 892
Samba Bank Limited A1+ M JCRVIS 53 49
Soneri Bank Limited A+ AA- PACRA 2,353 16
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited A+ AAA PACRA 1,625 353
United Bank Limited AT+ AMA JCRVIS 3,069 5423

23,955 42,551
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Long term investment
TRG Pakistan Limited Unknown 24,550 22,050
48,505 64,601

The Company's exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to trade debts is disclosed in Note 23.
Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong financial standing,
management does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity riskis the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. At 31
December 2019, the Company had Rupees 4,247 million (2018: Rupees 4,008 million) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees 38.503
million (2018: Rupees 53.761 million) cash and bank balances. The management believes the liquidity risk to be low. Following are the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities, including interest payments. The amount disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2019:

Carrying | Contractual | 6 months 6-12 1-2 More than
Amount cash flows orless months Years 2 Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Long term financing 3,477,446 4,631,927 767,544 513,789 1,105,669 2,244,925
Long term deposits 2,406 2,406 - - 2,406
Lease liabilities 1,513,488 2,317,657 118,191 130,347 274,347 1,794,772
Short term borrowings 5,078,215 6,298,157 6,146,299 151,858 - -
Trade and other payables 2,304,245 2,304,245 2,304,245 -
Unclaimed dividend 37,784 37,784 37,784
Accrued mark-up 256,471 256,471 256,471

12,670,055 15,848,647 9,630,534 795,994 1,380,016 4,042,103

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2018:

Carrying  Contractual 6 months 6-12 1-2 More than
Amount  cash flows or less months Years 2 Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Long term financing 3,316,880 4,142,176 601,156 506,216 937,687 2,097,117
Long term deposits 3,243 3,243 - - - 3,243
Short term borrowings 5,633,361 6,735,010 6,543,287 191,723
Trade and other payables 2,458,408 2,458,408 2,458,408
Unclaimed dividend 32,002 32,002 32,002
Accrued mark-up 146,917 146,917 146,917

11,590,811 13,517,756 9,781,770 697,939 937,687 2,100,360

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark up rates effective as at reporting
date. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in note 6 and note 13 to these financial statements.
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41.2  Financial instruments by categories
Assets as per statement of financial position
2019 2018
Rupees in thousand Rupees in thousand
FVTOCI Amortized Available Loans and
cost for sale receivables
Long term investment 24,550 - 22,050
Long term loans to employees 26,933 - 30,468
Long term security deposits 105,894 - 95,010
Trade debts 3,021,121 - 3,300,338
Loans and advances 29,933 - 23,769
Trade deposits 115,372 - 47,854
Other receivables 9,439 - 74,259
Cash and bank balances 38,503 53,761
24,550 3,347,195 22,050 3,625,459
2019 2018
At Amortized Cost
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand
Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Long term financing 3,477,446 3,316,880
Long term deposits 2,406 3,243
Lease liabilities 1,513,488
Accrued mark-up 256,471 146,917
Short term borrowings 5,078,215 5,633,361
Unclaimed dividend 37,784 32,002
Trade and other payables 2,304,245 2,458,408
12,670,055 11,590,811
41.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
As on the reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to off setting as there are no enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.
41.4 Capital Risk Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concer in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent
with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed. Borrowings represent long term financing, and short term borrowings obtained by the
Company as referred to in note 6 and note 13 respectively. Total capital employed includes 'total equity’ as shown in the statement of financial position
plus 'borrowings'. The Company's strategy, remained unchanged from last year.
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

Borrowings 8,555,661 8,950,241
Total equity 5,741,208 5,516,165
Total capital employed 14,296,869 14,466,406
Gearing ratio Percentage 59.84% 61.87%

42.

The decrease in gearing ratio is mainly due to decrease in borrowings of the Company.
Recognized fair value measurements - financial instruments

Fair value hierarchy

Judgements and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value in these
financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the following three levels. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Recurring fair value measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2019

Rupees in thousand
Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 24,550 - - 24,550
Total financial assets 24,550 - - 24,550
Recurring fair value measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 December 2018

Rupees in thousand
Financial assets
Available for sale financial assets 22,050 - - 22,050

Total financial assets 22,050 - - 22,050

The above table does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amounts are a
reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to short term nature, carrying amounts of certain financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be
the same as their fair value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not significantly different to their carrying amounts.

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the period. Further, there was no transfer in and out of level
3 measurements.

The Company's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted

equity securities.

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include the use of quoted market prices.
43.  Segment Information
The Company has three reportable segments. The following summary describes the operation in each of the Company's reportable segments:
Footwear: Purchase, manufacturing and sale of different qualities of footwear.
Tyre: Manufacturing of different qualities of tyres.
Technical Rubber Products: Manufacturing of different qualities of rubber products on specifications.
< Rupees in thousand >
Footwear Tyre division Technical rubber products Total Total
31 Dec 31Dec 31 Dec 31Dec 31Dec 31Dec 31Dec 31 Dec
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Sales 9964428 11456107 15960592 12,603,399 231,181 20,759 26,156,201 24,080,205
Profit / (loss) before taxation and unallocated
Income and expenses 761505 1473057 1942235 1282514 61,312 (7.850) 2765052 2,707,721
Unallocated income and expenses: (1,692,027)  (1,502,436)
Taxation (186,601) (143,978)
Profit after taxation 886,364 1,061,307
43.1. Reconciliation of reportable segment assets and liabilities
Total assets for reportable segment 5947499 6942869 9121739 8,662,533 152,290 54481 15221528 15,659,883
Unallocated assets 4297095 2,461,240
Total assets as per statement of financial position 19518623 18121123
Unallocated liabilities 13777415 12,604,958
Total liabilities as per statement of financial position 13771415 12,604,958
2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand
43.2. Geographical information
The Company's revenue from external customers by geographical locations is detailed below:
Europe 3,459,001 5,513,100
United States of America 833,617 449,382
Asia 1,757,542 1,264,910
Australia 79,193 87,236
Africa 224,216 157,201
Pakistan 19,802,632 16,608,436
26,156,201 24,080,265
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All non-current assets of the Company as at reporting dates are located and operating in Pakistan.

Revenue from major customers
The Company's revenue is earned from a large mix of customers.

Provident Fund Related Disclosures
As per the Scheme, employees provident fund of Service Industries Limited in the name of Service Provident Fund Trust shall be continued for the benefits
of the employees of the Company and Service Global Footwear Limited - subsidiary company.

As at the reporting date, the Service Provident Fund Trust is in the process of regularizing its investments in accordance with section 218 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and the regulations formulated for this purpose by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan which allows transition period of 3 years for
bringing the Employees Provident Fund Trust in conformity with the requirements of regulations.

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

46.

46.1.

46.2.

46.3

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employees as at 31 December 7,238 10,906
Average number of employees during the year 9,072 10,882

Events after the Reporting Period

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of Rupees 7.50 per share (i.e. 75%) along
with issuance of bonus shares in proportion of 25 ordinary shares for every 100 ordinary shares held by the members (i.e. 25%) at their meeting held
on June 25, 2020. However, this event has been considered as non-adjusting event under IAS 10 'Events after the Reporting Period’ and has not been
recognized in these financial statements.

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Corona virus (COVID-19) outbreak to be a pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread
across the globe. Many governments are taking increasingly stringent steps to help contain or delay the spread of the virus. The outbreak of the COVID-19
introduces additional challenges and risks to the Company's operations. The Company has already undertaken specific measures to ensure the health
and safety of its employees. In order to dampen the impacts of this situation, the Company has obtained additional export refinance (ERF) of Rupees
1,290 million from various banks. The additional ERF has reduced the financial burden of the Company, since KIBOR based borrowings have been
converted into ERF at 3% markup. The Company has also availed the deferment of principal payments of long-term loans falling between 26 March 2020
to 25 March 2021. The principal payments have been deferred for one year in line with the relevant circular of State Bank of Pakistan. The Company has
also been successful in obtaining further funded facilities from various banks, which has provided the Company further liquidity to survive the present
crisis. Presently additional funded facility of Rupees 500 million has been obtained to date. Furthermore, due to the recent announcement of Federal
Government to release the drawback of local taxes and levies of exporters, the Company has obtained refunds of Rupees 41.034 million. The Company has
also successfully managed its cash flows consisting of local suppliers’ payments and import payments in line with its receipts from its debtors (local and
foreign). This matching policy of cash inflows and outflows has successfully managed the borrowing of the Company and kept it at a manageable level.

For the Company's 31 December 2019 financial statements, the Corona virus outbreak and the related impacts are considered non-adjusting events.
Consequently, there is no impact on the recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of the current events,
the Company cannot reasonably estimate the impact these events will have on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows in the
future.

119



Service Industries Limited

47.  Date of authorization for issue
These financial statements were authorized for issue on June 25, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

48. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. Entire Muridke Footwear undertaking has been
separated from Service Industries Limited with effect from 01 July 2019. Hence, comparative figures are not comparable.

49.  General
Figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand of Rupees, except stated otherwise.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed Badar Ul Hassan
(Chairman) (Chief Executive) (Chief Financial Officer)
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Group Directors’ Report
to the Shareholders

The Directors take pleasure in presenting their report together with the Consolidated Financial statements of Service Industries Limited (“The
Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary Companies (together referred to as Group) for the year ended December 31,2019.

The Group comprises of Service Industries Limited, Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Service Industries
Limited, Service Global Footwear Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Service Industries Limited and Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited, a
subsidiary company of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited.

Service Industries Limited

The Directors' Report providing a commentary on the performance of Service Industries Limited for the year ended December 31, 2019 has been
presented separately. Service Industries Limited has annexed its consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial statements, in
accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and Companies Act, 2017.

Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited

Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Service Industries Limited. Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited
got registered under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) in Pakistan as a company limited by shares on November
10,2015.The registered office of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited is situated at Service House, 2-Main Gulberg, Lahore. The main object
of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited is to make investment in new ventures, shares and securities, listed or otherwise, in Pakistan or
elsewhere in the world, subject to requirements of applicable law.

Service Global Footwear Limited

Service Global Footwear Limited was incorporated as a public limited company on 19 July 2019 in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017. The
principal activities of the Company are manufacturing, sale, marketing, import and export of footwear, leather and allied products. It is wholly
owned subsidiary of Service Industries Limited.

Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited

Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited is a subsidiary company of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited, which is wholly owned subsidiary
of Service Industries Limited. Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited is a Private Limited Liability Company incorporated on July 16, 2015
and domiciled in Sri Lanka under the provisions of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. The registered office of the Company is located at
No. 143/17, Sri Wickerma Mawatha, Colombo 15 and the principal place of business is located at Katunayake.

Clarification to Qualification in Audit Report

Intheir Report to the Members, Auditors have stated that consolidated financial statements of Service Industries Limited include un-audited figures
pertaining to Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited, a subsidiary of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited. The audit of Service Shoes Lanka
(Private) Limited is in process hence, we have used un-audited financial statements of Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited to prepare Consolidated
Financial Statement of Service Industries Limited and its subsidiaries.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed
Chairman Chief Executive
June 25,2020

Lahore
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Auditors’ Report To The Members

On Consolidated Financial Statements

To the members of Service Industries Limited

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Service Industries Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The financial statements of Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 are unaudited
and have been prepared by the management in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards for Small and Medium Sized Entities. Hence,
total assets of Rupees 255,722,290 as at 31 December 2019 and total turnover and net loss of Rupees 369,330,130 and Rupees 32,621,778
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2019 pertaining to the aforesaid Subsidiary Company have been consolidated without incorporating
adjustments necessary to give effect to uniform accounting policies adopted by the Group and disclosures required under accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
asadopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Following are the Key audit matters:
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As at 31 December 2019, stock-in-trade is stated at Rupees
5,903.758 million.

Stock-in-trade is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable
value.

We identified existence and valuation of stock-in-trade as a key
audit matter due to its size, representing 25.88% of total assets of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and the judgment involved
in valuation.

For further information on stock - in - trade, refer to the following:

Summary of significant accounting policies, Stock-
in-trade note 2.15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Stock-in-trade note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Sr.No | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit
1 Revenue recognition Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue,
amongst others, included the following:
The Group recognized net sales of Rupees 30,058.321 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019. e Obtaining an understanding of the process relating
to recognition of revenue and testing the design,
We identified recognition of revenue as a key audit matter implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the controls over recording of revenue;
Group and gives rise to an inherent risk that revenue could be
subjectto misstatement to meet expectations or targets. ° Compar]ng a Sample of revenue transactions recorded
during the year with sales orders, sales invoices, delivery
For further information on revenue, refer to the following: documents and other relevant underlying documents;
Summary of significant accounting policies, | « Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recorded
Revenue from contracts with customers note 2.18 around the year end with the sales orders, sales invoices,
to the consolidated financial statements. delivery documents and other relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the related revenue was recorded
Sales - net note 29 to the consolidated financial in the appropriate accounting year;
statements.
e Assessing whether the accounting policies for revenue
recognition complies with the requirements of IFRS 15
'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'; and
e Comparing the details of a sample of journal entries posted
to revenue accounts during the year, which met certain
specific risk-based criteria, with the relevant underlying
documentation.
We also considered the appropriateness of disclosures in the
financial statements.
2 Stock-in-trade

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of stock-in-trade,
amongst others, included the following:

e Assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over valuation of stock-
in-trade including determination of net realizable values;

e Attending inventory counts and reconciling the count results
to the inventory listings to test the completeness of data;

e Assessing the net realizable value of stock-in-trade by
comparing, on a sample basis, management's estimation
of future selling prices for the products with selling prices
achieved subsequent to the end of the reporting year;

o Comparing the net realizable value to the cost of a sample of
stock-in-trade and comparison to the associated provision to
assess whether stock-in-trade provisions are complete; and

® Assessing accuracy of inventory ageing reports and adequacy
of provisions.
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Sr.No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Application of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 'Leases’ with effect from 01
January 2019. IFRS 16 introduces a single on consolidated
statement of financial position lease accounting model for
leases entered into by lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use
asset representing its right of using the underlying asset and
a corresponding lease liability representing its obligations to
make lease payments. On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for operating leases which are now
recognized on the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group has accordingly recognized right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities amounting to Rupees 1,358.761 million and
Rupees 1,350.879 million respectively as at 01 January 2019.
The comparative figures for the 2018 reporting period have
not been restated, as permitted under the specific transitional
provisions of the standard.

The adoption of IFRS 16 involves estimation and judgement.
Because of the significance of the impact of these judgements /
estimates, we considered this a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

e obtaining an understanding of the management's process
for identification of agreements which contain leasing
arrangements;

* evaluating the selection of accounting policies and
methodology followed by the management for
determination and measurement of right-of-use assets,
corresponding lease liabilities and other related impacts;

e on asample basis, testing the underlying data used by the
management from the lease contracts for determination of
the right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities.
Further, performed re-computations on a test basis to
assess the accuracy of computations performed by the
management; and

e assessing whether the presentation and disclosures relating
to the adoption of IFRS 16 in the consolidated financial
statements are in compliance with the applicable financial

reporting framework.
For further information on leases, refer to the following:

Summary of significant accounting policies, Leases
note 2.10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Lease liabilities and Right-of-use assets note 8 and
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, the Group should have consolidated Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited
(Subsidiary Company) based on audited financial statements. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other information is
materially misstated with respect to this matter.
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Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, butis nota guarantee thatan audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants whose
auditor's report dated 03 April 2019 expressed qualified opinion in respect of un-audited financial statements of Service Shoes Lanka (Private)
Limited - Subsidiary Company.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mubashar Mehmood.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Lahore.
Date:June 25,2020
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Service Industries Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31,2019
2019 2018
Amount Amount
Note Rupees in thousand
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized Share Capital
100,000,000 (2018:100,000,000) Ordinary Shares of Rupees 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 4 187,950 120,288
Reserves 5 6,027,682 5,379,198
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company 6,215,632 5,499,486
Non-controlling interest (31,693) (16,322)
Total equity 6,183,939 5,483,164
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing 6 3,090,252 2,617,155
Long term deposits 7 2,406 3,243
Lease liabilities 8 1,302,055 -
Employees' retirement benefit 9 215,979 180,446
Deferred income tax liability - net 10 189,131 341,182
4,799,823 3,142,026

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 1 4,006,199 2,881,556
Accrued mark-up 12 142,320 146,917
Short term borrowings 13 6,284,209 5,722,630
Current portion of non-current liabilities 14 947,685 699,725
Unclaimed dividend 37,784 32,002
Provision for taxation 407,864 214,255

11,826,061 9,697,085
TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,625,884 12,839,111
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 15 - -
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 22,809,823 18,322,275

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed
(Chairman)
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Note Rupees in thousand
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets 16 7,260,918 7,054,975
Right-of-use assets 17 1,403,090 -
Intangible assets 18 48,173 43179
Long term investments 19 542,646 506,914
Long term loans to employees 20 25,031 20,450
Long term security deposits 112,171 95,010
9,392,029 7,720,528

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools 21 289,399 160,155
Stock-in-trade 22 5,903,758 4,122,156
Trade debts 23 3,617,736 3,273,650
Loans and advances 24 684,295 479,530
Trade deposits and prepayments 25 136,379 94,917
Other receivables 26 2,681,253 2,398,498
Accrued interest 27 1,426 -
Cash and bank balances 28 103,548 72,841

13,417,794 10,601,747
TOTAL ASSETS 22,809,823 18,322,275

Arif Saeed Badar Ul Hassan

(Chief Executive)

(Chief Financial Officer)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended December 31,2019

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Note Rupees in thousand

Restated
Sales - net 29 30,058,321 24,229,643
Cost of sales 30 (24,327,246) (19,901,407)
Gross profit 5,731,075 4,328,236
Distribution cost 31 (1,994,315) (1,542,734)
Administrative expenses 32 (1,328,266) (1,169,326)
Other expenses 33 (241,086) (147,849)

(3,563,667) (2,859,909)

2,167,408 1,468,327

Otherincome 34 448,410 200,123
Profit from operations 2,615,818 1,668,450
Finance cost 35 (1,062,429) (596,649)

1,553,389 1,071,801

Share of profit in equity accounted investee - net of taxation 33,232 105,001
Profit before taxation 1,586,621 1,176,802
Taxation 36 (227,612) (147,105)
Profit after taxation 1,359,009 1,029,697

Share of profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the holding company 1,372,058 1,057,395
Non-controlling interest (13,049) (27,698)
1,359,009 1,029,697

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 37 73.00 56.26

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed Badar Ul Hassan
(Chairman) (Chief Executive) (Chief Financial Officer)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended December 31,2019

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Note Rupees in thousand
Restated
Profit after taxation 1,359,009 1,029,697
Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Surplus arising on remeasurement of investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income - net of tax 2,500 -
Remeasurements of employees’ retirement benefit obligation - net of tax 11,654 (27,269)
14,154 (27,269)
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign subsidiary (5,804) (378)
Exchange difference on translation of goodwill 4,198 1,784
(1,606) 1,406
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 12,548 (25,863)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,371,557 1,003,834
Share of total comprehensive income attributable to:
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE HOLDING COMPANY 1,386,928 1,030,818
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (15,371) (26,984)
1,371,557 1,003,834

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed
(Chairman) (Chief Executive)

(Chief Financial Officer)

Badar Ul Hassan
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31,2019

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Note Rupees in thousand

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 38 1,968,280 1,091,790
Finance cost paid (1,067,026) (557,797)
Income tax paid (296,996) (276,073)
Employees' retirement benefits paid (12,166) (10,735)
Long term loans - net (9,844) (2,688)
Long term deposits - net (17,161) 4,383
Net cash generated from operating activities 565,087 248,880
Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditure on operating fixed assets (941,038) (1,619,117
Intangible asset acquired (6,468) (2,812)
Long term investments - 7,550
Loan to associated company (50,000) -
Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets 11,855 2,057
Dividend received from associated company - 46,184
Net cash used in investing activities (985,651) (1,566,138)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long term financing 1,450,506 609,100
Repayment of long term financing (940,882) (175,792)
Repayment of lease liabilities (74,459) -
Long term deposits - net (837) (2,015)
Short term borrowings - net 561,579 1,133,358
Dividend paid (543,030) (260,406)
Net cash generated from financing activities 452,877 1,304,245
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (1,606) 1,406
Net increase / decrease in cash and cash equivalents 30,707 (11,607)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 72,841 84,448
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 103,548 72,841

The annexed notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed
(Chairman) (Chief Executive)

Badar Ul Hassan

(Chief Financial Officer)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31,2019

1 The group and its operations
The Group consists of:

Holding Company
- Service Industries Limited

Subsidiary Companies

- Sewvice Global Footwear Limited

- Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited
- Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited

Service Industries Limited

Semvice Industries Limited was incorporated as a private limited company on 20 March 1957 in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the
Companies Act, 2017), converted into a public limited company on 23 September 1959 and got listed on 27 June 1970. The shares of the Company are
quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activities of the Company are purchase, manufacture and sale of footwear, tyres and tubes and
technical rubber products. Geographical location and addresses of all business units are as follows:

Offices, Manufacturing units,
Retail outlets and Warehouses

Address

Registered and head office
Karachi office
Factory site

Retail outlets

Shoe Box M.M. Alam Road
Shoe Box Mall Road

Shoe Box Baghban Pura
Shoe Box Allama Igbal Town
Shoe Box Wapda Town
Shoe Box Link Road

Shoe Box Karim Block
Shoe Box DHAY Block
Shoe Box Gujranwala 1
Shoe Box Gujranwala 2
Shoe Box Gujrat

Shoe Box Kharian

Shoe Box Faisalabad

Shoe Box Burewala

Shoe Box Bahawalpur 1
Shoe Box Bahawalpur 2
Shoe Box Mandi Baha-ud-Din
Shoe Box Multan

Shoe Box Rahim Yar Khan
Shoe Box Rawalpindi
Shoe Box Sargodha

Shoe Box Sargodha 2
Shoe Box Sialkot

Shoe Box Sahiwal

Servis House, 2 - Main Gulberg, Lahore
Adamjee House, 10th Floor, L.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.
G.T. Road, Gujrat.

R-2, M.M. Alam Road, Gulberg Il, Lahore.

Near Urban Sole, Mall Road, Lahore.

17-A, Main G.T Road, Lahore.

Gulshan Block-1, Main Boulevard, Allama Igbal Town, Lahore.

8, PIA Society, Wapda Town, Lahore.

Opposite Raja Sh, Link Road, Model Town, Lahore.

23-Karim Block, Allama Igbal Town, Lahore.

133 Block, Phase 3, DHA, Lahore.

College Chowk, Main Market, Satellite Town, Gujranwala.

751-B, Rex Cinema Road, Main Market, Satellite Town, Gujranwala.
Hassan Chowk, Kacheri Road, Gujrat.

Main G.T. Road, Near Stylo Shoes, Kharian.

D-Ground, Faisalabad.

Al-Rehman Center, Opposite Stylo Shoes, G.T. Road, Vehari Road, Burewala.
Circular Road, Opposite Quaid-e-Azam Medical College, Bahawalpur.
Railway Road, Bahawalpur.

Kacheri Road, Mandi Baha-ud-Din.

Zain Tower, 10-A Gulgshat Colony, Multan.

Shahi Road, Rahim Yar Khan.

Nadir Plaza, Near Shan Mall, Commercial Market, Satellite Town, Rawalpindi.
City Tower, City Road, Sargodha.

03 Jinnah Park, University Road, Sargodha.

Shoe Box Daruma Wala Chowk, Trunk Bazar, Opposite Bata Shoes, Sialkot.
Near Metro Shoes, Girls College Road, Sahiwal.
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Offices, Manufacturing units,
Retail outlets and Warehouses

Address

Shoe Box Peshawar
Shoe Box Peshawar 2
Shoe Box Multan Cantt.
Shoe Box Chakwal
Budget Box Sheikhupura
Factory Outlet Vehari
Factory Outlet Muridke
Factory Outlet Gujrat
Factory Outlet Township
Factory Outlet Kharian
Shoe Box Franchise

KLARA Warehouses
Lahore

Lahore

Rawalpindi

Faisalabad

Bahawalpur

University Road, Peshawar.

Saddar Road, Peshawar.

Property No. 115-1A, Aziz Bhatti Shaheed Road, Multan Cantt.
Al-Fateh Plaza, Talagang Road, Near GPO, Chakwal

Bhatti Chowk, Near Virk Travels, Gujranwala Chowk, Sheikhupura.
Klara, 143-C, Club Road, Vehari.

10-KM Sheikhupura Road, Muridke.

Sewvis Factory, Main G.T. Road, Gujrat.

Shop No. 5-A-1, Al-Madina Road, Township, Lahore.

Main G.T. Road, Near Stylo Shoes, Kharian.

Al-Hafeez Center, 26-A, Model Town, Lahore.

26-KM, Multan Road, Opposite Maraka Telephone Exchange, Lahore.
19-A, Main Ravi Road, Near Kasur Pura Stop, Yadgar, Lahore.

Near Bagar Dhair, Tippu Sultan Masjid I-J-P Road, Rawalpindi.
Jhang Road, Opposite Nayab Energy Gate, Faisalabad.

6-A, Adil Town, Dubai Mehal Road, Near City School, Bahawalpur.

Service Global Footwear Limited

Service Global Footwear Limited was incorporated as a public limited company on 19 July 2019 in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017. The principal
activities of the Company are manufacturing, sale, marketing, import and export of footwear, leather and allied products. It is wholly owned subsidiary of
Service Industries Limited. Geographical location and addresses of all business units are as follows:

Offices, Manufacturing unit, and Retail outlet Addresses

Registered office and Head office
Factory site
Factory outlet

Servis House, 2 - Main Gulberg, Lahore
10 - KM, Muridke - Sheikhupura Road, Lahore
10 - KM, Muridke - Sheikhupura Road, Lahore

Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited

Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited is a private limited company incorporated in Pakistan on 10 November 2015 under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (Now Companies Act, 2017). Its registered office and head office is situated at Servis House, 2-Main Gulberg, Lahore. The principal objects
of the Company are to hold investments in subsidiaries / joint ventures and other companies, entities and organizations, listed or otherwise in Pakistan or
elsewhere in the world subject to all the applicable laws and procedures but not to act as an investment company. It is wholly owned subsidiary of Service
Industries Limited.

Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited

Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited is a Private Limited Liability Company incorporated on 16 July 2015 under the provisions of the Companies Act No. 07
of 2007 in Sri Lanka. The registered office of the Company is located at No. 143 /17, Sri Wickerma Mawatha, Colombo and the principal place of business
is located at Katunayake, Sri Lanka. It is subsidiary of Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited which is wholly owned subsidiary of Service Industries
Limited. Ownership interest held by non-controlling interest in Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company is 40% (2018: 40%).

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:



Service Industries Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31,2019

2.1

a)

iii)

vi)

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

-International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act,
2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the respective accounting policies.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments
were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis of the management of the
Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might
affect the carrying amount of respective item of operating fixed assets, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling prices less estimated expenditure to make sales.

Taxation

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions
of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Recovery of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the Company considers it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the lifetime expected credit loss,
grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent
sales experience and historical collection rates.

Impairment of investment in subsidiary companies and equity method accounted for associated company

In making an estimate of recoverable amount of the Company's investment in subsidiary companies and equity method accounted for associated company,
the management considers future cash flows.
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Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the Company is considered to be the point of
delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits
of unimpeded access.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in
current year and are relevant to the Company

Following standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 January 2019:

e |FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendments to IFRS 9

* |FRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and amendments to IFRS 15

o [FRS 16 'Lease’

* |FRIC23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

e |AS 28 (Amendments) 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'

o |ASB's Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2015 - 2017 Cycle, incorporating amendments to IFRSs more specifically in IAS 12 'Income Taxes' and IAS 23
‘Borrowing Costs’

The Company had to change its accounting policies and make certain adjustments without restating prior year results following the adoption of IFRS 16,
IFRS 9 and IFRS 15.These are disclosed in note 2.9, note 2.14 and note 2.19. Most of the other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to the
Company

There are other amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019 but are considered
notto be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company's financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

Standard and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but relevant to the
Company

Following standard and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods beginning on
or after 01 January 2020 or later periods:

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020). The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand
and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality
judgements when preparing general purpose consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS.

Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020). The International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) has issued ‘Definition of Business' aimed at resolving the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a
business ora group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments include an election to use a
concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past consolidated financial statements.

0n 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual Framework. The new Framework: reintroduces
the terms stewardship and prudence; introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than
the definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction between a liability and an equity instrument; removes from the asset and liability definitions
references to the expected flow of economic benefits-this lowers the hurdle foridentifying the existence of an asset or liability and puts more emphasis on
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reflecting uncertainty in measurement; discusses historical cost and current value measures, and provides some guidance on how the IASB would go about
selecting a measurement basis for a particular asset or liability; states that the primary measure of financial performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances will the IASB use other comprehensive income and only for income or expenses that arise from a change in the current value of
an asset o liability; and discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the reporting entity and combined financial statements. The Framework is
notan IFRS standard and does not override any standard, so nothing will change in the short term. The revised Framework will be used in future standard-
setting decisions, but no changes will be made to current IFRS. Preparers might also use the Framework to assist them in developing accounting policies
where an issue is not addressed by an [FRS. It is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for preparers that develop an accounting
policy based on the Framewaork.

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective and not
considered relevant to the Group

There are other standards and amendments to published approved standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January
2020 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significantimpact on the Group's financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these
consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation
a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The assets and liabilities of Subsidiary Companies have been consolidated on a line by line basis and carrying value of investments held by the Holding
Company is eliminated against Holding Company's share in paid up capital of the Subsidiary Companies.

Intragroup balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Non-controlling interest are that part of net results of the operations and of net assets of Subsidiary Companies attributable to interest which are not owned
by the Holding Company. Non-controlling interest are presented as separate item in the consolidated financial statements.

b) Associate

Associate is an entity over which the Group has significantinfluence but not control or joint control. Investment in associate is accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investment is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associate is recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associate is eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees

have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Investment in equity method accounted for associate is tested for impairment in accordance with the provision of IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets'.
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c) Translations of the financial statements of foreign subsidiary

The financial statements of foreign subsidiary of which the functional currency is different from that used in preparing the Group's financial statements are
translated in functional currency of the Group. Statement of financial position items are translated at the exchange rate at the reporting date and statement
of profit and loss items are converted at the average rate for the period. Any resulting translations differences are recognized under exchange translation
reserve in consolidated reserves.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group's functional and
presentation currency. Figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Pak Rupees.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Transactions
in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are charged or credited to consolidated statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical costin a foreign currency are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency that are stated at fair value are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined.

Employees’ retirement benefits
Contributory provident fund

ThereisanapprovedcontributoryprovidentfundforemployeesofServiceIndustriesLimited-Holding CompanyandService Global FootwearLimited-Subsidiary
Company. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the employees and Service Industries Limited - Holding Company and Service Global Footwear
Limited- Subsidiary Companytothe fundinaccordance with the fund rules.The contributions tothe fundare charged to consolidated statement of profitorloss.

Defined benefit plan

Service Industries Limited - Holding Company and Service Global Footwear Limited - Subsidiary Company operates a funded gratuity scheme as a defined
benefit plan for its permanent employees other than those who participate in the provident fund scheme. The managerial staff is entitled to participate in
both the provident fund trust and gratuity fund scheme.

Semvice Industries Limited - Holding Company's and Service Global Footwear Limited - Subsidiary Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit
plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for Service Industries Limited - Holding Company and Service Global Footwear Limited
- Subsidiary Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum
funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retumn on plan assets (excluding interest) and the
effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in consolidated other comprehensive income. Service Industries Limited
- Holding Company and Service Global Footwear Limited - Subsidiary Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then
net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognized in profit or loss.
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When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. Service Industries Limited - Holding Company and Service Global Footwear Limited - Subsidiary
Company recognize gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Compensated absences

Service Industries Limited - Holding Company and Service Global Footwear Limited - Subsidiary Company provides for liability in respect of employees’
compensated absences in the period in which these are eamed.

Taxation
Current
a) Group companies other than Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The
charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the period, if enacted. The charge for current
tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the
year for such years.

b) Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company

Provision for current tax is computed in accordance with the tax legislation enforce in the country where the income is taxable.e.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Borrowings

Financing and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective qualifying assets acquired out of
the proceeds of such long-term finances. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Fixed assets
Owned

Fixed assets except freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction period of qualifying assets and other directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition. Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less any recognized impairment
loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation

Depreciation on operating fixed assets except for leasehold improvements is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance
method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in note 16.1. Depreciation on
leasehold improvements is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the straight line method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of
the assets over their estimated useful lives or the shorter lease term at the rates given in note 16.1. Depreciations on additions is charged from the month
in which the assets are available for use up to the month prior to disposal. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each
financial year-end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

De-recognition

An item of operating fixed assets is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognized.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 from 01 January 2019. The standard replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases' and for lessees eliminates the classifications of operating
leases and finance leases. Except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities are recognized
in the statement of financial position. Straight-line operating lease expense recognition is replaced with a depreciation charge for the right-of-use assets
(included in operating costs) and an interest expense on the recognized lease liabilities (included in finance costs). In the earlier periods of the lease, the
expenses associated with the lease under IFRS 16 will be higher when compared to lease expenses under IAS 17, as the operating expense is now replaced
by interest expense and depreciation in the statement of profit or loss. For classification within the statement of cash flows, the interest portion is disclosed
in operating activities and the principal portion of the lease payments are separately disclosed in financing activities. For lessor accounting, the standard
does not substantially change how a lessor accounts for leases.

Impact of adoption

IFRS 16 has been adopted using the modified retrospective approach and as such the comparatives have not been restated. The impacts of adoption as at
01 January 2019 are as follows:
Rupees in thousand

Right-of-use assets increased by 1,358,761
Lease liabilities increased by 1,350,879
Prepaid rent decreased by 7,882

Right-of-use assets

Aright-of-use asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial
direct costs incurred, and, except where included in the cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, and restoring the site or asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset, whichever is
shorter. Where the Company expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is charged over its estimated
useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with terms of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are charged to income as incurred.

Lease liabilities

Alease liability is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognized at the present value of the lease payments to
be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
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an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is
reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are re-measured if there is a change in the
following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase option and
termination penalties. When a lease liability is re-measured, an adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of-use asset, or to statement of profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset s fully written down.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets, which are non-monetary assets without physical substance, are recognized at cost, which comprise purchase price, non-refundable
purchase taxes and other directly attributable expenditures relating to their implementation and customization. After initial recognition, an intangible
assetis carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized from the month, when these assets are
available for use, using the straight line method, whereby the cost of the intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life over which economic
benefits are expected to flow to the Group. The useful life and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Any impairment is recognized immediately through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and is not subsequently reversed.

Negative goodwill is recognized directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year of acquisition.

ljarah transactions

Ujrah (lease) payments are recognized as expenses in consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the ljarah term unless another
systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit even if the payments are not on that basis.

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” from 01 January 2019. The standard introduced new classification and measurement models for
financial assets. Afinancial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates and that are solely principal and interest. A debt investment shall be measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is to both hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which
arise on specified dates that are solely principal and interest as well as selling the asset on the basis of its fair value. All other financial assets are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the Group makes an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on
equity instruments in other comprehensive income. Despite these requirements, a financial asset may be irrevocably designated as measured at fair value
through profit or loss to reduce the effect of, or eliminate, an accounting mismatch. For financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, the
standard requires the portion of the change in fair value that relates to the Group's own credit risk to be presented in other comprehensive income (unless it
would create an accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge accounting requirements are intended to more closely align the accounting treatment with the
risk management activities of the Group. New impairment requirements use an ‘expected credit loss' ('ECL') model to recognize an allowance. Impairment
is measured using a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition in which case
the lifetime ECL method is adopted. For receivables, a simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance is
available.

The Company has adopted IFRS 9 without restating the prior year results. Key changes in accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are as
follows:
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Recognition of financial instruments
The Company initially recognizes financial assets on the date when they are originated. Financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date when
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Classification and measurement of financial instruments

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities. However, it replaces the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets i.e. loans and receivables, fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), available for sale and held to maturity with the categories such as amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

Investments and other financial assets

a) Classification
From 01 January 2019, the Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
e those to be measured at amortized cost

The dlassification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments
in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

b) Measurement

Atinitial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other income / (other expenses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairement losses), interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
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comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in otherincome / (other expenses). Interestincome from these
financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
income / (other expenses) and impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently
measured at FVTPL s recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other income / (other expenses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value for financial instruments quoted in an active market, the fair value corresponds to a
market price (level 1). For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, the fair value is determined using valuation techniques including
reference to recentarm’s length market transactions or transactions involving financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted
cash flow analysis including, to the greatest possible extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level 3).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Fair value through profit or loss
Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other income / (other expenses) in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Financial liabilities - classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. Afinancial liability is classified as at FVTPLIf itis classified as held-for-trading, it is
a derivative oritis designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also included in
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
From 01 January 2019, the Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
costand FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade debts and other receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition
a) Financial assets
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or
it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any
interest in such derecognized financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

b) Financial liabilities
The Group shall derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the netamount s reported in the financial statements when there is a legal enforceable
right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Hedge accounting
IFRS 9 requires that hedge accounting relationships are aligned with its risk management objectives and strategy and to apply a more qualitative and
forward-looking approach to assessing hedge effectiveness.

There is no impact of the said change on these financial statements as there is no hedge activity carried on by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Impacts of adoption of IFRS 9 on these financial statements as on 01 January 2019

On 01 January 2019, the Group's management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets held by the Group at the date of initial
application of IFRS 9 (01 January 2019) and has classified its financial instruments into appropriate IFRS 9 categories. The main effects resulting from this
reclassification are as follows:

Financial assets - (01 January 2019)

Available Trade debts categorized as
for sale FVTOCI Loans and Amortised
(AFS) eceivables cost

Opening balance (before reclassification) 22,050 - 3,273,650
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9 reclassification of
equity investment from available for sale to FVTOCI (22,050) 22,050
Reclassification of trade debts - - (3,273,650) 3,273,650
Recognition of expected credit losses on trade debts - - - (51,358)
Opening balance (after reclassification) - 22,050 . 3,222,292

The impact of these changes on the Company's un-appropriated profit and equity is as follows:

Un-appropriated profit and equity (01 January 2019)

Effect on un- Effect on total
appropriated profit equity

Opening balance 3,609,323 5,483,164
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9 due to recognition of expected credit losses on trade debts (51,358) (51,358)
3,617,965 5431.806

Equity investment previously classified as available-for-sale

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive income changes in the fair value of its equity investment previously classified as available-for-sale, as
this investment is not held for trading. As a result, asset with a fair value of Rupees 22.050 million was reclassified from available-for-sale financial asset to
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) on 01 January 2019.

Reclassifications of financial instruments on adoption of IFRS 9
On the date of initial application, 01 January 2019, the classification and measurement of financial instruments of the Company were as follows:
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Measurement category Measurement category
Original New Original | New [ Difference
(IAS 39) (IFRS9) Rupees in thousand
Financial assets
Long term investment Available for sale FvToc 22,050 22,050
Long term investment Available for sale FVTOCl 22,050 22,050
Long term loans to employees Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 30,468 30,468
Security deposits Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 142,864 142,864 -
Trade debts Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 3,273,650 3,222,292 51,358
Loans and advances Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 23,784 23,784
Other receivables Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 77,019 77,019
Cash and bank balances Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 72,841 72,841
Financial liabilities
Long term financing Amortised cost Amortised cost 3,316,880 3,316,880
Long term deposits Amortised cost Amortised cost 3,243 3,243
Trade and other payables Amortised cost Amortised cost 2,724,461 2,724,467
Accrued mark-up Amortised cost Amortised cost 146,917 146,917
Short term borrowings Amortised cost Amortised cost 5,722,630 5,722,630
Unclaimed dividend Amortised cost Amortised cost 32,002 32,002

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are
reviewed for impairment at each statement of financial position date or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if impairment losses had not been recognized.
Animpairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories, except for stock-in-transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:

Stores, spares and loose tools
Usable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at cost using first-in-first-out (FIFO) cost formula, while items considered obsolete are carried
at nil value. Items-in-transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock-in-trade

Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

(i) Forraw materials: First-in-first-out (FIFO) cost formula

(ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Direct material, labour and appropriate manufacturing overheads
(iii)Finished goods purchased for resale: Moving average
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Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stocks are valued at net realizable value.
Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make a sale.

Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the transaction cost.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance
for expected credit losses. Trade receivables generally do not include amounts over due by 365 days.

The Group has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 from 01 January 2019. The standard provides a single comprehensive model for revenue recognition. The core principle
of the standard is that an entity shall recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard introduced a new contract-based revenue
recognition model with a measurement approach that is based on an allocation of the transaction price. This is described further in the accounting policies
below. Credit risk is presented separately as an expense rather than adjusted against revenue. Contracts with customers are presented in Group's statement
of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending on the relationship between the Group's performance and the
customer’s payment. Customer acquisition costs and costs to fulfil a contract can, subject to certain criteria, be capitalised as an asset and amortised over
the contract period.

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 by applying the modified retrospective approach according to which the Group is not required to restate the prior year
results. Key changes in accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 15 are as follows:

i) Revenue recognition
Revenue i recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the Company: identifies the contract with a customer; identifies the
performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates of variable consideration and the
time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price
of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and recognises revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that
depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised.

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts, rebates and refunds,
any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined using either the ‘expected
value' or ‘most likely amount’ method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a constraining principle whereby revenue will
only be recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Amounts
received that are subject to the constraining principle are initially recognised as deferred revenue in the form of a separate refund liability.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods i recognised at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is generally at the time
of delivery.
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iii)

vi)

vii)

Interest

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rent
Rent revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognised as part of the rental revenue.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the period when earned.

Dividend
Dividend on equity investments is recognized when right to receive the dividend is established.

Other revenue
Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment s established.

Contract assets
Contractassets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration
or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for impairment purposes.

Customer acquisition costs
Customer acquisition costs are capitalised as an asset where such costs are incremental to obtaining a contract with a customer and are expected to be
recovered. Customer acquisition costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

Costs to obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained or which are not otherwise recoverable from a
customer are expensed as incurred to profit or loss. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract where the contract term is less than one year is immediately
expensed to profit or loss.

Customer fulfilment costs

Customer fulfilment costs are capitalised as an asset when all the following are met: (i) the costs relate directly to the contract or specifically identifiable
proposed contract; (ii) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used to satisfy future performance obligations; and (iii) the costs
are expected to be recovered. Customer fulfilment costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

Right of return assets

Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of customers who may exercise their right to
return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at which the inventory was previously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery
costs and any impairment.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

Refund liabilities

Refund liabilities are recognised where the Company receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund some, or all, of that consideration to the
customer. A refund liability is measured at the amount of consideration received or receivable for which the Company does not expect to be entitled and is
updated at the end of each reporting period for changes in circumstances. Historical data is used across product lines to estimate such returns at the time
of sale based on an expected value methodology.
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Impacts of adoption of IFRS 15 on these financial statements as on 01 January 2019
The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognized in the financial statements at 01 January 2019:

31Dec2018 | Adjustment | 01Jan 2019
Reported Restated

Rupees in thousand
Current assets
Stock in trade 4,122,156 227,996 4,350,152
Trade debts 3,273,650 (302,324) 2,971,326

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 2,881,556 (3,716) 2,877,840
Equity
Reserves 5,379,198 (70,612) 5,308,586

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term highly liquid instruments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

Earnings per share
The Company presents eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized
until their realization becomes certain.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities are not recognized,
only disclosed, unless the possibility of a future outflow of resources is considered remote. In the event that the outflow of resources associated with a
contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow can be reliably estimated, a provision is recognized in the financial statements.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax.

Government grants
Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that entity will comply with the conditions attached to it and grant will be received.
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2.26 Segment reporting

2.27

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in
business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the transactions with any of
the Group's other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief executive officer to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the chief executive officer include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. Those incomes, expenses, assets, liabilities and other balances which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis
are reported as unallocated.

The Group has following reportable business segments. Footwear (Purchase, manufacturing and sale of different qualities of footwear), Tyre (Manufacturing
of different qualities of tyres and tubes) and Technical rubber products (Manufacturing of different qualities of rubber products on specifications).

Transaction among the business segments are recorded at cost. Inter segment sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.

Dividend and other appropriations
Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

TRG Pakistan Limited

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company purchased 1,000,000 ordinary shares of TRG Pakistan Limited at Rupees 61.824 million.
In accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ which was then applicable,
this investment was classified as available-for-sale. As per IAS 39, gains or losses on available-for-sale investments were recognized directly in other
comprehensive income until the investment was sold, de-recognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive
income was included in statement of profit or loss. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost is an objective evidence of impairment. Previously, significant decline in value of the aforesaid investment during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2018 amounting to Rupees 32.224 million and Rupees 7.550 million respectively was inadvertently recognized through other
comprehensive income which should had been recognized in the statement of profit or loss. This has now been adjusted retrospectively in accordance with
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. This adjustment has following impacts on
these financial statements:

Rupees in thousand
Statement of profit or loss

- For the year ended 31 December 2018

Other operating expenses increased by 7,550
Earnings per share - basic and diluted decreased by (Rupees) 0.45

Statement of comprehensive income
- For the year ended 31 December 2018

Loss on investments decreased by 7,550
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i) Speed (Private) Limited
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Holding Company purchased 142,839 ordinary shares of Speed (Private) Limited at Rupees 167.979 million.
In accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 28 'Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures' this investment was classified as investment
in associate under equity method. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Holding Company purchased further 17,870 ordinary shares of Speed
(Private) Limited at Rupees 28.541 million. At the year end, share of share premium reserve of Speed (Private) Limited amounting to Rupees 23.935 million
was inadvertently recognized through consolidated statement of profit or loss as share of profit from associate instead of recognition as share of reserve
held by equity accounted investee in share premium in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. This has now been adjusted retrospectively in
accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' This adjustment has following
impacts on these consolidated financial statements.
Rupees in thousand
Statement of changes in equity
Capital reserves
- Share of reserve held by equity accounted investee increased by 44,395
Revenue reserves
- Unappropriated profit decreased by (44,395)
4. lIssued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital
2019 2018 2019 2018
Number of shares Rupees in thousand
Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid in cash 3,183,190 3,183,190 31,832 31,832
Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares 15,611,792 8,845,599 156,118 88,456
18,794,982 12,028,789 187,950 120,288
4.1 Movement during the year
2019 2018 2019 2018
Number of shares Rupees in thousand
At01 January 12,028,789 12,028,789 120,288 120,288
Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares 6,766,193 - 67,662 -
18,794,982 12,028,789 187,950 120,288
4.2 Allthe shares are similar with respect to their rights including on voting, board selection, first refusal and block voting.
2019 2018
Number of shares
4.3 Ordinary shares of the Holding Company held by associated company / associated undertaking:

Shahid Arif Investments (Private) Limited - associated company 15,850 10,144
Service Charitable Trust 18,103 11,587
Service Provident Fund Trust 872,510 558,407
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2019
Amount

2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

5 RESERVES
Composition of reserves is as follows:
Capital reserves
Capital gains 102,730 102,730
Fairvalue reserve FVTOCI investment 2,500 -
Share premium (Note 5.1) 21,217 21,217
Share of reserve held by equity accounted investee 44,395 44,395
Exchange translation reserve 4,501 3,785
175,343 172,127
Revenue reserves
General reserve 1,558,208 1,558,208
Unappropriated profits 4,294,131 3,648,863
5,852,339 5,207,071
6,027,682 5,379,198
5.1  This reserve can be utilized by the Holding Company only for the purposes specified in section 81 of the Companies Act,
2017.
6. LONG TERM FINANCING

From banking companies - secured

Long term loans (Note 6.1) 3,556,504 2,972,111
Long term musharaka (Note 6.2) 270,000 344,769
3,826,504 3,316,880

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (Note 14)
Long term loans 676,252 636,073
Long term musharaka 60,000 63,652
736,252 699,725
3,090,252 2,617,155
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2019
Amount

2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

8 Lease-liabilities
Total lease liabilities 1,513,488
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (Note 14) 211,433
1,302,055
9. Employees’ Retirement Benefit
Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company (Note 9.1) 3,754 -
Group Companies other than Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company ~ (Note 9.2) 212,225 180,446
215,979 180,446
9.1 Defined benefit obligation of Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company resulting from employees services is not calculated on the
basis of actuarial valuation in accordance with the requirements of IAS-19 ‘Employee Benefits'
9.2 Group Companies other than Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited
The latest actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 December 2019 was carried out using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method' Details of the Fund as per the
actuarial valuation are as follows:
9.3 The amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligations 301,421 262,604
Fair value of plan assets (89,196) (82,158)
Net defined benefit obligation 212,225 180,446
9.4  Movement in the present value of net defined benefit obligation
Net liability as at beginning of the year 180,446 128,449
Current service cost 29,920 25,360
Past service cost 2,358
Net interest on defined benefit obligation 27,075 10,153
Net remeasurements for the year (11,654) 27,269
Contributions made during the year (15,920) (10,785)
Net liability as at end of the year 212,225 180,446
9.5  Movement in the present value of net defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the year 262,604 213,626
Current service cost 29,920 25,360
Past service cost 2,358
Interest cost 37,899 17,182
Benefits paid during the year (14,647) (10,735)
Remeasurements on obligation:
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions (1,239) 2,790
Experience adjustments (15,474) 14,381)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 301,421 262,604
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

9.6 Movement in the fair value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets as at beginning of the year 82,158 85,178
Interest income on plan assets 10,824 7,029
Contributions made during the year 15,920 10,785
Benefits paid during the year (14,647) (10,735)
Remeasurements on fair value of plan assets (5,059) (10,099)
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 89,196 82,158

9.6.1  The major categories of total plan assets of Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund Trust are as follows:

Term deposit receipts - 11,608
Mutual funds 88,788 67,603
Bank balances 408 2,947
Total plan assets 89,196 82,158

9.7  Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 29,920 25,360
Past service cost 2,358

Interest cost 37,899 17,182
Interest income on plan assets (10,824) (7,029)
Net expense charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss 59,353 35,513

9.8  Remeasurements charged to consolidated statement of other comprehensive income

Experience adjustments 15,474 14,381
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (5,059) 10,099
Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions 1,239 2,790
Total remeasurements charged to consolidated statement of other comprehensive income 11,654 21,270

9.9  Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets for five years is as follows:

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

------------------------------- Rupees in thousand---------ceeeeeeueeee |
Present value of defined benefit obligation 301,421 262,604 213,626 186,612 161,631
Fairvalue of the plan assets (89,196) (82,158) (85,177) (101,576) (80,080)
Deficit in the plan 212,225 180,446 128,449 85,036 81,551
Remeasurement loss / (gain) on obligation (16,713) 17,171 24,124 7,997 8,326

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on plan assets (5,059) (10,099) (16,202) 15,733 (5,718)
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

9.10 Principal actuarial assumptions used:

Discount rate used for interest cost % per annum 13.25-14.25 8.25
Discount rate used for year end obligation % perannum 11.25 13.25
Expected rate of salary increase % perannum 10.25 12.25

9.11 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions:

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumption at the reporting date:

Defined benefit abligation

Changes in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
Bps Rupees in thousand
Discount rate 100 271,612 326,225
Future salary increase 100 326,621 270,824

The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous year.

9.12  Mortality was assumed to be based on SLIC 2001-2005 ultimate mortality rates, set back one year.
9.13  The average duration of the benefit obligation is 8 years to 9.9 years.
9.14  Expected maturity profile of undiscounted defined benefit obligation:

| Less than a year Between 1-2years  Between3-5years  Between6-10years Over10years  Total

Rupees in thousand
13,525 37,354 110,436 247,740 3,028,514 3,437,569

10  Deferred income Tax liability - net

The deferred income tax liability originated due to timing differences relating to:

Taxable temporary differences:

Accelerated tax depreciation 503,473 450,525
Investment in associate 19,605 24,889
523,078 475,414

Deductible temporary differences:
Expected credit losses (37,230) (13,936)
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stores (5,871) (4,843)
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock in trade (25,326) (25,813
Minimum tax carry forward (265,520) (89,640)
(333,947) (134,232)

Deferred income tax liability - net 189,131 341,182
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

11.  Trade and other payables

Trade creditors 2,293,590 1,631,051
Accrued liabilities 1,214,049 955,724
Letters of credit 180,220 124,482
Advances from customers 212,765 139,361
Provident fund payable 36,593 30,250
Provision for service warranties 23,177 -
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 11.1) (8,322) (23,147)
Workers' welfare fund (Note 11.2) 34,724 8,302
Income tax deducted at source 5,977 2,329
Others 13,426 13,204

4,006,199 2,881,556

11.1 Workers' profit participation fund

Balance as at the beginning of the year (23,147) (1,585)
Less: Impact of adjustment due to adoption of IFRS 15 (Note 2.18) (3,716) -
Add: Allocation for the year (Note 33) 65,276 41,734

38,413 40,149
Less: Payments made during the year 46,735 63,296
Balance at the end of the year (8,322) (23,147)

11.1.1 The Group retains workers' profit participation fund for its business operations till the date of allocation to workers. Interest is paid at prescribed rate under
the Companies Profit (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968 on funds utilized by the Group till the date of allocation to workers.

11.2  Workers' welfare fund

Balance as at the beginning of the year 8,302 6,492
Add: Provision for the year (Note 33) 33,046 8,302

41,348 14,794
Less: Payments during the year 6,624 6,492
Balance at the end of the year 34,724 8,302

12.  Accrued mark-up

Long term financing 27,805 58,854
Short term borrowings 114,515 88,063
142,320 146,917

13.  Short term Borrowings
From banking companies - secured

Local banks

Short term running finances (Notes 13.1and 13.2) 854,992 2,136,006
Export refinance (Notes 13.1and 13.3) 5,009,352 3,497,355
Import loans (Notes 13.1and 13.4) 303,512 -

6,167,856 5,633,361
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

Foreign bank

Short term running finance (Note 13.5) 116,353 89,269
6,284,209 5,722,630
13.1  These finances are obtained from banking companies under mark-up arrangements and are secured by hypothecation of present and future current assets
of the Group. These form part of total credit facilities of Rupees 10,740 million (2018: Rupees 9,641 million).
13.2  The rates of mark-up range from 10.75% to 14.86% (2018: 2.10% to 11.15% ) per annum.
13.3  The rates of mark-up range from 2.20% to 3% (2018: 2.20% to 2.25% ) per annum.
13.4  The rates of mark-up range from 2.40% to 3.75% (2018: Nil) per annum.
13.5  Thisfacility is obtained from MCB Bank Limited, Sri Lanka. This facility carries mark-up at the rate of LIBOR + 3% per annum and is secured by way of lien
over export purchase orders.
14.  Current portion of non-current liabilities
Long term financing (Note 6 & 14.1) 736,252 699,725
Current portion of lease liabilities (Note 8) 211,433 .
947,685 699,725
14.1  The Group has availed the deferment of principal payments of Rupees 645.655 million of long term financing falling between 26 March 2020 to 25 March
2021.The principal payments have been deferred for one year in line with the BPRD Circular Letter No.13 dated 26 March 2020 of State Bank of Pakistan.
It has been treated as non-adjusting subsequent event in these financial statements.
15.  Contingencies and Commitments
15.1 Contingencies
15.1.1 The Additional Collector (Adjudication) of Pakistan Customs Computerized System, Karachi initiated case against the Holding Company for failure to pay

leviable sales tax and income tax of Rupees 18.630 million and Rupees 4.108 million respectively at import of tyre cord fabrics during the period from
August 2007 to July 2008 by wrongly claiming sales tax zero rating in terms of SRO 509 (1)/2007 dated 09 June 2007. The case has been remanded
back by the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), Lahore to the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals [CIR (Appeals)], Lahore, which is still pending.
According to the Holding Company's legal counsel, the Holding Company has a good arguable case and there is likelihood that the same will be decided
in its favor.

15.1.2 Deputy Director of Pakistan Employees Social Security Institute (PESSI), Gujrat initiated three cases against the Holding Company. In the first case the

alleged amount recoverable by the PESSI is Rupees 4.80 million covering the period from January 1987 to September 1992 on account of short payment
of contributions. In the second case, Rupees 1.98 million is recoverable by the Holding Company from PESSI on account of wrongly paid contributions
covering the period from July 1992 to September 1993. Both cases have been decided against the Holding Company by the Director General Recovery
PESSI, Lahore. In the third case, Rupees 31.807 million is recoverable by PESSI. The case has been decided in the favor of the Holding Company in the year
2013 but the case is re-opened in the year 2014. The Holding Company has filed an appeal before Social Security Court, Lahore. During the pendency of
the matter PESSI sent a recovery notice for the same amount. The Holding Company has filed a writ petition before Lahore High Court, Lahore. As per legal
counsel of the Holding Company, the Holding Company has strong legal grounds for its success.
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Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) initiated a case against the Holding Company after post sales tax refund audit in which demand of Rupees
27.92 million was raised. The Holding Company filed an appeal before CIR (Appeals) in which the demand was cancelled except two points having impact
of Rupees 2.65 million. The Holding Company had further filed an appeal before ATIR against said points. The management of the Holding Company is
confident that decision will be in favour of the Holding Company. Hence, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

DCIR initiated sales tax audit for the year 2013-2014 in which demand of Rupees 182.70 million was created. The Holding Company filed appeal with
CIR (Appeals) who confirmed the demand of Rupees 10 million and remanded back certain charges to the tune of 172.7 million. The Holding Company
filed an appeal with ATIR against the decision of CIR (Appeals) which is pending for hearing. The management of the Holding Company is confident that
decision will be in favor of the Holding Company, hence, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

DCIR initiated income tax audit for the year 2014 in which a demand of Rupees 123.412 million was created. The Holding Company preferred an appeal
before CIR (Appeals) which is pending for hearing. The management s confident that decision will be in favor of the Holding Company, hence, no provision
has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

The Holding Company received show cause notice dated 14 December 2018 for which detailed reply was furished to Assistant Commissioner Unit-07
Sindh Revenue Board (SRB). Taxation officer subsequently passed assessment order under section 47 read with section 44 of the Sindh Sales Tax on
Services Act, 2011 demanding sales tax amounting to Rupees 30.572 million. Aggrieved with impugned order, the Holding Company has preferred an
appeal to the Commissioner Appeals SRB, which is pending adjudication. Based on merits of the case and advice of the tax advisor, no provision against
this demand has been recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

Honorable Lahore High Court has allowed a petition filed by the Holding Company against show-cause notice issued by DCIR amounting to Rupees 13.076
million. The show-cause notice was issued on account of post sales tax refunds audit of various tax periods. FBR challenged the decision of Honorable
Lahore High Court in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending for hearing. The management s confident that decision will be in favor of the
Holding Company, hence, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

DCIR conducted income tax audit for the year 2011 in which a demand of Rupees 19.605 million was created. The Holding Company preferred an appeal
before CIR (Appeals) which is pending for hearing. The managementis confident that decision will be in favor of the Holding Company, hence, no provision
has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

The Holding Company has challenged, before Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the vires of first proviso to sub-clause (x) of clause (4) of SRO
491(1)/2016 dated 30 June 2016 issued under sections 3 and 4 read with sections 8 and 71 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby through amendment in
the earlier SRO 1125(1)/2011 dated 31 December 2011 adjustment of input sales tax on packing material of all sorts has been disallowed. The Honourable
Lahore High Court has issued stay order in favour of the Holding Company. Consequently, the Holding Company has claimed input sales tax on packing
material of Rupees 58.123 million in its monthly sales tax returns. The management, based on advice of the legal counsel, is confident of favorable
outcome of its appeal.

15.1.10 The Holding Company has challenged, before Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore, the vires of clauses (h) and (i) to sub-section (1) of section 8 of the

SalesTax Act, 1990 whereby claim of input sales tax in respect of building materials, electrical and gas appliances, pipes, fittings, wires, cables and ordinary
electrical fittings and sanitary fittings have been disallowed. The Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore has passed order against the Holding Company
and the Holding Company being aggrieved with the order has preferred Intra Court Appeal before the Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore. The Holding
Company has claimed input sales tax of Rupees 21.784 million on such goods in its respective monthly sales tax returns. The management, based on
advice of the legal counsel, is confident of favorable outcome of its appeal.
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15.1.11 DCIR initiated income tax cases of tax years 2006 and 2008. A demand of Rupees 12.774 million and Rupees 68.406 million respectively were created
by amending returns. Appeals were preferred with CIR(A) which were dismissed against the Holding Company without discussing the merits of the cases.
The Holding Company has filed appeal with ATIR which is pending for hearing. The management is confident that decision will be in favor of the Holding

Company, hence, no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

15.1.12 CIR passed an order regarding CREST discrepancies of sales tax for an amount of Rupees 10.324 million. The Holding Company filed an appeal with ATIR
which is pending for hearing. The management s confident that decision will be in favor of the Holding Company, hence, no provision has been made in

these consolidated financial statements.

15.1.13 Post dated cheques have been issued to custom authorities in respect of duties amounting to Rupees 950.008 million on imported material availed on
the basis of consumption and export plans. In the event the documents of exports are not provided on due dates, cheques issued as security shall be

encashable.

15.2 Commitments

15.2.1 Guarantees issued in ordinary course of business through banks are of Rupees 879.505 million (2018: Rupees 523 million).

15.2.2 Contracts for capital expenditure are approximately of Rupees 88.215 million (2018: Rupees 11.86 million).

15.2.3 Letters of credit other than capital expenditure are of Rupees 515.023 million (2018: Rupees 486.71 million).

15.2.4 The Group has obtained vehicles underijarah arrangements from Meezan Bank Limited, Allied Bank Limited and Bank Al Habib Limited for a period of five

years. Future Ujrah payments under ljarah are as follows:

2019

Amount

2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

Not later than one year 70,917 61,109

Later than one year and not later than five years 109,932 87,154

Later than five years .
180,849 148,263

16.  FIXED ASSETS

Operating fixed assets (Note 16.1) 7,008,694 5,835,196

Capital work-in-progress (Note 16.2) 252,224 1,219,779
7,260,918 7,054,975
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

16.1.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales (Note 30) 651,892 537,109
Distribution cost (Note 31) 41,134 50,647
Administrative expenses (Note 32) 25,209 23,478

718,235 611,234

16.1.3 Particulars of immovable properties are as follows:

Head office and manufacturing units Address Area of land
Sq. Feet
Head office 2 - Main Gulberg, Lahore. 29,842
Manufacturing units

Gujrat factory and residential colony G.T. Road, Guijrat. 2,038,608
Muridke factory and residential colony 10 - KM, Muridke - Sheikhupura Road, Muridke 1,376,320
3,444,770

2019 2018

Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

16.2  Capital work-in-progress

Advance for purchase of land 40,355 -
Building 70,144 360,490
Plantand machinery 122,171 775,906
Furniture and fixtures 380 549
Service equipment 19,174 82,834

252,224 1,219,779

17.  Right-of-use assets

Buildings
Rupees in thousand
Net carrying amount

01 January 2019 1,358,761
31 December 2019 1,403,090
Depreciation expense for the year ended 31 December 2019 (Note 31) 192,739
Addition during the year ended 31 December 2019 237,068

17.1  Lease of buildings
The Holding Company obtained building on lease for godowns and shops. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. Lease periods range from two to eleven years.
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand
18.  Intangible Assets
Computer softwares (Note 18.1) 10,071 9,275
Goodwill (Note 18.2) 38,102 33,904
48,173 43,179
18.1 Computer softwares
Cost
Asat 01 January 50,499 47,214
Currency retranslation 870 473
Additions 1,441 2,812
As at 31 December 52,810 50,499
Amortization
Asat01 January 41,224 39,788
Charge for the year 1,474 1,320
Currency retranslation 41 116
42,739 41,224
Net book value as at 31 December 10,071 9,275
18.1.1 Intangible assets have been amortized at the rate of 33.33% perannum.
18.1.2 Amortization on intangible assets has been allocated as follows:
Distribution cost (Note 31) 853 297
Administrative expenses (Note 32) 621 1,023
1,474 1,320
182 Goodwill
Balance at the beginning of the year 33,904 32,120
Effect of movements in exchange rates 4,198 1,784
Balance at the end of the year 38,102 33,904
18.2.1 This represents gooduwill arised on acquisition of Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company.
19.  Long term investments
Investment in associate (with significant influence) - under equity method (Note 19.1) 517,616 484,384
Investment in joint ventures - at cost (Note 19.2) 480 480
Other investment - at FVTOCI (Note 19.3) 24,550 22,050
542,646 506,914
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

19.1 Investment in associate (with significant influence) - under equity method

Speed (Private) Limited

263,909 (2018: 263,909) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 100 each 342,526 342,526

Share of post acquisition reserve

As at the beginning of the year 141,858 83,042

Share of post acquisition profit for the year 33,232 105,000

Dividend received during the year - (46,184)
175,090 141,858
517,616 484,384

19.1.1 Speed (Private) Limited is primarily engaged in the business of distribution of international brands of footwear, apparel, watches, bags, sunglasses etc.
The registered office of Speed (Private) Limited is situated at Office No.1, First Floor, Service Club Extension Building, Mereweather Road, Karachi.

19.1.2 Summarized financial statements

Current assets 1,373,164 1,179,245
Non-current assets 269,050 252,094
Current liabilities 412,281 293,863
Non-current liabilities 1,970 1,970
Revenue - net for the year 2,298,065 2,336,356
Expenses for the year 2,205,659 2,044,445
Profit for the year 92,406 291,911
Total comprehensive income for the year 92,406 291,91
Net assets of the associate 1,227,963 1,135,506
Percentage of holding 35.97% 35.97%
Share in net assets of associate 441,693 408,461
19.1.3 Breakup value per share (Rupees) 1,674 1,548

19.1.4 Reconciliation to carrying amount:

Share in net assets of associate 441,693 408,461

Add: Goodwill 75,923 75,923

Carrying value of investment in associate 517,616 484,384
19.2  Investment in joint ventures - at cost

S2 Power Limited

24,000 (2018: 24,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 240 240

S2 Hydro Limited

24,000(2018: 24,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 240 240

480 480

19.3  Otherinvestment FVTOCI AFS

TRG Pakistan Limited

1,000,000 (2018: 1,000,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 22,050 29,600

Impairment - (7,550)

Fair value adjustment 2,500 -

24,550 22,050
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand
20.  LongTerm Loans to Employees
Considered good:
Executives (Notes 20.1,20.2 and 20.3) 39,059 28,877
Other employees (Note 20.3) 1,253 1,59
40,312 30,468
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 24)
Executives 14,738 7,413
Other employees 543 2,605
15,281 10,018
25,031 20,450
20.1  Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans to executives:
Balance as at 01 January 28,877 22,013
Add: Disbursements 24,630 15,638
Less: Repayments 14,448 8,774
Balance as at 31 December 39,059 28,877
20.2  Maximum aggregate balance due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 43.025 million (2018: Rupees 28.877 million).
20.3  These represent interest free loans to executives and employees for general purposes and house building, which are recoverable in monthly installments
over a period of 10 years and are secured by a charge on the assets purchased and / or amount due to the employees against retirement benefits.
20.4  The fairvalue adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ arising in respect of staff loans is not considered material
and hence not recognized.
21.  Stores, spares and loose tools
Machinery spares 74,036 33,285
Stores 240,454 147,124
Loose tools 4,532 4141
319,022 184,550
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items (Note 21.1) 29,623 24,395
289,399 160,155
211 Provision for slow moving and obsolete items
Balance at the beginning of the year 24,395 29,230
Add: Provision made during the year 6,756 2,986
Less: Reversal of provision made during the year (1,528) (7,821)
Net charge / (reversal) of provision for the year 5,228 (4,835)
Balance at the end of the year 29,623 24,395
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

22.  StockIn-Trade

Raw materials 1,879,658 1,545,085
Packing materials 99,340 75,722
Work-in-process 474,140 423,069
Finished goods
- Own production 2,181,307 1,092,326
- Purchased 791,629 875,582
2,972,936 1,967,908
Goods in transit 626,848 240,401
6,052,922 4,252,185
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items (Note 22.1) 149,164 130,029
5,903,758 4,122,156
22.1  Provision for slow moving and obsolete items
Balance at the beginning of the year 130,029 141,006
Add: Provision made during the year 154,210 -
Less: Reversal of provision made during the year (134,886) (10,977)
Less: Stock written off against provision during the year (189) -
Net charge / (reversal) of provision 19,135 (10,977)
Balance at the end of the year 149,164 130,029

222 Finished goods of Rupees 278.600 million (2018: Rupees 233 million) are being carried at net realizable value.

22.3  The aggregate amount of Rupees 66.053 million (2018: Rupees 76 million) has been charged to cost of sales, being the cost of inventory written down
during the year.

23.  Trade debts

Considered good:

Secured:

-Against irrevocable letters of credit 365,276 369,260

Unsecured - others (Note 23.1) 3,424,237 2,975,319
3,789,513 3,344,579

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 23.2) 171,777 70,929
3,617,736 3,273,650

231 Asat31December 2019, trade debts due from other related parties of Rupees 1,577.425 million (2018: Rupees 1,008.487 million) were past due but
notimpaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from there in no recent history of default. The age analysis of these trade debts is as

follows:

Upto 1 month 665,180 69,189
1t0 6 months 585,384 716,063
More than 6 months 326,861 223,235

1,577,425 1,008,487




Annual Report 2019

2019

Amount

2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand
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232 Allowance for expected credit losses
Balance at the beginning of the year 70,929 39,232
Impact of adjustment due to adoption of IFRS 9 [Note 2.13 (vii)] 51,358 .
122,287 39,232
Add: Recognition of expected credit losses during the year 88,054 31,697
Less: Trade debts written off 38,564 -
49,490 31,697
Balance at the end of the year 171,777 70,929
23.3  During the year, trade debts of Rupees 38.564 million have been written off against allowance for expected credit losses. The ageing of these trade debts
was more than 3 years. These trade debts do not include amounts due from related parties.
24.  Loansand advances
Considered good:
Advances to staff 4,288 2,948
Current portion of long term loans to employees (Note 20) 15,281 10,018
Advances to suppliers 124,749 76,706
Letters of credit 464,326 369,022
Loan to the associate (Note 24.1) 50,000 -
Others (Note 24.2) 25,651 20,836
684,295 479,530
24.1  This represents loan given to Speed (Private) Limited - associated company for a period ending on 14 November 2020. It is neither past due nor
impaired. It carries interest at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.50% per annum. The maximum aggregate amount due from the associate at the end of
any month during the year was Rupees 50 million.
242 These include amount due from following related parties:
S2 Power Limited - joint venture 2,073 1,901
S2 Hydro Limited - joint venture 11,476 11,476
SBLTrading (Private) Limited - associated company -
13,549 13,377
24.2.1 The maximum aggregate of amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was as follows:
S2 Power Limited - joint venture 2,073 1,901
S2 Hydro Limited - joint venture 11,476 11,476
SBLTrading (Private) Limited - associated company 94 -
25  Trade deposits and prepayments
Security deposits 115,762 47,854
Prepayments 20,617 47,063
136,379 94,917
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

26.  OtherReceivables

Considered good:
Duty draw back 460,237 415,798
Custom duty rebate 220,248 134,083
Advance income tax 1,243,890 1,132,948
Sales tax 730,178 638,650
Others 26,700 77,019
2,681,253 2,398,498
27.  Accrued Interest
On term deposit receipts 634
Receivable from associate (Note 27.1) 792
1,426

27.1  This represents interest accrued on loan given by Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited - subsidiary company to Speed (Private) Limited - associated
company. It is neither past due nor impaired. The maximum aggregate amount receivable at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 0.792
million.

28.  Cashand bank balances

With banks:
On current accounts
Local currency 25,449 33,947
Foreign currency (Note 28.1) 2,096 1,055
27,545 35,002
On saving accounts
Local currency (Note 28.2) 5,841 26,435
Foreign currency (Note 28.3) 5,808 189
11,649 26,624
39,194 61,626
Term deposit receipts (Note 28.4) 49,500
Cash in transit 2,178 4,953
Cash in hand 12,676 6,262
103,548 72,841

28.1  Theseinclude USD 1,395 (2018: USD 1,395), EURO 10,575.25(2018: EURQ 1,705) and LKR 632,828.
282 Rates of profit on saving accounts range from 8.25% to 11.40% (2018 4.5% to 8.00%) per annum.
28.3  Thisrepresents USD 37,490 (2018: USD 1,356 ), and rate of profit on foreign account ranges from 1.36% to 1.60% (2018: 1.21% to 1.47%) per annum.

284 Fffective interest rates on term deposit receipts range from 8.85% to 13.65% per annum. Maturity period of these term deposit receipts is 3 months.
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29.  SALES-net
Export sales 10,152,992 7,434,465
Discounts, commissions etc. (246,622) (136,454)
9,906,370 7,298,011
Local sales 24,520,374 20,309,213
Sales tax (3,314,813) (2,428,504)
Discounts, commissions etc. (1,306,998) (1,262,828)
19,898,563 16,617,881
Duty draw back 253,388 313,751
30,058,321 24,229,643
29.1 Sales of footwear - net
Export sales 8,607,812 6,390,278
Local sales 5,005,348 4,901,456
Duty draw back 253,388 313,751
13,866,548 11,605,485
Sales of tyres - net

Export sales 1,298,558 904,117
Local sales 14,662,034 11,699,282
15,960,592 12,603,399

Sales of technical rubber products - net
Export sales - 3,617
Local sales 231,181 17,142
231,181 20,759
30,058,321 24,229,643
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

30 Cost of sales

Raw materials consumed (Note 30.1) 15,484,029 11,809,379
Salaries, wages and other benefits (Note 30.2) 3,551,956 2,897,361
Stores and spares consumed 321,194 274,772
Packing materials consumed 829,229 643,844
Fuel and power 1,040,460 728,344
Insurance 26,775 21,589
Travelling 26,878 18,156
Repair and maintenance 195,445 150,310
Entertainment 5,775 4574
Depreciation (Note 16.1.2) 651,892 537,109
Provision / (reversal of provision) for slow moving and obsolete inventory 24,363 (15,813)
Other manufacturing charges 221,544 171,379
22,379,540 17,241,004

Work-in-process
Opening stock 423,069 311,170
Closing stock (474,140) (423,069)
(51,071) (111,899)
Cost of goods manufactured 22,328,469 17,129,105

Finished goods
Opening stock (Note 30.3) 2,195,903 2,224,361
Add: Purchases during the year 2,775,810 2,515,848
Less: Closing stock 2,972,936 1,967,907
1,998,777 2,772,302

24,327,246 19,901,407

30.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock 1,545,085 1,337,845
Add: Purchases during the year 15,818,602 12,016,619
Less: Closing stock 1,879,658 1,545,085

15,484,029 11,809,379

30.2  Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rupees 112.525 million (2018: Rupees 99.767 million) and Rupees 27.317 million (2018: Rupees 13.715
million) in respect of provident fund contribution and gratuity fund contribution by the Group.

30.3  Opening stock includes an impact of Rupees 227.996 million due to adoption of IFRS 15.

30.4  Custom duty rebate for the yearamounting to Rupees 143.749 million (2018: Rupees 114.45 million) has been adjusted against raw materials consumed.
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31.  Distribution Cost

Salaries and other benefits (Note 31.1) 358,155 260,065
Freight and insurance 551,598 393,104
Advertisement and publicity 349,464 206,781
Entertainment 15,334 13,248
Samples 180,789 135,451
Depreciation (Note 16.1.2) 41,134 50,647
Depreciation on right-of-use-asets (Note 17) 192,739 -
Amortization on intangible assets (Note 18.1.2) 853 297
Rent, rates and taxes 7,542 222,683
Postage and courier 78,467 44,040
Fuel and power 44,294 34,255
Travelling and conveyance 86,408 36,964
Others 87,538 145,199

1,994,315 1,542,734

31.1  Salaries and other benefits include Rupees 9.622 million (2018: Rupees 8.392 million) and Rupees 15.459 million (2018: Rupees 4.973 million) in

respect of provident fund contribution and gratuity fund contribution by the Group.

32, Administrative Expenses

Salaries and other benefits (Note 32.1) 899,725 785,777
Communication 23,516 24,975
Printing and stationery 12,412 6,738
Travelling and conveyance 55,544 36,158
Entertainment 28,651 24,301
Vehicles' running 33,614 31,822
Insurance 4,423 4,195
Rent, rates and taxes 21,874 23,361
Fuel and power 26,628 22,780
Repairs and maintenance 15,613 23,874
Auditor's remuneration (Note 32.2) 6,221 3,959
Legal and professional 41,996 32,265
Incorporation expenses 156 -
Subscription 3,507 2,464
Depreciation (Note 16.1.2) 25,209 23,478
Amortization on intangible assets (Note 18.1.2) 621 1,023
ljarah rentals 66,056 68,700
Computer running 12,987 1,894
Advertisement 348 2,858
General 49,165 48,704

1,328,266 1,169,326

32.1  Salaries and other benefits include Rupees 21.598 million (2018: Rupees 20.328 million) and Rupees 16.577 million (2018: Rupees 16.824 million) in
respect of provident fund contribution and gratuity fund contribution by the Group.
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Rupees in thousand

32.2  Auditor's remuneration:
Audit fee 3,577 2,695
Special audit fee 1,695 -
Half yearly review 670 609
Taxation and other certification services 75 494
Reimbursable expenses 204 161
6,221 3,959
33.  Otherexpenses
Donations (Note 33.1and 33.2) 49,705 48,605
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 11.1) 65,276 41,734
Workers' welfare fund (Note 11.2) 33,046 8,302
Impairment loss on investment - 7,550
Loss on sale of operating fixed assets - net 5,005 9,961
Allowance for expected credit losses 88,054 31,697
241,086 147,849
33.1  Theseinclude Rupees 3.344 million (2018: Rupees 5.171 million) given to Service Charitable Trustin which Mr. Arif Saeed, Chief Executive of the Holding
Company, Mr. Omar Saeed, Director of the Holding Company and Mr. Hassan Javed, Director of the Holding Company are trustees, Rupees 7.096 million
(2018: Rupees Nil) given to Service Foundation in which Chaudhry Ahmed Javed, Chairman of the Holding Company, Mr. Arif Saeed, Chief Executive of the
Holding Company, Mr. Omar Saeed, Director of the Holding Company and Mr. Hassan Javed, Director of the Holding Company are directors and Rupees
11 million (2018: Rupees 12 million) given to Kidney Centre Gujrat in which Mr. Omar Saeed, Director of the Holding Company and Mr. Hassan Javed,
Director of the Holding Company are members of Board of Governors.
33.2  The names of donees to whom donation amount exceeds Rupees 4.97 million (2018: Rupees 0.5 million) are as follows:
Shalamar Hospital 12,962 14,882
Sundus Foundation - 5,000
Sindh Institute of Urology & Transplantation - 1,000
The Citizens Foundation 5,600 3,000
Wise Education Society 5,000 5,000
Dost Foundation - 600
23,562 29,482
33.2.1 There is no interest of any director or his spouse in donees' fund.
34.  OtherIncome

Income from financial assets

Return on bank deposits 2,326 152
Interest on loan to the associate 792 .
Exchange gain - net 402,192 143,453
Income from non-financial assets

Scrap sales and others 39,194 46,716
Rental income 3,906 9,802

448,410 200,123
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35.  Finance Cost
Mark-up / interest on:
- long term financing 344,632 204,774
- short term borrowings 495,757 350,293
- lease liabilities 160,867 -
Bank charges and commission 61,173 41,582
1,062,429 596,649
36.  Taxation
Current 376,313 214,255
Prior year 3,350 (185)
Deferred tax (152,051) (66,965)
227,612 147,105
36.1  Provision for current income tax is made in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand
37.  Earnings Per Share - Basic And Diluted Restated
Basic
Profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company (Rupees in thousand) 1,372,058 1,057,395
Weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Holding Company (Numbers) 18,794,982 18,794,982
Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 73.00 56.26
38.  Cash Generated from Operations
Profit before taxation 1,586,621 1,176,802
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation 718,235 611,234
Depreciation on right-of-use-assets 192,739 -
Amortization on intangible assets 1,474 1,320
Provision for gratuity 59,353 35,513
Finance cost 1,062,429 596,649
Provision for workers' profit participation fund 65,276 41,734
Provision for workers' welfare fund 33,046 8,302
Impairment loss on investment - 7,550
Provision / (reversal of provision) for slow moving and obsolete inventory 24,363 (15,812)
Allowance for expected credit losses 88,054 31,697
Share of profit in equity accounted investee (33,232) (105,000)
Loss on sale of operating fixed assets - net 5,005 9,961
Working capital changes (Note 38.1) (1,835,083) (1,308,160)
1,968,280 1,091,790
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38.1  Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools (134,472) (32,113)
Stock-in-trade (1,800,737) (138,089)
Trade debts (554,110) (563,616)
Loans and advances (149,502) (173,689)
Trade deposits and prepayments (49,344) 42,783
Accrued interest (1,426) .
Other receivables (171,813) (336,554)
(2,861,404) (1,201,278)
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 1,026,321 (106,882)
(1,835,083) (1,308,160)
38.2  Recondiliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:
2019
Liabilities from financing activities
Long term Short term Unclaimed Total
financing liabilities borrowings dividend ota
Rupees in thousand
Balance as at 01 January 2019 3,316,880 5,722,630 32,002 9,071,512
Financing obtained 1,450,506 1,450,506
Lease liabilities recognised during the year 1,587,947 1,587,947
Repayment of financing / lease liabilities (940,882) (74,459) (1,015,341)
Short term borrowings - net 561,579 561,579
Dividend declared 548,812 548,812
Dividend paid (543,030) (543,030)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 3,826,504 1,513,488 6,284,209 37,784 11,661,985
2018
Liabilities from financing activities
Long term Short term Unclaimed Total
financing liabilities borrowings dividend
Rupees in thousand
Balance as at 01 January 2018 2,883,572 4,589,272 21,774 7,500,618
Financing obtained 609,100 609,100
Repayment of financing (175,792) (175,792)
Short term borrowings - net 1,133,358 1,133,358
Dividend declared 264,634 264,634
Dividend paid (260,406) (260,406)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 3,316,880 5,722,630 32,002 9,071,512
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39.  Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Executives
The aggregate amount charged in these consolidated financial statements for remuneration including all benefits to chief executive officer, directors and
executives of the Holding Company is as follows:
Chief Executive Officer Directors Executives
2019 [ 2018 2019 | 2018 2019 | 2018
Rupees in thousand
Managerial remuneration 28,083 24,921 39,584 45,958 181,018 177,998
Bonus 27,900 26,792 39,100 52,407 59,031 53,141
Allowances:
House rent 2,808 2,492 3,959 4,596 45,982 40,894
Conveyance - - - - 19,119 11,784
Medical - - - - 23,475 19,981
Utilities 2,808 2,492 3,959 4,596 17,330 17,215
Special allowance - - - - 20,660 16,140
Retirement and other benefits 2,124 1,273 3,363 2,655 44,842 33,725
Total 63,723 57,970 89,965 110,212 411,456 370,878
Number of persons 1 1 2 2 67 77
39.1  The chief executive, executive directors and some of the executives of the Holding Company are provided with fully maintained vehicles in accordance
with the Holding Company's policy.
39.2  Aggregate amount charged in these consolidated financial statements for meeting fee to directors of the Holding Company was Rupees 1.957 million
(2018: Rupees 1.416 million).
39.3  No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Holding Company.
40.  Transactions with related parties

The related parties comprise associated undertakings, employees’ gratuity fund trust, employees' provident fund trust and key management personnel.
The Group in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those

which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements are as follows:
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

Associated companies
Dividend received
Sale of goods
Donations made
Reimbursement of expenses
Loan given
Interest charged
Bonus shares issued

Key management personnel
Cash dividend paid
Bonus shares issued

Other related parties

Contribution to Service Provident Fund Trust

Contribution to Service Industries Limited Employees Gratuity Fund Trust
Bonus shares issued to Service Provident Fund Trust

- 46,184
51,282 83,743
9,503 -
171 3,802

50,000

792

57
24,700 100,145
30,209 -
143,745 128,487
52,704 35,513
3,202 -

40.1  Detail of compensation to key management personnel comprising of chief executive officer, directors and executives of the Holding Company is
disclosed in Note 39.
40.2  Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangements / agreements in place:
Transactions entered or
agreements and / or Percentage
SrNo. Name of related party Basis of Relationship arrangements in place Shareholding
during the financial year
1 S2 Power Limited Common directorship Yes 48.00%
2 S2 Hydro Limited Common directorship No 48.00%
3 Speed (Private) Limited Shareholding Yes 35.97%
4 SBLTrading (Private) Limited Common directorship Yes Nil
5 Service Provident Fund Trust Post employment benefit plan Yes Nil
6 Service Industries Limited Employees
Gratuity Fund Trust Post employment benefit plan Yes Nil
7 Service Foundation Common directorship Yes il
8 Service Charitable Trust Directors of the Holding Company are Trustees ~ Yes Nil
Shahid Arif Investment (Private) Limited Common directorship Yes Nil
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41.  Ason 31 December 2019, disclosures relating to Subsidiary incorporated outside Pakistan:
Particulars Details
Name of the company Semvice Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited
Jurisdiction Sri lanka
Beneficial owner Service Industries Capital (Private) Limited
Investment made during the year ended 31 December 2017
Investment in
Local currency PKR 62,770,000
Foreign currency USD 600,000
Terms and conditions of investment Investment in shares of subsidiary company
Amount of returns received None
Litigation against investee company None
Default/ breach related to foreign company None
Gain/(loss) on disposal of investment Not applicable
42.  Plant Capacity
Footwear division
Due to the nature of the Company's business, production capacity is not determinable.
Technical rubber products
Due to the nature of the Company's business, production capacity is not determinable.
Tyre Division
Installed capacity Actual production ‘
2019 | 2018 2019 | 2018 |
Number of tyres 19,114,360 18,534,780 10,818,708 10,402,393
Number of tyres 52,515,170 51,628,500 39,468,162 37,861,408
The capacity of the plant was utilized to the extent of orders received.
43.  Non-controlling interest (NCI)

Set out below is summarized un-audited financial information for Service Shoes Lanka (Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company that has non-controlling
interest that are material to the Group. The amount disclosed for the Subsidiary Company are before inter-company elimination:
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

Summarized statement of financial position

Non-current assets 121,808 115,385
Current assets 133,914 124,993
Non-current liabilities (3,754) (3,999)
Current liabilities (333,126) (279,117)
Net assets (81,158) (42,738)
Accumulated non-controlling interest (31,693) (16,322)

Summarized statement of comprehensive income

Revenue 369,330 233121
Loss for the year (32,622) (69,245)
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss (32,622) (69,245)
Loss allocated to non-controlling interest (13,049) (27,698)

Summarized statement cash flows

Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 4,039 (4,096)
Cash flows used in investing activities (23,874) (18,481)
Cash flows from financing activities 27,084 20,728
Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,249 (1,849)

44.

441

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the finance departments of the Holding Company and Subsidiary Companies under the policies approved by their
respective Board of Directors. The Holding Company and Subsidiary Companies' finance departments evaluates and hedge financial risks. The Board of
each Group Company provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and investment of excess liquidity.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the United States Dollar (USD), Euro, Sri
Lankan Rupees (LKR) and Great Britain Pound (GBP). Currently, the Group's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to bank balances and the
amounts receivable / payable from / to the foreign entities. The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk, when
considered appropriate. The Group's exposure to currency risk was as follows:
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2019

Amount

2018
Amount

Rupees in thousand

(ii)

Cash at banks - USD

Cash at banks - EURO

Cash at banks - LKR

Trade debts - USD

Trade debts - EURO

Trade debts - GBP

Trade debts - LKR

Trade and other payables - USD
Trade and other payables - EURO
Trade and other payables - GBP
Trade and other payables - LKR
Net exposure - USD

Net exposure - EURO

Net exposure - GBP

Net exposure - LKR

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the period:

Rupees per US Dollar
Average rate
Reporting date rate

Rupees per EURO
Average rate
Reporting date rate

Rupees per GBP
Average rate
Reporting date rate

Rupees per LKR
Average rate

Reporting date rate

Sensitivity analysis

38,885
10,575
45,207
2,899,140
3,323,412
179,803
46,133,846
(2,239,877)
(214,667)
(9,841)
(197,995,841)
698,148
3,119,320
169,962
(151,816,788)

150.81

154.85

168.70
173.48

192.34
203.30

0.84
0.85

2,751
3,406
632,828
2,243,316
2,343,746
162,841
33,221,000
(642,000)
(235,000)
(7,916,000)
1,604,067
2,112,152
162,841
25,937,828

122.09

138.60

143.76
158.52

162.08
175.88

0.75
0.76

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD, Euro, GBP and LKR with all other variables held constant,
the impact on profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 24.860 million (2018: Rupees 28.156 million) higher/ lower, mainly as a result of
exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements
has been calculated on a symmetric basis. In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent currency risk as the year end

exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market. The Group is not exposed to commodity price risks.

181



Service Industries Limited

Sensitivity analysis

The table below summarizes the impact of increase / decrease in the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) Index on the Group's equity (fair value reserve
FVTOCI investment). The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased / decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant
and the Group's equity instrument moved according to the historical correlation with the index:

Impact on statement of
other comprehensive Impact on profit

Index _ income after taxation
Fair value reserve

FVTOCI investment)

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

(iii)

PSX 100 (5% increase) 1,228 1,103
PSX 100 (5% decrease) (1,228) (1,103)

Interest rate risk
This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from long term financing, short term borrowings, loan to associate and bank balances. Financial instruments at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest bearing financial instruments was:

Fixed rate instruments
Financial asset
Term deposit receipts 49,500

Financial liabilities
Long term financing 641,504 462,11
Short term borrowings 5,312,864 3,497,355

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets
Bank balances - saving accounts 11,649 26,624
Loan to associate 50,000 -

Financial liabilities
Long term financing 3,185,000 2,854,769
Short term borrowings 854,992 2,136,006

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Group.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Ifinterest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees
42.568 million (2018: Rupees 53.116 million) lower / higher, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate financial instruments. This
analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and liabilities outstanding at reporting the dates were outstanding for the whole year.
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(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

183

2019 2018
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand
Long term investment 24,550 22,050
Long term loans to employees 40,312 30,468
Long term security deposits 227,933 142,864
Trade debts 3,617,736 3,273,650
Loans and advances 79,939 23,784
Accrued interest 1,426 -
Other receivables 26,700 77,019
Bank balances 88,694 61,626
4,107,290 3,631,461

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due norimpaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (If available) or to

historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating 2019 2018
Short term Long term Agency Amount Amount

Banks Rupees in thousand
Allied Bank Limited A+ AMA PACRA 4,517 27,740
Askari Bank Limited A+ AA+ PACRA 373 20
Bank Alfalah Limited A+ AA+ PACRA 85 109
Bank Al-Habib Limited A+ A+ PACRA 457 2,264
Faysal Bank Limited A+ AA PACRA 3,274 4,622
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AMA JCRVIS 5229 475
MCB Bank Limited A+ AMA PACRA 590 19,110
Meezan Bank Limited A1+ A+ JCRVIS 9,894 364
National Bank of Pakistan A+ AAA PACRA 1,047 892
Samba Bank Limited A1+ A JCRVIS 53 49
Soneri Bank Limited A+ AA- PACRA 2,353 16
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited A+ AAA PACRA 1,625 353
United Bank Limited A1+ AMA JCRVIS 312 5423
SME Bank Limited B ccc PACRA 50,229
MCB Bank Limited - Sri lanka [SL]A+ ICRA Lanka 5,847 189

88,694 61,626
Long term investment
TRG Pakistan Limited Unknown 24,550 22,050

113,244 83,676




Service Industries Limited

The Company's exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to trade debts is disclosed in Note 23.
Duetothe Group's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management
does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Group. Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity riskis the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. At 31
December 2019, the Group had Rupees 4,688.497 million (2018: Rupees 4,097.269 million) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees
105.655 million (2018: Rupees 72.841 million) cash and bank balances. The management believes the liquidity risk to be low.
Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. The amount disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2019:
Carrying | Contractual | 6 months 6-12 1-2 More than
Amount | cash flows or less months Years 2 Years
Rupees in thousand
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Long term financing 3,826,504 5,053,305 791,575 537,019 1,161,050 2,563,661
Long term deposits 2,406 2,406 - - 2,406
Lease liabilities 1,513,488 2,317,657 118,191 130,347 274,347 1,794,772
Short term borrowings 6,284,209 7,586,603 7,393,350 193,253 - -
Trade and other payables 3,724,462 3,724,462 3,724,462 -
Unclaimed dividend 37,784 37,784 37,784
Accrued mark-up 142,320 142,320 142,320 - - -
15,531,173 18,864,537 12,207,682 860,619 1,435,397 4,360,839
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2018:
Carrying | Contractual | 6 months 6-12 1-2 More than
Amount | cash flows or less months Years 2 Years
Rupees in thousand
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Long term financing 3,316,880 4,142,176 601,156 506,216 937,687 2,097,117
Long term deposits 3,243 3,243 3,243
Short term borrowings 5,722,630 6,824,279 6,632,556 191,723
Trade and other payables 2,724,461 2,724,461 2,724,467
Unclaimed dividend 32,002 32,002 32,002
Accrued mark-up 146,917 146,917 146,917 - - -
11,946,133 13,873,078 10,137,092 697,939 937,687 2,100,360
The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark up rates effective as at reporting
date. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in note 6 and note 13 to these financial statements.
44.2  Financial instruments by categories

Assets as per consolidated statement of financial position
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2019 2018

FVTOCI Amortized Available Loans and
cost for sale receivables

Long term investment 24,550 - 22,050
Long term loans to employees - 40,312 - 30,468
Security deposits - 227,933 - 142,864
Trade debts - 3,617,736 - 3,273,650
Loans and advances - 79,939 - 23,784

Accrued interest - 1,426 -
Other receivables - 26,700 - 77,019
Cash and bank balances - 103,548 - 72,841
24,550 4,097,594 22,050 3,620,626
2019 2018
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

amortized cost  amortized cost

Liabilities as per consolidated statement of financial position

Long term financing 3,826,504 3,316,880
Long term deposits 2,406 3,243
Lease liabilities 1,513,488

Accrued mark-up 142,320 146,917
Short term borrowings 6,284,209 5,722,630
Unclaimed dividend 37,784 32,002
Trade and other payables 3,724,462 2,724,461

15,531,173 11,946,133

44.3

444

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
As on the reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to off setting as there are no enforceable master netting arrangements and

similar agreements.

Capital Risk Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the
industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Group monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings
divided by total capital employed. Borrowings represent long term financing, and short term borrowings obtained by the Group as referred to in note 6
and note 13 respectively. Total capital employed includes 'total equity’ as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus 'borrowings’. The
Group's strategy, remained unchanged from last year.
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2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

Borrowings 10,110,713 9,039,510
Total equity 6,183,939 5,483,164
Total capital employed 16,294,652 14,522,674
Gearing ratio Percentage 62.05% 62.24%

45.

The increase in gearing ratio is mainly due to increase in borrowings due to increase in equity.

Recognized fair value measurements - financial instruments

Fair value hierarchy

Judgements and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value in these
consolidated financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the following three levels. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Recurring fair value measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2019

Rupees in thousand

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 24,550 - - 24,550
Total financial assets 24,550 - - 24,550
Recurring fair value measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 December 2018

Rupees in thousand
Financial assets
Available for sale financial assets 22,050 - . 22,050

Total financial assets 22,050 - - 22,050

The above table does notinclude fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amounts are a
reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to short term nature, carrying amounts of certain financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be
the same as their fair value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not significantly different to their carrying amounts.

There were no transfers between levels 1and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. Further, there was no transfer in and out of level 3
measurements.

The Company's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted

equity securities.

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

Speific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include the use of quoted market prices.

46.  Segment Information

The Group has three reportable segments. The following summary describes the operation in each of the Group's reportable segments:

Footwear: Purchase, manufacturing and sale of different qualities of footwear.

Tyre: Manufacturing of different qualities of tyres and tubes.

Technical Rubber Products: Manufacturing of different qualities of rubber products on specifications.

187

< Rupees in thousand >
Footwear Tyre division Technical rubber products Total Total
Year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31Dec

2019 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Sales 13,866,548 11,605,485 15960592 12,603,399 231,181 20759 30058321 24,229,643

Profit / (loss) before taxation and unallocated
income and expenses 1,390,261 1,459,989 1,942,235 1242514 61312 (7,850) 3393808 2,694,653
Unallocated income and expenses: (1807,187)  (1,517,851)
Taxation (227612)  (147,105)
Profit after taxation 1350009 1,029,697
46.1.  Reconciliation of reportable segment assets and liabilities

Total assets for reportable segment 8782272 7187855 9121739 8,662,533 152,290 54481 18,056,301 15,904,869
Unallocated assets 4753522 2,417,406
Total assets as per consolidated statement of financial position 22809823 18,322,275
Unallocated liabilities 16,625,884 12,839,111
Total liabilities as per consolidated statement of financial position 16,025,884 12,839,111
2019 2018
Amount Amount

Rupees in thousand

46.2. Geographical information

The Company's revenue from external customers by geographical locations is detailed below:

Europe 6,586,466 5,513,100
United States of America 1,119,017 449,382
Asia 2,144,227 1,404,843
Australia 85,832 87,236
Africa 224,216 157,201
Pakistan 19,898,563 16,617,881

30,058,321 24,229,643
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46.3.

46.4.

47.

Significant non-current assets of the Group as at reporting dates are located and operating in Pakistan.

Revenue from major customers
The Group's revenue is earned from a large mix of customers.

Provident Fund Related Disclosures
As per the Scheme, employees provident fund of Service Industries Limited in the name of Service Provident Fund Trust shall be continued for the benefits
of the employees of the Holding Company and Service Global Footwear Limited.

As at the reporting date, the Service Provident Fund Trust is in the process of regularizing its investments in accordance with section 218 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and the regulations formulated for this purpose by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan which allows transition period of 3 years for
bringing the Employees Provident Fund Trust in conformity with the requirements of regulations.

2019 2018
Amount Amount
Rupees in thousand

48.

49.

49.1.

49.2.

49.3

50.

Number of employees
Number of employees as at 31 December 2019 12,585 11,056
Average number of employees during the year 14,095 11,032

Events after the Reporting Period

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of Rupees 7.50 per share (i.e. 75%) along
with issuance of bonus shares in proportion of 25 ordinary shares for every 100 ordinary shares held by the members (i.e. 25%) at their meeting held
on June 25, 2020. However, this event has been considered as non-adjusting event under IAS 10 'Events after the Reporting Period’ and has not been
recognized in these financial statements.

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Corona virus (COVID-19) outbreak to be a pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread
across the globe. Many governments are taking increasingly stringent steps to help contain or delay the spread of the virus. The outbreak of the COVID-19
introduces additional challenges and risks to the Group's operations. The Group has already undertaken specific measures to ensure the health and safety
of its employees. In order to dampen the impacts of this situation, the Group has obtained additional export refinance (ERF) of Rupees 1,290 million from
various Pakistani banks. The additional ERF has reduced the financial burden of the Group, since KIBOR based borrowings have been converted into ERF
at 3% markup. The Group has also availed the deferment of principal payments of long-term loans falling between 26 March 2020 to 25 March 2021.
The principal payments have been deferred for one year in line with the relevant circular of State Bank of Pakistan. The Group has also been successful in
obtaining further funded facilities from various banks, which has provided the Group further liquidity to survive the present crisis. Presently additional
funded facility of Rupees 500 million has been obtained to date. Furthermore, due to the recent announcement of Government of Pakistan to release the
pending sales tax refunds, drawback of local taxes and levies of exporters, the Group has obtained refunds of Rupees 319.988 million. The Group has
also successfully managed its cash flows consisting of local suppliers' payments and import payments in line with its receipts from its debtors (local and
foreign). This matching policy of cash inflows and outflows has successfully managed the borrowing of the Group and kept it at a manageable level.

For the Group's 31 December 2019 financial statements, the Corona virus outbreak and the related impacts are considered non-adjusting events.
Consequently, there is no impact on the recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of the current events,
the Group cannot reasonably estimate the impact these events will have on the Group's financial position, results of operations or cash flows in the future.

Date of authorization for issue
These consolidated financial statements were authorized forissue on June 25, 2020 by the Board of Directors.
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51.  Corresponding figures
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, no significant rearrangements have been
made.

52.  General
Figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand of Rupees, except stated otherwise.

Chaudhry Ahmed Javed Arif Saeed Badar Ul Hassan
(Chairman) (Chief Executive) (Chief Financial Officer)
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Number of Shareholders

Shareholding

Total Shares held

191

From To
581 1 100 18,010
451 101 500 109,781
249 501 1,000 187,201
309 1,001 5,000 638,725
44 5,001 10,000 305,260
1 10,001 15,000 134,762
10 15,001 20,000 165,817
3 20,001 25,000 65,965
4 25,001 30,000 111,394
4 30,001 35,000 125,963
1 45,001 50,000 50,000
1 50,001 55,000 53,750
3 70,001 75,000 219111
1 100,001 105,000 103,693
3 120,001 125,000 372,656
1 125,001 130,000 128,877
1 130,001 135,000 130,733
1 145,001 150,000 148,338
1 160,001 165,000 162,575
1 170,001 175,000 174,077
3 210,001 215,000 638,304
1 240,001 245,000 240,270
2 820,001 825,000 1,647,232
1 870,001 875,000 872,510
1 1,005,001 1,010,000 1,008,127
1 1,110,001 1,115,000 1,113,000
1 1,855,001 1,860,000 1,858,572
1 1,950,001 1,955,000 1,951,087
1 2,435,001 2,440,000 2,436,132
1 3,620,001 3,625,000 3,623,060
1,693 18,794,982
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Pattern of Shareholding

As at December 31,2019
Categories of Shareholders Number of Number of Percentage
Shareholders Shares held
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and
their spouses and minor children 9 8,414,462 447697
Associated Companies, undertakings and
related Parties 3 906,463 4.8229
NITand ICP 5 2,743,910 14.5992
Banks, Development Financial Institutions,
Non Banking Financial Institutions 2 1,114,475 5.9296
Insurance Companies 2 81,737 0.4349
Modarabas and Mutual Funds " 203,695 1.0838
General Public
a. Local 1,591 4,750,627 25.2760
b. Foreign 5 60,200 0.3203
Others (to be specified)
1-Joint Stock Companies 31 200,266 1.0655
2- Foreign Companies 1 18,750 0.0998
3- Pension Funds 7 269,138 1.4320
4- Others 26 31,259 0.1663
1,693 18,794,982 100.0000
Shareholders holding 10% or more 3 8,010,279 42.6192
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Information required under the Code of Corporate Governance

Categories of Shareholders Number of  Percentage
Shares held
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
M/S SHAHID ARIF INVESTMENTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 15,850 0.0843
TRUSTEE - SERVICE PROVIDENT FUND TRUST(CDC) 872,510 4.6422
M/S SERVICE CHARITABLE TRUST 18,103 0.0963
Mutual Funds
CDC-TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND (CDC) 1,562 0.0083
CDC-TRUSTEE APF-EQUITY SUB FUND (CDC) 75 0.0004
(CDC- TRUSTEE ATLAS STOCK MARKET FUND (CDC) 1,025 0.0055
(CDC-TRUSTEE MCB PAKISTAN ASSETALLOCATION FUND (CDC) 93 0.0005
CDC-TRUSTEE MCB PAKISTAN STOCK FUND (CDC) 103,693 0.5517
CDC- TRUSTEE PAKISTAN CAPITAL MARKET FUND (CDC) 12,187 0.0648
CDC-TRUSTEE UBL DEDICATED EQUITY FUND (CDC) 5,640 0.0300
CDC-TRUSTEE UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND (CDC) 24,125 0.1284
CDC-TRUSTEE UNITTRUST OF PAKISTAN (CDC) 7,000 0.0372
MC FSL- TRUSTEE JS GROWTH FUND (CDC) 20,700 0.1101
Directors and their spouses and minor children
CHAUDHRY AHMED JAVED (CDC) 824,906 4.3890
MR. ARIF SAEED (CDC) 1,858,572 9.8887
MR. OMAR SAEED (CDC) 1,951,087 10.3809
MR. HASSAN JAVED (CDC) 3,623,060 19.2767
MR. OSMAN SAIFULLAH KHAN (CDC) 156 0.0008
MR. RIAZ AHMED (CDC) 7,031 0.0374
MR. REHMAN NASEEM (CDC) 1,250 0.0067
MR. MUHAMMAD AMIN (CDC) 62 0.0003
MRS. FATIMA SAEED W/O MR. ARIF SAEED (CDC) 148,338 0.7892
Executives B -

Public Sector Companies and Corporations - -

Banks, Development Finance Institutions,
Non Banking Finance Companies, Insurance Companies,
Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds 1,492,945 7.9433

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights

MR. HASSAN JAVED (CDC) 3,623,060 19.2767
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST (CDC) 2,436,132 12.9616
MR. OMAR SAEED (CDC) 1,951,087 10.3809
MR. ARIF SAEED (CDC) 1,858,572 9.8887
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN (CDC) 1,114,475 5.9296

MRS. SHAHIDA NAEEM (CDC) 1,008,127 5.3638
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Trade in shares of the Company by Directors, Executives and their spouses and minor children

Name Purchase Sale Bonus Giftin
M. Arif Saeed - Director - - 669,085 189,942
Mr. Omar Saeed - Director 20,885 - 698,214 193,592
Chaudhry Ahmed Javed - Director - - 296,966
Mr. Hassan Javed - Director 42921 - 1,300,124
Mr. Osman Saifullah Khan - Director - - 56
Mr. Riaz Ahmed - Director - - 2,531
Mr. Rehman Naseem - Director - - 450
Mr. Muhammad Amin - Director - - 22
Mrs. Fatima Saeed - Spouse of Director - - 53,401
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Form of Proxy

63 Annual General Meeting

/We of

being a member(s) of Service Industries Limited and holder of Ordinary Shares hereby appoint
Mr./ Mrs. | Miss of
orfailing him/ her of asmy/our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us on my / our

behalf at the 63rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on July 17,2020 at 11:00 a.m. through video link facility and / or at any adjournment thereof.

In witness thereof | / We have signed and set my / our hands seal thereon this day of 2020

in the presence of

Signed this day of 2020
CDC Account No. Signature on Five -Rupees
Folio No.
Participant |.D. Account No. Revenue Stamp
The Signature should agree with
the specimen registered with
the Company.
Important:
1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding
the meeting. A proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxies are deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments

of proxy shall be rendered invalid.
3. For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

e Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be provided with the proxy form.

e The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

* Incase of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form to
the Company.



The Company Secretary
Service Industries Limited
Servis House, 2-Main Gulberg,
Lahore.
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The Company Secretary
Service Industries Limited
Servis House, 2-Main Gulberg,
Lahore.
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